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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRS

I'would like to present to the shareholders the audited consolidated
results of Wisdom Wealth Resources Investment Holding Group
Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The financial year 2021 is a challenging year for the Group. The
outbreak of Covid-19 has brought a tremendous impact on the global
economy in the past 2 years. This pandemic has become under
control globally and recovery in global economy will be expected.

Looking forward, the Group will continue the development of the
Smart City located at the southern side of Donghai Avenue Donghai
Island Mazhang District Zhanjiang City Guangdong Province The PRC

(REBEEZHIEA)and according to the latest arrangement
with the Zhanjiang local government authority in October 2021, the
expected completion day of this project is January 2025.

Our major focus in financial year 2022 is the sand mining and export
business of the Company.

The Company has an exclusive right to conducting sand mining and
export business in the Kikori Delta in the Gulf of Papua New Guinea
with a total area of 23,300 square kilometers as well as investing and
operating port and terminal facilities in the Kikori Delta.

The Company also entered into a strategic cooperation framework
agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”) with China Harbour
Engineering Company Limited (“China Harbour Engineering”).
Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement, the Company will appoint
China Harbour Engineering to conduct a sand mining operation, and
plan and construct the fairway and terminal facilities, in the Kikori
Delta. Both contracting parties also agreed to fully cooperate with
each other to ensure that China Harbour Engineering can fully utilize
the Company’s abundant resources of sea sand, river sand, gravel
and fill materials in the Kikori Delta (with a total area of 23,300 square
kilometers) for its reclamation engineering projects.
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China Harbour Engineering is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Communications Construction Company, Limited (“CCCC"), which
is one of the world’s largest infrastructure construction companies.
China Harbour Engineering is one of the main contractors with
Grade A1 contractor licence in Singapore. It also possesses the
relevant import licence for sea sand in Singapore. The Singaporean
government has used land reclamation to supplement Singapore’s
available commercial, residential, industrial, and governmental
properties (military and official buildings). Land reclamation in
Singapore also allows for the preservation of local historic and cultural
communities, as building pressures are reduced by the addition
of reclaimed land. Land reclamation has been used in Singapore
extensively in response to the city-state’s rapid economic growth.

Land reclamation in Singapore creates a very huge demand in sea
sand. The supply of sand, gravel and fill materials to China Harbour
Engineering for its reclamation engineering projects is expected to
provide a continuous steady income and ideal profit contribution to
the Company.

Therefore, the Company believed that the sand mining and
export business has good prospect and is important to our future
development.

I would like to express my gratitude to all shareholders, customers,
suppliers and business partners for supporting the Group over the
years and contributing to the Group’s continuous development. In
appreciation of your support, we will remain committed to moving our
business forward to achieve even greater success in the future.

For and on behalf of the Board
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, &S, /P

Chairman

25 March 2022

Chairman'’s Statement
EEHRE

TEHAEAZEIEATERBERRNAERLH
(THRERE) Z2EWBAE PEE/E
REANERREERATD Z— FEBETL
BRI FIREBAISRABEHERZ T AE
Bz— HIFBFHMMNENERE D EOFH
58 o N0 3 BURF F) A - 3t R 28 2R 4R ZE AT A0 R
ENEE-EE - IEZRBRAVE (BFEhES
RI) o FINKBY T #hBAZE 75 o] LURFE B B
SERXACH & o [H A& 1805 28 1 3t A] DUBIES 2
HE THMBAESIRMNIKEZR A UEYH
1 T — B SR A R AL B HE R o

AR L EENEVELETHREBERNE
Kom P EBE TREHEBDAKRERUHEIE
B TREBEZR BRER SRR HERKE
BIRTEWANIBEEFN SR -

Hit > ZABRBR/DVARRREOEZEFTARR
o HEMNRREEREREE-

FAANEBLERAZERIFEAERT A AEBFTE
ZRMFHEMZZ2EBRR -ZEF HEBKRES
BHEH AEE BT HARERES
EHUR NARBIEBEARMN

REREFE
FFE#iEeBs, 1P
E

- _F#=-B”-+HH

Annual Report 2021 « —Z ——fF 4R

07



08

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEES WD

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$522.4 million, compared to
approximately HK$1,013.2 million for 2020, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$490.8 million. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the decrease in the sales of low end electronic products during
the year. The Group's gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$57.9 million, compared to approximately HK$32.7 million for
2020, representing an increase of HK$25.2 million. The increase was
mainly attributable to change of product mix from low end electronic
products to electronic medical equipment and iphone. The profit
attributable to the owners of the Company substantially increased
to HK$267.9 million, an increase of HK$479.9 million from the loss of
HK$(211.9) million recorded for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The increase was primarily due to an increase on fair value changes
on investment properties incurred of approximately HK$601.7
million. (the Gain on fair value changes on investment properties was
HK$442.8 million in 2021 and there was a loss of HK$158.9 million in
2020).

BUSINESS REVIEW
Investment property
Zhanjiang

The Group owns the land use rights of five land parcels located in
Donghai Dao, Zhanjiang Economic and Technological Development
Zone, Zhangjiang City, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") with total site area and total planned gross floor area
of approximately 266,000 sg.m. and 1.3 million sg.m. respectively
(the “Smart City Project”). The lands are divided into two portions: the
portion held for sale (non-commercial portion) and the portion held
for investment purpose (including the commercial portion and the car
parking spaces).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

According to the valuation report issued by a recognised valuer at
the end of the year, the total value of the lands of the Smart City
Project was approximately RMB5.25 billion. The portion of lands at
approximately RMB3.18 billion will be used for residential purpose
which are classified as properties for sale and another portion of lands
at approximately RMB2.07 billion will be used for commercial building
development purpose which are classified as investment properties
in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021.

Beijing

The rental income of leasing the property covers an area of
approximately 16,300 sg.m. at the Rong Ning Yuan Community of No.
60 Guang An Men Nan Jie, Xicheng District, Beijing, the PRC. The rental
income recorded by this Beijing property was approximately HK$1.02
million (2020: HK$5.88 million) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Disposal of Beijing Project

On 5 November 2021, the Group entered into the sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of the entire issued capital of Millhaven
Holdings Limited which held the properties located at Rong Ning
Yuan Community, Beijing (the “Disposal”). The consideration for the
Disposal is HK$338.0 million. The Company intends to apply the net
proceeds from the Disposal for general working capital of the Group
and repayment of outstanding loans.

After the Disposal, the Group intends to focus its resources on the
development of the Zhanjiang project and other business segments
of the Group, in particular the sand mining business in Papua New
Guinea.

Trading Business

The Group owns 60% interest in Shenzhen Qianhai Jiameijing
Industrial Company Limited GRYIH A/ B=EBEXEEAT)
which principally engages in the business of trading, importing and
exporting of electronic products. The trading business recorded
revenue of approximately HK$494 million (2020: HK$985 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEES WD

Financial Business

The revenue of financial business of the Group generated from
securities, futures and options broking business, underwriting
commission, advisory for financial management business and interest
income from securities margin loan portfolio and managed to register
profit. Despite the economic damages brought by the widespread
of Covid 19, both market and turnover increased amid the global
Quantitative Easing policy, the massive stimulus program of the US
government, the continued listing of Chinese giant companies in
Hong Kong attracting investment interests from China and other
regions. Market remained volatile as investors were sensitive to the
development of Sino-American confrontations, the fear of inflation
and the spread of Covid-19 disease. Market turnover hopefully
expected to be buoyant benefited from more listings of Chinese
companies.

Oil and gas business

The Group owns 100% of the exploration, exploitation and operation
rights as well as the profit sharing right of Madagascar Oilfield
Block 2101 which is an onshore site with total area of 10,400
square kilometers in the northern part of Madagascar. Pursuant
to the exploration, exploitation and oil and gas production sharing
contract and depending on the rate of liquid petroleum production of
Madagascar Qilfield Block 2101, the Group will share the remaining
petroleum profit after government royalty and recovery of petroleum
costs according to the sharing ratios in the range of 40% to 72.5% as
set out in the profit sharing right.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECT

After disposing the Beijing Properties, the Group will be able to
focus its resources on the development of the Zhanjiang project and
other business segments of the Group, in particular the sand mining
business in Papua New Guinea where the Group has been granted
an exclusive operating right for constructing and operating a port
terminal and conducting sand mining and export business in the
Kikori Delta in the Gulf of Papua with a total area of 23,300 square
kilometers and the Group has established a comprehensive strategic
cooperation with China Harbour Engineering Company Limited (&1
B T2 B REEAT) for carrying out sand mining operation
and the planning, construction and operation of fairway and terminal
facilities, the Board considers that the Disposal can prevent the
Group from incurring further loss from the Properties and provide
an immediate cash flow to the Group for repayment of borrowings
and general working capital to support the future development of the
Group.

Further, the Group has set up the agency business in selling of
electronic products in Hong Kong since October 2021. In 2022, this
business will provide significant revenue stream in Hong Kong given
the possible improvement of the trading market sentiments.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE
Proposed Rights Issue

Reference is made to the announcements (the “Announcements”)
of Wisdom Wealth Resources Investment Holding Group Limited (the
“Company”) dated 10 January 2022 in relation to the (1) proposed
rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every two shares
held on the record date on a non-underwritten basis and (2) closure
of register of members. Capitalised terms used herein shall have
the same meanings as those defined in the Announcements, unless
otherwise stated.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEES WD

On 10 January 2022, the Company proposed to implement the Rights
Issue, on the basis of one (1) Rights Share for every two (2) Shares
held on the Record Date at the Subscription Price of HK$0.1 per
Rights Share, to raise up to (i) approximately HK$200.0 million (before
deducting professional fees and other related expenses) by issuing
up to 2,000,000,000 Rights Shares (assuming no changes in the
share capital of the Company on or before the Record Date); or (ii)
approximately HK$201.0 million (before deducting professional fees
and other related expenses) by issuing up to 2,010,204,081 Rights
Shares (assuming no changes in the share capital of the Company
on or before the Record Date other than the conversion in full of the
Convertible Bonds) to the Qualifying Shareholders.

The estimated net proceeds of the Rights Issue will be up to (i)
approximately HK$198.5 million (assuming no changes in the
share capital of the Company on or before the Record Date); or (ii)
approximately HK$199.5 million (assuming no changes in the share
capital of the Company on or before the Record Date other than the
conversion in full of the Convertible Bonds). The Company intends to
utilize the entire net proceeds from the Rights Issue for repayment of
loans.

Results of the Rights Issue

Reference is made to the prospectus of Wisdom Wealth Resources
Investment Holding Group Limited (the “Company”) dated 17 March
2022 (the “Prospectus”) in relation to the Rights Issue. Unless
otherwise defined, capitalised terms used herein shall have the same
meanings as defined in the Prospectus.

All conditions set out in the Prospectus were fulfilled and the Rights
Issue became unconditional on 1 April 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, 31 March 2022, being the latest time for
acceptance of and payment for the Rights Shares and application
and payment for excess Rights Shares, a total of 9 valid acceptances
and applications had been received for a total of 1,610,531,394 Rights
Shares, representing approximately 80.53% of the maximum number
of 2,000,000,000 Rights Shares available for subscription under the
Rights Issue, which comprise:

() 6 valid acceptances of provisional allotments under the
PALs in respect of 649,406,394 Rights Shares, representing
approximately 32.47% of the maximum number of
2,000,000,000 Rights Shares available for subscription under the
Rights Issue; and

(i) 3 valid applications for excess Rights Shares under the
EAFs in respect of 961,125,000 Rights Shares, representing
approximately 48.06% of the maximum number of
2,000,000,000 Rights Shares available for subscription under the
Rights Issue.

Based on the subscription results, the Rights Issue was
undersubscribed by 389,468,606 Rights Shares, representing
approximately 19.47% of the maximum number of 2,000,000,000
Rights Shares available for subscription under the Rights Issue.

Excess Application

Based on the number of valid acceptances of provisional allotments
mentioned above, 1,349,828,958 nil-paid Rights Shares provisionally
allotted to Qualifying Shareholders under the PAL were not accepted
by Qualifying Shareholders or were not subscribed for by renounces
or transferees of the nil-paid Rights Shares. Together with the unsold
entitlements to the Rights Shares which were provisionally allotted
to the Excluded Shareholders and the unsold Rights Shares created
by aggregating fractions of the Rights Shares, 1,350,593,606 Rights
Shares, representing approximately 67.53% of the maximum number
of 2,000,000,000 Rights Shares available for subscription under the
Rights Issue, were available for excess application.
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As the aggregate number of Rights Shares available for excess
application is greater than the aggregate number of excess Rights
Shares being applied for under EAFs, the Board considers that it is
fair and equitable to accept all valid excess applications for a total
of 961,125,000 Rights Shares and to allot and issue such number
of excess Rights Shares applied to each of the applicants in full.
Therefore, no refund cheques for wholly and partially unsuccessful
applications for excess Rights Shares will be posted.

Use of Proceeds

The gross proceeds from the Rights Issue are approximately HK$161.1
million and the net proceeds from the Rights Issue, after deducting
all relevant expenses for the Rights Issue, are estimated to be
approximately HK$159.6 million, which shall be utilized entirely for
repayment of part of the Group’s borrowings.

Irrevocable Undertakings

Pursuant to the Irrevocable Undertakings, each of Wisdom On
Holdings Ltd., Hong Kong Finance Investment Limited, Hong Kong
Finance Equity Management Limited, Hong Kong Finance Equity
Investment Limited and Hong Kong Finance Equity Holding Limited,
all of which are directly or indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi
Ming, had undertaken to take up all of its entitlement under the PAL
in respect of the Shares beneficially owned by it. However, the actual
acceptances of Rights Shares were made in a manner as set out in
the following table rather than in accordance with the Irrevocable
Undertakings.

MR P HIE R IR R Z HRR O BBEANR
BRERINFBRBTRG 2RI O B
EE T RBME 61,125,000 KR H 2
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FAIE - FIE - BEEBRIMERR D 2 2B A5
TERMPFZEBRMZERFTH -

o

FRiSIER &

MR Z PSR EE 2 %9161,100,0008 7T ° M
AR Z FriSRRIE P8R (PR AR 2 FR B 18RI R
Z &) st 2349159,600,0007 70 > Hig 2 &0 4
REEAEERDER

AT B #EE

R A B el &5 > Wisdom On Holdings Ltd. ~
ERATMEERRAGD -EEEMRESER
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EBIRE s mE oM

Name of subscriber

Hong Kong Finance Equity Investment Limited

Hong Kong Finance Equity Holding Limited

Hong Kong Finance Equity Management Limited

Hong Kong Finance Investment Limited

Wisdom On Holdings Ltd.

AR

EETRMRERERRAHT

EETHREZRERALHT

BRETRREEEARAT

EETMREARAT

Wisdom On Holdings Ltd.

Number of
Rights Shares
undertaken
to be
subscribed
under the
Irrevocable
Undertakings
AR
RETHEE
EEE T
SRRBRYMHAG
i & B

420,890,142

311,335,557

203,593,571

138,963,000

477,000

Number

of Rights
Shares
actually
subscribed
under
provisional
allotment
and excess
application
RIEEE
fic 8% B BESh

2= g
BHEER

sORBEYHAR
LEavE 4=

73,580,000

1,270,646,000

118,593,570

138,963,000

Total

1,075,259,270

1,601,782,570

The shortfall of Rights Shares that were provisionally allotted and
should have been taken up by Hong Kong Finance Equity Investment
Limited, Hong Kong Finance Equity Management Limited, Hong Kong
Finance Equity Holding Limited and Wisdom On Holdings Ltd. under
the Irrevocable Undertakings were applied for by way of subscription
of excess Rights Shares under an EAF by Hong Kong Finance Equity

Holding Limited.

R 4% A B FiEl
REXLEBERAB - EEHBREEERTRL
B -BE MR EZERE R B KWisdom On
Holdings Ltd. & B HRKRKRHNABH D EHSE
BEREEIZERERABIREEIIRBRES
BEREEERIMER MBI A N RERE -

A BERENARBTEEH
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Effect of the Rights Issue on the Shareholding
Structure of the Company

Set out below is the shareholding structure of the Company

HigH AR IRES

UTHEINERBRERBRE

RBZRE

T __HFMA

immediately before and after completion of the Rights Issue as at 8

NBEERAIREEfRRE_ZE-__FWAE/\H

April 2022: SERNE 2 BRTEZRAE
Immediately before Immediately after
completion of the completion of the

Name of substantial Shareholders TERRMUL4IE Rights Issue Rights Issue

SIRHERTHA ZREMRTRE

Number Number

ofissued  Approximate ofissued  Approximate

Shares % e Shares % (Mo

B&17 HABAt B#ET BABESIE

BIHHE wE RAHE e

Dr. Hui Chi Ming FEwmET 2,153,568,542 53.84  3,755,351,112 66.93
(Notes 1,3) (Notes 2, 3)
W21°3) W5#2:3)

Public Shareholders N 1,846,431,458 46,16 1,855,180,282 33.07

Total 1z 4,000,000,000 100.00 5,610,531,394 100.00

Notes: MtaE -

1. These Shares included 954,000 Shares held by Wisdom On Holdings Ltd., 1. ZERMDEIESD B AWIsdom On Holdings Ltd . 5&
277,926,000 Shares held by Hong Kong Finance Investment Limited, 407,187,143 2954000 - EEEMEEERADFTEZ
Shares held by Hong Kong Finance Equity Management Limited, 841,780,284 277,926,000l 15 - BB EEEFRAT/HAEZ
Shares held by Hong Kong Finance Equity Investment Limited and 625,721,115 407,187,143 D - BB SRR EREBRATRFAEZ
Shares held by Hong Kong Finance Equity Holding Limited respectively. 841,780,284/ I 10’ E B SRR BIRABFEZ

625,721,115 B& 17 °

2. These Shares included 954,000 Shares held by Wisdom On Holdings Ltd., 2. ZERMDBED B AWIsdom On Holdings Ltd.F5&
416,889,000 Shares held by Hong Kong Finance Investment Limited, 525,780,713 2954000 - EEEMEEERABDIFTREZ
Shares held by Hong Kong Finance Equity Management Limited, 915,360,284 416,889,000f2 17 - BB EEEBRATRFAEZ
Shares held by Hong Kong Finance Equity Investment Limited and 1,896,367,115 525,780,713 1D - BB R EREBRABRFAEZ
Shares held by Hong Kong Finance Equity Holding Limited respectively. 915,360,284 D R BB SRR EIER AR AT FEZ

1,896,367, 1158& f& 15 ©

3. The issued share capital of Hong Kong Finance Investment Limited is directly 3. EARACTHEEERABZEETRABAESHRIETE
wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming. The issued share capital of Wisdom On Holdings 2B A o Wisdom On Holdings Ltd. » HH SRR IEE
Ltd., Hong Kong Finance Equity Management Limited, Hong Kong Finance Equity BEERAB -BEERKEREBRABDREETRK
Investment Limited and Hong Kong Finance Equity Holding Limited are indirectly BERBRABDNEZRTRAHTESHBLEELE
wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming. =l

4. Certain percentage figures included in the above table have been subjectto 4. RSB ZETEDLBEFEROEAE AL 45t
rounding adjustments. Accordingly, figures shown as totals may not be an FIR8F R AR F 2 BATAER]

arithmetic aggregation of the figures preceding them.
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Despatch of Share Certificates for the Rights
Shares

Share certificates for the fully-paid Rights Shares were posted to
those entitled thereto by ordinary post to their respective registered
addresses at their own risks on Monday, 11 April 2022.

Adjustments Relating to the Convertible Bonds

As at 8 April 2022, the Company has outstanding Convertible Bonds
in a principal amount of HK$20,000,000, which are convertible into
20,408,163 Shares at the conversion price of HK$0.98 (subject to
adjustments).

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds, the
conversion price of the Convertible Bonds and the number of Shares
falling to be allotted and issued upon conversion of the Convertible
Bonds are not required to be adjusted as a result of the Rights Issue,
and the conversion price remains the same at HK$0.98 per Share.

The auditor of the Company, Cheng & Cheng Limited, Certified
Public Accountants, has confirmed to the Directors in writing that
no adjustment is required to be made to the conversion price of the
Convertible Bonds in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Convertible Bonds.

Commencement of Dealings of the Rights Shares

Dealings in the Rights Shares in their fully-paid form commenced on
the Stock Exchange at 9:00 a.m. on Tuesday, 12 April 2022.

EIREFTwAN
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's revenue
amounted to approximately HK$522.4 million, compared to
approximately HK$1,013.2 million for 2020, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$490.8 million. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the decrease in the sales of low end electronic products. On
the other hand, there is commission income earned from agency
business in selling of electronic products in Hong Kong since October
2021 amounting to approximately HK$2 million during 2021.

Administration expenses

Administrative expenses decreased to approximately HK$57.6 million
in 2021 from approximately HK$61.3 million in 2020, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 6.0%.

Fair value changes on investment properties

The Company has appointed independent valuation companies to
determine the fair value for the investment properties. Based on
the valuation reports, the Group has recorded gain of approximately
HK$443 million during the year ended 31 December 2021. The
increase in fair value was mainly in relation to the investment
properties in Zhanjiang. Fair value gain of approximately HK$488
million on the investment properties at Zhanjiang was recorded during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

FA %50l B8
Wz

BE_T_—F+_A=+—HILFE F*&
B2 m#74522,400,0008 0 M ZZF
HI1%491,013,200,0007% 7T » B> #9490,800,0007#
Too BTy EERR I E F E miH &R
S—FHE RIZ_—F BT —F+ARN
BEENEFEFERBEEANEEBRIANEY
A##32,000,000% 7T

THEH

THERH_-ZZZF 2%61,300,0007 7T
WEZET T —F2#957,600,0007% 7T 0 R
6.0% °

REMELATEED

ARBEEZEBBIUGELADNEEREYENR
FE-REBEEHEERS  AEERBE-_T_—F
+ZA=+—HBLEFEHRFI=AI443,000,000
B ATEENMTIEZAMUMNEINKEY
FAR UM EINRENERNBE_T——
F+ZRA=+T—HLEFEESATFERTN
438,000,000 7T ©
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
(excluding the restricted cash) were approximately HK$31.9 million
(2020: approximately HK$20.6 million). The net current assets of the
Group were HK$1.92 billion (2020: HK$1.60 billion), which consisted
of current assets of HK$2.8 billion (2020: HK$2.4 billion) and current
liabilities of approximately HK$906 million (2020: HK$836 million),
representing a current ratio of 3.13 (2020: 2.87). The Group manages
its capital structure to finance its overall operation and growth by
using different sources of funds. As at 31 December 2021, the Group's
lease liabilities, amounts due to directors, borrowings, convertible
bonds and corporate bonds amounted to approximately HK$653
million (2020: HK$573 million). The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31
December 2021 (defined as total interest-bearing liabilities divided by
the Group's total equity) was 1.63 (2020: 1.43).

ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 4 June 2021, the Company entered into the Convertible
Bonds subscription agreement, pursuant to which agreed to
issue, the Convertible Bonds in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 bearing interest rate of 2% per annum with maturity
to 2 years from the date of issue. The Conversion Price is HK$0.98
per Conversion Share, assuming the conversion rights attaching to
the Convertible Bonds are exercised in full at the Conversion Price,
a maximum of 20,408,163 Conversion Shares will be allotted and
issued, representing (i) approximately 0.51% of the existing issued
shares of the Company of 4,000,000,000 Shares as at the date of
announcement, and (i) approximately 0.51% of the issued shares of
the Company of 4,020,408,163 Shares as enlarged by the allotment
and issue of the Conversion Shares. The issuance of the Convertible
Bonds was completed on 9 July 2021.
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CORPORATE BONDS

As at 31 December 2021, the accumulated balance of corporate
bonds was HK$17.5 million bearing effective interest rate of 7.03%-
11.57% per annum with maturity between 2022 to 2025. Such bonds
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method. Imputed interest of approximately HK$1.97 million was
recognised in the profit or loss during the year. The issuance of the
corporate bonds will not result in any dilution on the shareholding of
the existing shareholders of the Group.

EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The Group undertakes certain operating transactions in foreign
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk, mainly to
the risk of fluctuations in the Hong Kong dollar and U.S. dollar against
RMB. We have not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates
and considering hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
such need arise.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s finance costs consisted mainly of interest expenses on
convertible bonds corporate bonds, borrowings, amounts due to
directors and lease liabilities. The aggregate amount of finance costs
incurred was approximately HK$49.3 million (2020: HK$32.3 million)
for the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021
(2020: nil).
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAMES AND STOCK
SHORT NAMES

On 16 October 2020, a special resolution in relation to the Change of
Company Name was proposed and duly passed at the special general
meeting of the Company to approve the change of the English name
of the Company from “Hong Kong Finance Investment Holding Group
Limited” to “Wisdom Wealth Resources Investment Holding Group
Limited” and the Chinese secondary name of the Company has been
changed from "EEA MK EEREBRBRAGE" t0 "EEERK
BEZEREBEBRRLQE". The stock short names of the Company for
trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange has been changed from
“HK FINANCE INV” to “WISDOM WEALTH" in English and from "&
BERER" to "EEZIRIEE" in Chinese with effect on 28 May
2021.The stock code of the Company remains unchanged as “7". The
website address of the Company will be changed from “www.hkfihg.
com” to “"WWRI007.com” with effect from 28 May 2021. Please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 21 May 2021 and the
circular dated 21 September 2020 relating to the change of company
names and stock short names.

PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Company obtained a term loan facility in an aggregate amount of
HK$250,000,000 for a term of 36 months in 2017. The loan principal
amount outstanding as at 31 December 2021 is HK$240,000,000.
Pursuant to the terms of the facility agreement, the outstanding
balances including both loan principal and accrued interest will
be repaid after receipt of net proceeds from disposal of Millhaven
Holdings Limited.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 108 staff
(2020: 105) and the total related staff cost amounted to HK$26.8
million (2020: HK$31.4 million). The Group's long-term success rests
primarily on the total integration of the company core value with the
basic staff interest. In order to attract and retain high caliber staff,
the Group provides competitive salary package and other benefits
including mandatory provident fund, medical schemes and bonus.
The future staff costs of the sales will be more directly linked to the
performance of business turnover and profit. The Group maintained
organic overhead expenses to support the basic operation and
dynamic expansion of its business enabling the Group to respond
flexibly with the changes of business environment.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of issued ordinary shares
of the Company was 4,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each (31
December 2020: 4,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each).

CHANGES OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

With effect from 22 March 2022, Mr. Yiu King Ming was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

During the financial year, the Company has adopted the Model
Code under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transaction. All Directors of the
Company have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company
that they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and the Code during the financial year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is aware of the importance that complying with the
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and maintaining good
corporate governance standards are important to the effective and
efficient operation of the Company. The Company has, therefore,
adopted and implemented relevant measures to ensure that the
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements are complied with and
that a high standard of corporate governance practices is maintained.
In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”), as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, throughout the accounting
period covered by the interim report except for the deviation from
code provision A.4.2. of the Code which every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. However, according to
Byelaws of the Company, the Chairman or Managing Director are not
subject to retirement by rotation or taken into account on determining
the number of Directors to retire. As continuation is a key factor to
the successful implementation of any long-term business plans, the
Board believes that the roles of Chairman and Managing Director
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership and
allow more effective planning and execution of long-term business
strategies, that the present arrangement is most beneficial to the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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EFhEREERBRB/N

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Dr. Hui Chi Ming GBS, 1P, aged 58, was appointed the Chairman and
an executive director on 15 November 2012 of the Company. He is
responsible for the implementation of the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. Dr. Hui received a Doctor Honoris
Causa in Economics and IFES Doctoris Honoris Causa from the
Institute of Far Eastern Studies, The Russian Academy of Sciences in
2002. The Department of Social Sciences of The Russian Academy
of Sciences had also awarded Dr. Hui the scientific degree of Doctor
Honoris Causa in 2005. Dr. Hui had over 10 years of experience in
the investment, exploration and exploitation of oil and gas business.
He has been the chairman of the board of over 20 companies
such as Hoifu Petroleum Group Limited (FlE A REBAERAT),
Madagascar Southern Petroleum Company Limited (F#ZhN&r 0
75 AHAE RA ) and Madagascar Northern Petroleum Company
Limited (FS3EMETMNIEH A MARAE) . From 2004 to 2010, Dr. Hui
was the chairman and an executive director of Sino Union Energy
Investment Group Limited, which was subsequently re-named as
Yanchang Petroleum International Limited, a company whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (stock code: 346) and engaged in the investment, exploration
and exploitation of oil and gas business. Dr. Hui was a member of
the 9th, 10th, 11th and 12th National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He was the chairman of
the Confucian Academy of Hong Kong, a standing committee member
of the All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce, the president
of Hong Kong Xian Trade Association Limited. He is the honorable
president of the Beijing Federation of Industry & Commerce, a
standing committee member of the Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce, the chief president of the Federation of Hong Kong
Guangdong Community Organisation and the president of the Hong
Kong General Association of International Investment. Dr. Hui was also
the Honorary Consul in Hong Kong of the Republic of Madagascar.
All these years, Dr. Hui has been actively participating in promoting
poverty alleviation and charity, and he has been awarded the China
Glory Society Medal for Poverty Alleviation (FEYEFE E X B
) and accredited as China Top Ten Poverty Alleviation Contributor

(2B + KB K 7T) by the government of the PRC. In recognition
of the outstanding contribution of Dr. Hui to poverty alleviation, the
International Minor Planet Naming Committee (BEIFR/NTEMRZEE
&) approved permanently naming the minor planet No. 5390 as “Hui
Chi Ming Planet”.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Neil Bush, aged 67, was appointed the Deputy Chairman and
an executive director on 15 November 2012 of the Company. He is
responsible for the implementation of the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. Mr. Bush graduated from Tulane
University with a bachelor’s degree in International Economics
and from the Tulane University Freeman School of Business with
a master’s degree in Business Administration. Mr. Bush had over
30 years of experience in domestic and international energy and
real estate business development. He formed oil companies which
explored oil resources in various states in the United States of
America and overseas. Mr. Bush has engaged in various international
business development activities with a focus on the PRC and Middle
East. Since 1975, Mr. Bush has traveled to the PRC over 140 times
and worked with numerous entities on a variety of projects including
real estate development, energy, automobile parts, sheet rock
manufacturing and paint production. From 7 December 2010 to 20
July 2012, Mr. Bush was a non-executive director of China Resources
and Transportation Group Limited, a company of which the shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 269). Since 22 April
2013, Mr. Neil Bush has been serving as the Non-Executive Chairman
on the board of SGX-ST Mainboard-listed SingHaiyi Group Limited, a
Singapore based real estate company. He is also the Chairman of the
Points of Light, a national charitable organisation formed by President
George H.W. Bush in 1989 that promotes citizen service through
volunteerism in communities all across America and increasingly
overseas. Mr. Bush serves as Chairman of the Barbara Bush Houston
Literacy Foundation, and on the boards of the Houston Salvation Army
and the Bush School of Government and Public Service.
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EFhEREERBRB/N

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Xu Jun Jia, aged 33, was appointed as an executive director on 1
January 2016. He graduated from Institute of International Relations
of Moscow University in 2014 with an expert degree. He is currently
the general manager of Siberian Energy Group, Inc. (F5{8 %25 A
JREEHE) , the general manager of Far East Oil Group Limited (&
L HEEARAT) and the general manager of Africa Resources
Group Limited GENEREBEBBRAE) . Mr. Xu is currently the
vice president of Hong Kong International Foundation for Poverty
Alleviation (HEEIFRXBE£E), and head of the Youth Committee
of Hong Kong General Association of International Investment (&
BEIFIE B4 E) . In recent years, he has played an active role
in professional investments in a number of deals in various sectors
such as oil and chemical, metal mining and financial securities, as
well as negotiations and decision making in merger and acquisition,
equity participation and controlling deals. As a result, he is fully
equipped with relevant professional knowledge and operating
experiences. Mr. Xu is fluent in English, Russia, Mandarin and
Cantonese. He is very familiar with oil and gas businesses between
Russia and the international market. Mr. Xu is the son of Dr. Hui Chi
Ming, the Chairman of the Company. He has been appointed as an
Administration Manager of the Company since 1 September 2014.

EE #)

BITEE (B

FIEEEE 3B R_B-—AF—H—BE
EEAPTEF N - S-—MEBENEH

T K 2 B PR B & 2 B (Institute of International
Relations of Moscow University) > /8 5 2
il o 1R IREFEEF 32 BE IR & B (Siberian Energy
Group, INC)ABKLIB BB A MER B R AT ELK
ERENEREEBRABIBKIE FFAELER
NATAERFEESZRAER -SEEARKE
éiﬁﬁﬁ%fﬁaé BEE AT BHRMSHES
BEEREEE  RERCI -EBRERE
mEaﬁ%%ﬁTH%ﬁH}ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ% DRRERRZS
EITRER MR lﬁt’?ﬁi%éﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬂ
o e R A B o R L IR R A B R B
ERERG BIFEATRENEEEMBZ
BHRER T REAR R ETETEHIT L
Z2RF O BZIE—NFEAE—BEEZEAR
NETEASIE o

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAT



Directors and Senior Management Profiles

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Cao Yu, aged 43, was appointed as an executive director on 1
January 2016, and being appointed as the managing director on 1
December 2020. He graduated from CERAM Sophia Antipolis with a
master degree in management. Mr. Cao has been the project manager
for listed companies and he was specialized in the operation and
coordination of the drilling and seismic engineering projects with
famous petroleum companies in China. Meanwhile, he was also
responsible for identifying suitable investors to establish joint venture
company for petroleum exploration projects. He has also worked in
the world’s largest energy efficiency management company and was
responsible for providing energy efficiency strategy in China region for
the group. Besides, Mr. Cao was the analyst in the headquarter of BNP
Paribas in France. His main duty was to provide financial and strategic
advice in the area of energy technology and he was responsible for
the merger and acquisition activities as well as financial planning
service. Mr. Cao has been engaged in management and analytical
work for many years and possesses the appropriate and professional
experience. He has been the manager of the development
department of the Company since September 2012.

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, aged 58. Mr. Lam is the founder of the Group.
He has extensive experience in the securities, futures, options, fund
management and financial advisory industry. His primarily focus
is to further develop the financial business in the Group. He is the
Chairman, Executive Director and Managing Director of Asia Tele-Net
and Technology Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 679). He is the
brother of Mr. Nam Kwok Lun.

Mr. Nam Kwok Lun, aged 63. He is a co-founder of the Group and is
in charge of the stockbroking, futures and options broking, securities
margin financing business, fund management and financial advisory
business. Mr. Nam has extensive experience in the securities, futures
and options, securities margin financing, fund management and
financial advisory industry. Mr. Nam is also the Deputy Chairman
and Executive Director of Asia Tele-Net and Technology Corporation
Limited (Stock Code: 679). He is the brother of Mr. Lam Kwok Hing.
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EFhEREERBRB/N

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Hui Ngok Lun, aged 26, graduated from Columbia University
in the United States with a master’s degree in Enterprise Risk
Management. Mr. Hui is currently the Managing Director of Longyuan
Xintiandi Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd., the General Manager of
African Union Resources Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd., and
the General Manager of Siberian Petroleum Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Hui
is also a Member of the Henan Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the Vice Chairman of
Hong Kong CPPCC Youth Federation, the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong
Volunteers Federation Foundation, the Deputy Director of Hong Kong
International Poverty Alleviation Foundation, and the Vice Chairman
of Hong Kong General Association of International Investment Youth
Association.

Mr. Hui has overseen and coordinated various oil and gas resources
projects, in addition to the risk management in respect of investment,
development and operation of copper and gold mine resources
projects. Mr. Hui is also actively involved in the investment decision-
making and risk management of diversified large-scale real estate
comprehensive development and operation projects. With his
expertise in project investment and management, Mr. Hui has
participated in the decision-making, operation and management
of several major project investments, mergers and acquisitions.
With respect to financial innovation, Mr. Hui has also added and
commenced new businesses in the financial and securities segments
of the Hong Kong Finance Investment Group.

Mr. Hui is the son of Dr. Hui Chi Ming, the Chairman of the Company,
and the younger brother of Mr. Xu Jun Jia, an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Hui has been appointed by the Company as the Chief
Risk Officer of the Hong Kong Finance Investment Group since 11
September 2018.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ngan Kam Biu Stanford, aged 44, holds a Master degree of Arts
in Quantitative Analysis for Business and a degree of Bachelor of
Accounting and Finance with Honours. He is a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Ngan has
over 15 years of experience in corporate management and finance,
accounting and company secretarial practice. He was a Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of Code Agriculture (Holdings)
Limited (Stock Code: 8153) previously.

Mr. Tam Chak Chi, aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 19 August 2019. He holds a bachelor’s degree
of commerce from the University of Toronto. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a member of each
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Global Management Accountant. Mr. Tam has more than
15 years of experience in providing accounting, auditing and financial
services and has served various senior positions at various private
and listed companies. Mr. Tam is currently an executive Director of My
Heart Bodibra Group Limited (stock code: 8297), an independent non-
executive director of Wealth Glory Holdings Limited (stock code: 8269)
and AL Group Limited (stock code: 8360), which are listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ma Kin Ling, aged 39, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 10 May 2019. He is currently the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Xinyang Maojian Group Limited
(stock code: 362), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and the independent non-executive director of SunCorp
Technologies Limited (stock code: 1063), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ma is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He graduated from
City University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor degree of Business
Administration (Honours) in Accountancy and Law. Prior to the joining
of the Group, he worked in reputable international accounting firms
and has over 10 years' experience in auditing and accounting.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continueq)

Mr. Yiu King Ming, aged 37, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 22 March 2022. He graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts (first-class
honors) degree with a major in Accountancy and a minor in Corporate
Finance. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and CPA Australia. Mr. Yiu has over 15 years of
experience in the accounting, financing, and auditing field. He was
a financial controller and company secretary of Shentong Robot
Education Group Company Limited (Stock Code: 8206) previously.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. PO Eric, aged 52 (appointed on 8 February 2022), is the Chief
Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and the Authorised
Representative of the Company. Mr. Po graduated from City University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in Business
Studies. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Po has over 18 years of experience in accounting, financing and
auditing field.

Mr. Fu Wing Kwok, Ewing, aged 52 (resigned on 8 February 2022),
was the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary. He was
responsible for the financial and secretarial affairs of the Group. Mr. Fu
joined the Company in December 2012. He holds a bachelor degree in
science with major in accounting of Bemidji State University, USA and
is a member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
has over 25 years of experience in auditing and accounting field.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Lap Kwan, aged 48, is the Director of Karl-Thomson
Securities Company Limited and is responsible for the daily operations
and implementation of the internal control procedures of the
Kwun Tong branch. He holds a Bachelor of Business (Banking and
Finance) degree from University of South Australia. He has extensive
experience in the securities, futures and options industry. He joined
the Group in July 1997.

Mr. Sung Wing Yiu, aged 65, is the Director of Karl-Thomson Securities
Company Limited. He is responsible for the management and
development of internet trading services, securities, futures and
other derivatives business of the Group. He holds a Bachelor of
Social Science degree in Government & Public Administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Sung
has extensive experience in the securities and futures industry and
held senior positions in regional financial institutions in Hong Kong. He
joined the Group in February 2001.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHRS

The Directors would like to present to shareholders their annual report
("Annual Report”) and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are (1) the trading of electronic products; (2) the
provision of financial services and (3) property investment. Particulars
of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 48 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s principal activities
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in
the Group's business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 8 to 23 of this Annual Report. This
discussion forms part of this report of the Directors.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review, financial performance and future
development of the Group'’s business are set out in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section from pages 8 to 23.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five Years Financial
Summary on pages 247 to 248 of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties including business risks,
capital risks and financial risks that may have different levels of impact
on the Group's financial performance, operations, business as well as
future prospects.

The business risk faced by the Group is set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report and the capital risk and financial risk
are set out in Note 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

EEMARSRREZHE_T_—F+-8
“+—HEFEZFR (TFH) RIEEZKE
MBwEK-

FEXR

K@T%&ﬁﬁﬁ“"j FEBEZEBEEDD

NEFERES ;QRHEMRH RO ER
iéfﬂK’AﬁI%W%”EZﬁI BN =R
WARMIFEA8 o

BREEBLAEMFIIMKRSRECAER ZETER
BrE—PmkON (BESFERREZE
ERBRIEERNZZRL U ESEEED
RIRAIA ?’fﬁzi«%T)TﬁquE%E%SIBEFE
HERESRENNANER - ENRLHEES
T;%E%Z-a‘ﬂﬁ

ES G|

$BEB HERRRAEEEBRALERE
LR RS2 (B R )

FRVHHBRRFEERSAEEFARRIFL
ZAMERRNEIRF247E2488 2 HF R H#E

Fo

FERBRAEEERR

ERABRRTHRENZCENAERMTE
R EBE - EBRARRISEIAREREZE
BB~ B A B R e B 7 L o

AEEABZEBRARENRE -LERER
BEREXRARMMBRRED A HNEEHH
KM FES 6 °

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAT



ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

We are attentive to consumption of natural resources and reduction
of pollution during the course of managing our businesses. It is our
goal to minimize our environmental impacts through recycling of
materials, encouragement of resources savings and reduce wastes.
The Group is committed to ensure our compliance with relevant
environmental protection laws and regulations. For further details on
performance of the Group on environmental aspects during the Year,
please refer to our Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group requires operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
to comply with the relevant laws and regulations in the territories in
which we operate. In 2021, there was a possible Breaches of Listing
Rules 13.46(2)(a), 13.46(2)(b), 13.48(1), 13.49(1) and 13.49(6):

Background

a. 0On 31 March 2021, the Company announced that the
publication of the 2020 Annual Results will be delayed as the
preparation of financial statements of certain major subsidiary
for the year ended 31 December 2020 has been delayed. As a
result, the Company failed to publish the 2020 Annual Results
and the 2020 Annual Report by 31 March 2021 and 30 April 2021
respectively.

b.  Subseqguently, the Company failed to publish the 2021 Interim
Results and the 2021 Interim Report by 31 August 2021 and 30
September 2021 respectively.

C. On 13 December 2021, the Company published the 2020 Annual
Results, which was more than 8 months after the deadline
under Rule 13.49(1).

d.  On29 December 2021, the Company published the 2021 Interim
Results, which was approximately 4 months after the deadline
under Rule 13.49(6).
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e.  0n 28 January 2022, the Company published the 2020 Annual
Report, which was approximately 9 months after the deadline
under Rule 13.46(2)(a).

f. On 23 February 2022, the Company published the 2021 Interim
Report, which was approximately 5 months after the deadline
under Rule 13.48(1).

g, 0On 3 March 2022, the Company held the annual general
meeting and its shareholders approved the 2020 Annual Report,
which was 8 months after the deadline under Rule 13.46(2)(b)
(i.e. 30 June 2021).

h.  Trading of the Company’s shares was suspended on 1 April
2021 and resumed on 30 December 2021.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited reminded the Company
that any breach of the Listing Rules is a serious matter. If there is a
breach in the future, enforcement action may be brought against the
Company.

On the other hand, during year 2021, the Company failed to
comply with the Listing Rule 3.10A, as it had less than one-third of
independent non- executive directors representing in the Board. After
appointment of Mr. Yiu King Ming as independent Non- Executive
Directors on 22 March 2022, the Company is in compliance with the
requirements of Rule 3.10(A) again

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Directors and other officers, for the time being acting in relation to
the affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the success of the Group's business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. During
the year, there were no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its key stakeholders that have a significant impact on the
Group. The Group will continue to ensure effective communication
and maintain good relationship with each of its key stakeholder.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 94 to 96 of the Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year (2020: nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019,
2020 and 2021 is set out on page 247 to 248 of the Annual Report.

FIXED ASSETS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in the fixed assets and investment properties of
the Group during the year are set out in note 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the convertible notes as disclosed in notes 40 to the financial
statements, no other equity-linked agreement entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2020 and 2021, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to the shareholders.

DONATION

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

—the largest supplier 23%
—five largest suppliers in aggregate 77%
Sales

— the largest customer 31%
—five largest customers in aggregate 89%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest suppliers and its five largest customers.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Dr. HUI Chi Ming GBS, 1P (Chairman)
Mr. BUSH Neil (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. XU Jun Jia

Mr. CAO Yu

Mr. LAM Kwok Hing MH., 1P

Mr. NAM Kwok Lun

Mr. Hui Ngok Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. NGAN Kam Biu Stanford

Mr. MA Kin Ling

Mr. TAM Chak Chi

Mr. Yiu King Ming (appointed on 22 March 2022)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from all
of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of them are independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Bye-laws 99 and 102 of the Company’s Bye-
laws, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation (save any Director holding office as Chairman or
Managing Director) at each annual general meeting and any additional
Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at the meeting. Therefore, Messrs. Hui Ngok Lun, Ngan
Kam Biu, Stanford, Tam Chak Chi and Ma Kin Ling retire from office
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment for a term of three years until terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by the Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company or in accordance with the
terms set out in the respective letters of appointment. Each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors is entitled to a director’s fee.

The Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting does not have a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical information of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 24 to 31 of the
Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a three-year term which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation. These service
contracts shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated by
either party with not less than three months’ prior written notice.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration committee of the Board considers and
recommends to the Board the remuneration of all Directors is subject
to regular monitoring by the remuneration committee to ensure that
the levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate.
Details of the Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration
are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company was entered or existed.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2021, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (with the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each of the Company

Report of the Directors
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Name of Directors Capacity shares held the Company
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Dr. Hui Chi Ming 6B, 1P (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 2,139,486,542 53.49%
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Note 1: These Shares included 954,000 Shares held by Wisdom On Holdings
Ltd., 277,926,000 Shares held by Hong Kong Finance Investment Limited,
407,187,143 Shares held by Hong Kong Finance Equity Management
Limited, 841,780,284 Shares held by Hong Kong Finance Equity
Investment Limited and 611,639,115 Shares held by Hong Kong Finance
Equity Holding Limited respectively.

Note 2: The issued share capital of Hong Kong Finance Investment Limited is
directly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming. The issued share capital
of Wisdom On Holdings Ltd., Hong Kong Finance Equity Management
Limited, Hong Kong Finance Equity Investment Limited and Hong Kong
Finance Equity Holding Limited are indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi
Ming GBS, LP.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

2. Ordinary shares in subsidiaries which are
wholly-owned

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors of the Company,
chief executive or their associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, at no time during the year
was the Company, its ultimate holding company or any subsidiaries of
its ultimate holding company a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS'
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

(@  During the year, the Group received commission income and
other securities dealing income from securities and futures
dealing of approximately HK$50,000 (2020: HK$49,000) from
director Mr. Nam Kwok Lun (2020: a director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS'
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
(Continued)

(b)y During the year, the Group received commission income
and other income from securities dealing of approximately
HK$17,000 (2020: HK$17,000) from Asia Tele-Net, in which two
directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun, have
controlling interests.

(c) At 31 December 2021, a director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun, advanced
approximately HK$64,772,000 (2020: HK$57,851,000) to
the Group. During the year, the Group paid finance costs of
HK$2,364,000 (2020: HK$2,614,000) to a director, Mr. Nam Kwok
Lun.

(d) At 31 December 2021, a director, Dr. Hui Chi Ming G.BS., J.P,
advanced approximately HK$161,225,000 (2020: HK$85,727,000)
to the Group. It is unsecured, repayable on demand and non-
interest bearing.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 31 May 2013, the Group leased from Gahood Holding Company
Limited, a company wholly-owned by Dr. Hui, the office space located
at Unit 9 (portion) and Units 10-12, 19th Floor, China Merchants
Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung
Wan, Hong Kong for an initial term of two years at a monthly rent of
HK$180,000. Such agreement was renewed in May 2015 and May
2017 respectively to extend the tenancy period for two years expiring
on 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2019 respectively at a monthly rent of
HK$200,000 and HK$210,000 respectively. The tenancy agreement
was further renewed and extended with the tenancy period
expiring on 30 November 2020 and the monthly rent was adjusted
to HK$210,000 until to 31 March 2021. The tenancy agreement was
further renewed by one year commenced from 1 April 2021 and
expired on 31 March 2022, monthly rent remain unchanged. On 1
April 2022, the tenancy agreement was renewed by two years at a
monthly rent of HK$200,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
(Continueq)

Five of these agreements were arm'’s length transactions and in the
usual and ordinary course of business of the Company and on normal
commercial terms which are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The annual cap amount for each of the financial years ended/
ending 31 December 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 are HK$2,520,000,
HK$2,520,000, HK$2,520,000, HK$2,520,000 and HK$2,520,000
respectively. The total amount of the transactions for the year ended
31 December 2021 was HK$2,520,000 (2020: HK$2,520,000).

Gahood is indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming, an executive
Director of the Company. Therefore, Gahood is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules.

According the Tenancy Agreements between Gahood and Shiny
Future constitutes continuing connected transactions for both
Gahood and Shiny Future under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to Rule 14A.76 (1) of the Listing Rules, such Extended
Tenancy Agreement is fully exempt from shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements.

Other than as disclosed above, there was no other transaction which
need to be disclosed as a connected transaction in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules and no contract of significance
to which the Company, its ultimate holding company or any
subsidiaries of its ultimate holding company was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that the following shareholder had notified the Company of

relevant interests in the issued share capital of the Company.

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10

each of the Company
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Percentage of
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Name of shareholder Capacity shares held Company
Frs 2817 1= VNG
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Hong Kong Finance Equity Beneficial owner 407,187,143 10.18%
Management Limited (Note 1)
SETMBEEEERAT (Wat1) BmEBA
Hong Kong Finance Equity Beneficial owner 841,780,284 21.04%
Investment Limited (Note 7)
BEATMRERERRAS #:E1) BumEAA
Hong Kong Finance Equity Beneficial owner 611,639,115 15.29%
Holding Limited (Note 1)
BEETRRETERBRAB Wt1) BEEBA
Hong Kong Finance Investment Limited Beneficial owner 277,926,000 6.95%
(Note 1)
SEEMBERERLE W5t1) EmEAA
Wisdom On Holdings Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 954,000 0.02%

Wisdom On Holdings Limited (#73%7)

Note 1. The entire issued share capital are directly or indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui

Chi Ming.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each of the Company (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, no person (other than the Directors of the
Company whose interests are set out under the heading “Directors’
Interests in Shares” above) had an interest or a short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or their respective
associates had any business or interests in business, apart from the
business of the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the date
of this Annual Report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group's retirement benefits scheme are set out in note
45 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company had complied with all the applicable code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules during the year. The details of the Group's
compliance with the Code is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report from pages 46 to 68 of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited Certified Public Accountants (“Elite
Partners”) resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 8 February 2022 and Cheng & Cheng Limited Certified Public
Accountants (“Cheng & Cheng"”) was then appointed as the auditor of
the Company following the resignation of Elite Partners as the auditor
of the Company. Cheng & Cheng will hold office until the conclusion of
the next annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution for re-
appointement of Cheng & Cheng as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the AGM.

By Order of the Board

Dr. Hui Chi Ming, 6Bs, )P
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022

Report of the Directors
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The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital to
the success of the Group and sustains development of the Group. The
Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standard and practices with an emphasis on integrity, transparency
and independence. The board of directors (the “Board”) believes
that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the financial year of 2021, the Company has complied with
most of the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), save for the following:

1. The Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director of the
Company is not subject to retirement by rotation pursuant to
Byelaw 99 of the Company's Bye-laws.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure they continue to meet the requirements of the Code during
the year ended 31 December 2021. The key corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company are summarised in this
report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transaction.

To the specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed
that they had complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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THE BOARD
Responsibilities

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises seven
executive Directors, namely, Dr. Hui Chi Ming, G.8.s., P, Mr. Neil Bush,
Mr. Cao Yu, Mr. Xu Jun Jia, Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, MH., .p, Mr. Nam Kwok
Lun and Mr. Hui Ngok Lun; and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Ngan Kam Biu, Stanford, Mr. Tam Chak Chi and
Mr. Ma Kin Ling and Mr. Yiu King Ming. Biographical details, which
include relationships among members of the Board, are provided
in the “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” section of the
Annual Report. The composition of the Board is well balanced with
the Directors having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate
and strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group. The Executive Directors and Independent Non-
Executive Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to the
Company.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of management while day-to-day
management of the Group is delegated to the management team
of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking the Board is
responsible for:

o Formulating the Group's long term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof

o Approval of interim and year end dividend

o Reviewing and approving the annual and interim reports
o Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance

o Monitoring the performance of the management

o Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and assets
disposal

o Developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Responsibilities (Continued)

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing
day-to-day operations, business strategies and management of the
Group's businesses to the Executive Directors, senior management
and certain specific responsibilities to the Board committees. The
Board is committed to making decisions in the best interests of both
the Company and its shareholders.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which give a true and
fair view of the Group's consolidated financial position in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The statement by the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements of the Group
is set out on pages 84 to 93 in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and service of the Company Secretary to
ensure Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

Composition
The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience

necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.
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THE BOARD (Continued) 555G B
Composition (Continued) #rk ()
As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised 11 RAFHRHH - EFTHI1TEHEMRM > BFELL

members, including 7 Executive Directors and 4 Independent Non-  F7Z2HITEERALBILIFRNITESE
executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Directors: HITESE :

Dr. HUI Chi Ming .85, L. (Chairmar) FrE g tcss, 1p (£/E)

Mr. BUSH Neil (Deputy Chairman) [ET o B0k (BIE/E)

Mr. XU Jun Jia FIERTA

Mr. CAO Yu (Managing Director, appointed on 1 December 2019) BREL (BEFELLE
ATE-NEFE+BE—HEZMD

Mr. LAM Kwok Hing M.H., 1P BEEEE ST AEMH, 1P

Mr. NAM Kwok Lun EEfmTE

Mr. Hui Ngok Lun Gl ks

Independent Non-Executive Directors: BUIFMITESE

Mr. NGAN Kam Biu Stanford ekl

Mr. MA Kin Ling EMRERE

Mr. TAM Chak Chi BEZEE

Mr. Yiu King Ming (appointed on 22 March 2022) EHRArE (W2 2F=A"+"HEZMD

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 24 to 30. EEEREFIBHNE24EINE-
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board complied
with the Rules 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors, one of the
independent non-executive directors has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related finance management expertise.
However, the proportion of the INED constitutes a deviation from
the Rules 3.10 (A) (as the independent non-executive directors
representing less than one-third of the board).

Mr. Ngan Kam Biu standford remained as independent Non-Executive
Directors from 11 June 2018. Following on the resignation of Chen
Wei-Ming Eric, Mr. Yim Kai Pung and Mr. Ng Chi Kin David on 25
February, 10 May and 19 August 2019 respectively as independent
Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Chan Tsang Mo, Mr. Ma Kin Ling and
Mr. Tam Chak Chi subsequently appointed as an independent Non-
Executive Directors on the same days respectively. Mr. Chan Tsang
Mo resigned on 25 May 2020 at last. Mr. Yiu King Ming was appointed
as independent Non-Executive Directors on 22 March 2022 and the
Ccompany is in compliance with the requirements of Rule 3.10(A) of
the Listing Rules again after appointment of Mr. Yiu King Ming.

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a
specific term of three years. They are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election provisions of the Bye-laws.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out within Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continued)

The Bye-laws of the Company requires that one-third (if the number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) of the Directors (including executive and non-executive
directors) shall retire by rotation each year. The Directors to retire by
rotation shall include any Director who wishes to retire and not to
offer himself for re-election and those of the other Directors who have
been longest in office since their election or re-election. A retiring
Director is eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the next general meeting
of members after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting and be eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed
pursuant to the aforesaid Bye-law shall not be taken into account in
determining which particular Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation.

Under the code provisions A.4.2. of the Code, every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. However, according to
Bye-Laws of the Company, the Chairman or Managing Director are not
subject to retirement by rotation or taken into account on determining
the number of Directors to retire. This constitutes a deviation from
code provision A.4.2. of the Code. As continuation is a key factor to
the successful implementation of any long-term business plans, the
Board believes that the roles of Chairman and Managing Director
provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allow
more effective planning and execution of long-term business
strategies, that the present arrangement is most beneficial to the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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THE BOARD (Continued) EE5Y @)
Board Meetings and General Meeting EECTERRREKRY
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, 18 Board meetings and
one annual general meeting ("AGM") was held with details of the

52

Directors’ attendance set out below:

BERG))  ARAEFZHESBRIWT

Annual
General
Board Meeting
Exg KRRBFAE
Executive Directors: HITES:
Dr. HUI Chi Ming G&s., 1P (Chairman) FFE g1 oS, P (F/E) 18/18 11
Mr. BUSH Neil (Deputy Chairmarn) Ef e L% BIFE) 1/18 0/1
Mr. XU Jun Jia FliEERE 2/18 0/1
Mr. CAO Yu (Managing Director, BEFRE (%55 ABASTE »
appointed on 1 December 2020) RIZZEF+ZF—RHEZRD 18/18 11
Mr. LAM Kwok Hing m.H., 1P EERE L EMH, IP 16/18 01
Mr. NAM Kwok Lun EEfmEE 16/18 11
FEBEYT (WEZHF
Mr. Hui Ngok Lun (appointed on 16 July 2020) TtB+/HEZD) 10/18 1/
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BRIFPTES:
Mr. NGAN Kam Biu Stanford b 18/18 11
Mr. MA Kin Ling BRERE WZZ—NEF 18/18 1/1
(appointed on 10 May 2019) HE+HEZD
Mr. TAM Chak Chi BEZRE RZE2—NE 18/18 11
(appointed on 19 August 2019) NB+HLBEZE
M. Yiu King Ming (appointed on 22 March 2022) BEHRELLE WZEF=8 N/A R FR N/A RiEF
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Directors’ Training

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company would provide a comprehensive introduction
package covering the summary of the responsibilities and liabilities
of a director of a Hong Kong listed company, the Company’s
constitutional documents and the Guides on Directors’ Duties issued
by the Companies Registry to each newly appointed Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the latest changes
and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices
and other regulatory regime to the Directors with written materials, as
well as organizes seminars on the professional knowledge and latest
development of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties
and responsibilities.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, each of the newly appointed
Directors participated in the director’s induction training conducted
by the lawyer.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer are held separately by two individuals to ensure their
respective independence, accountability and responsibility. The
Chairman is responsible for overseeing the function of the Board
and formulating overall strategies and policies of the Company. The
Managing Director is responsible for managing the Group's business
and overall operations. The day-to-day running of the Company is
delegated to the management with divisional heads responsible for
different aspects of the business.

The Chairman shall ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that Directors receive
adequate information, which must be complete and reliable, in a
timely manner.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders for the wellbeing and success of
the Company.

To enhance the effectiveness of the management of the Company,
the Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee to oversee corresponding aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company have defined written
terms of reference.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on August 2000 and comprises
three Board members, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee has adopted the same term of
reference, which describes the authority and duties of the Committee,
as quoted under code provision C.3.3 of the Code. The written terms
of reference which describe the authority and duties of the Audit
Committee were adopted on August 2000 and revised on 1 March
2012 to conform to the provisions of the Code, a copy of which is
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange on 2
March 2012.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the following duties:

o to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the audit fees and the terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of their resignation or
dismissal,

o to monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards, and to discuss with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations
before the audit commences,

o to monitor integrity of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, annual report, accounts and the half-year report,
and to review significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

o to oversee the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures; and

o to review compliance with regulatory and legal requirements by
the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least four times each year. In 2021,
the Audit Committee held 10 meetings which include considering the
annual results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2020 and the interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended
30 June 2021, discussing with the Company's auditor on the existing
internal control and meetings regarding the resumption progress of
the Company. The Audit Committee also provides in important link
between the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming
within the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the auditors.

Subsequent to the financial year end, the Audit Committee has
reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021, including the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and recommended
them to the Board for approval.

There were five meetings held during the year, details of attendance
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are set out below: FIa0F

Number of meetings GEAH 5

Audit Committee members: EZEEENE
Mr. Tam Chak Chi (Chairman of Audit Committee) BEZNE (EREESFE) 10/10
Mr. Ma Kin Ling ERERE 10/10
Mr. NGAN Kam Biu Stanford ki) i e 10/10
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 27 March 2012 and is composed of
one executive director and two independent non-executive directors,
namely Dr. Hui Chi Ming, c.B.s., 1. (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Tam Chak Chi and Mr. Ma Kin Ling.

In order to comply with the Code, the Board adopted terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee on 27 March 2012 and the
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on 28 March 2012.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size, composition and diversity (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy; to identify and nominate qualified
individuals for appointment as additional directors or to fill Board
vacancies as and when they arise, and to make recommendations to
the Board on matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession plan for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy to set out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. According to the Board
diversity policy, the Board takes into account various elements
of diversity including but not limited to age, gender, cultural and
educational background, skills, professional knowledge and industry
experience in determining the appointment and reappointment of the
Directors and proposed candidates. All Directors appointments are
based on meritocracy and due regard is given to the Board's diversity
to ensure the Company can obtain the benefits of such diversity. The
nomination committee is responsible for the monitoring and review of
the policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

During the year, the nomination committee reviewed the composition
of the Board. After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and
experience to the Company’s business, the Nomination Committee
confirmed that the existing Board was appropriately structured and
no change was required. However, the Nomination Committee also
concluded that one more independent non-executive director shall be
appointed so as to re-comply with Rules 3.10(A) of the listing rules.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once per year
according to its terms of reference. Four Nomination Committee
meetings were held during the year, details of attendance are set out
below:
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Number of meetings BERH 4
Nomination Committee members: RBEEENE
Dr. HUI Chi Ming, GBS, 1P FFS 8518, 6B, P 4/4
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (EHRZEEF/E)
Mr. Tam Chak Chi EEZAE 4/4
Mr. Ma Kin Ling ERELE 4/4

During the year, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board of Directors of the
Company and the retirement and re-appointment arrangement of the
Directors in the Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 28
July 2005 with terms of reference substantially the same as those
contained in code provision B.1.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code. The written terms of reference which describe the authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee were adopted on 28 July
2005 and revised on 1 March 2012 to conform to the provisions of
the Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange. A majority of the members of the Remuneration
Committee is Independent Non-executive Directors and members of
the Committee are listed as below.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

In accordance with the code provision B.1.2 (c)(ii) of the Corporate
Governance Code, the Remuneration Committee is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee takes into consideration factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions elsewhere in
the Group and the desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for the
following duties:

o to determine the policy for the remuneration of executive
directors, assessing performance of executive directors and
approving the terms of executive directors’ service contracts;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’'s
policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration and to place recommendations before the Board
concerning the total remuneration and/or benefits granted to
the Directors from time to time;

o to review and approve the senior management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time;

o to performs an advisory role to the Board and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management, with
the Board retaining the final authority to approve executive
directors’ and senior management’s remuneration;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration on
independent non-executive directors;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

o to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive; and

o to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation payment
is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

The overriding objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure that
the Company is able to attract, retain, and motivate a high-calibre
team which is essential to the success of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once each year.
During the year, four meetings were held to consider and approve the
remuneration of all Directors and senior management.

Four Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the year,
details of attendance are set out below:
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Number of meetings BERE 4
Remuneration Committee members: FNEZEEmE
Mr. Ma Kin Ling BRERSE 4/4
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee) FWES & F/%)
Mr. Tam Chak Chi BEZAE 4/4
Mr. Hui Ngok Lun FrEBSTE 4/4

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
the existing remuneration policies of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

(i)  To develop and review the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

(i) To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(i) To review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

(iv)  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
directors of the Group; and

(v)  To review the Group’s compliance with the code of corporate
governance and disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year, the Board approved the terms of reference of the
Board and the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, the
shareholder communication policy, shareholder enquiry procedures
and special request procedures.

TEELRRS

EEERMAE

EEEESHI AR ZEEEARRILET
DUFEEERRF

(iif)

(iv)

B R AEBNEEEARRRE
o Wi R

B REREEASREERBNEINIRE
BEEER

B RERTEENHRRERTSA
ERRRAINER WER) ;

el B REREANEAEEEERS
REENTATRERES WA) ; &

B AERHEEEATIREEE SR
SRRBEERNEGRER -

FRN EFCEMEEFTECHELE ERE

88

RBLEEGRFMEE G BT BE

HE RRBEHR RREARFRFHIHENK
BRFe

Annual Report 2021 « —Z ——fF 4R

61



Corporate Governance Report
EEERAHRS

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditors of the Group, Cheng&Cheng Limited,

Certified Public Accountants, is set out as follow:

Services Rendered

B EmRYEN =
BE_Z_—F+t-B=t+—HLFE B
JERAEENERUT SR G BB A
RAT BAEG D) M RIWT

Fees paid/payable

Friz (it AR 7% Bt EEHER
HK$'000

TFHET
Audit services EEARTS 1,900
Other assurance services HA# 5 R 400

The audit committee has expressed its views to the Board that the
level of fees paid/payable to the Company to the Company’s external
auditors for annual audit services is reasonable. There has been no
major disagreement between the auditors and the management of
the Company during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Po Eric, the secretary of the Company whose biography details
are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profiles” in this Annual Report, confirmed that he had attained no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended
31 December 2021.

LIABILITY INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has not yet arranged insurance cover in respect of
legal action against its directors as the Board considers that the Board
adopts prudent management policy. The needs for insurance policy
will be reviewed from time to time.
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DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibilities for:

(i) overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and

(i) selecting suitable accounting policies and applying the selected
accounting policies consistently with the support of reasonable
and prudent judgement and estimates.

The statement by auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 84 to 93 of the
Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group established
and maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external advisor
of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group's assets and stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle the all significant risks associate with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to response the risks result from significant change of business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continuedq)

The management would identify the risks associate with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors and
events which include political, economic, technology, environmental,
social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed and prioritised
based on their relevant impact and occurrence opportunity. The
relevant risk management strategy would be applied to each type of
risks according to the assessment results, type of risk management
strategy has been listed as follow:

- Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk or
allocate to different location or product or market; and

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the Group
and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks. The risk
management and internal control system are design to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has engaged an
external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit function to
ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk management and
internal control system of the Group. There is no significant deficiency
and weakness on the internal control system has been identified by
the external advisory firm for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2021, the
risk management and internal control system and procedures of the
Group, covering all material controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions were
reasonably effective and adequate.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

An annual general meeting shall be held in every year. General
meetings which are not annual general meetings are known as special
general meetings ("SGM") as referred to in the procedures described
below. These procedures are subject to the bye-laws of the Company,
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”) and
applicable legislation and regulations.

Convening of SGM on requisition of shareholders

In accordance with the Companies Act registered Shareholder(s)
holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the
Company as at the date of the deposit of the requisition shall have the
right to submit a written requisition requiring a SGM to be convened
by the Board.

The written requisition (i) must state the purposes(s) of the meeting,
and (ii) must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
Company's registered office in Bermuda, and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists. To
ensure that the requisition is received by the Company at the earliest
opportunity, the requisitionists are urged to deposit also a copy of
the signed requisition at the Company's principal place of business in
Hong Kong (for the attention of the board of directors or the company
secretary).

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene an SGM within 21 days
from the date of deposit of the requisition, the requisitionist(s) (or any
of them representing more than one-half of their total voting rights)
may himself/themselves convene an SGM, which must be held within
3 months of the date of deposit of the requisition. The SGM must be
convened by the requisitionist(s) in the same manner as nearly as
possible as that in which SGM is to be convened by the Directors.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)
Putting forward proposals at general meetings

In accordance with Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act, the
registered Shareholders are entitled to putting forward a proposal at a
general meeting if:

(@ they represent not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total
voting rights of the Company as at the date of the deposit of the
requisition; or

(b)  there are not less than 100 registered Shareholders.

The written requisition stating the resolutions is duly signed by the
registered Shareholder(s) concerned, accompanied by a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in the proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company.

Upon receipt of a valid written requisition, the Company shall take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, and the
Shareholders concerned shall be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company'’s branch share registrar, Tricor standard Limited at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may send written enquiries, either by post, by facsimiles
or by email, together with his/her contact details, such as postal
address, email or fax, addressing to the head office of the Company at
the following address or facsimile number or via email:

Address: Units 1910-12, 19/F China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587-7807

Email: ericpo@wwri007.com
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)
Putting forward enquiries to the Board (Continued)

All enquiries shall be collected by the Company Secretary who
shall report to the Executive Directors periodically on the enquiries
collected. The Executive Directors shall review the enquiries and
assign different kinds of enquiries to appropriate division head/
manager for answering. After receiving the answers of all enquiries
from the relevant division head/manager, the Company Secretary will
collect the answers for the Executive Directors’ review and approval.
The Company Secretary shall then be authorized by the Executive
Directors to reply all enquiries in writing.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its activities to
those with a legitimate interest and to respond to their questions. In
addition, questions received from the general public and individual
shareholders are answered promptly. In all cases great care is taken to
ensure that no price-sensitive information is disclosed selectively.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

No significant changes to the Company’s constitutional documents
were made during the year.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Board is responsible for ensuring shareholder communications
are adequate and appropriate and based on transparency and
sound corporate governance principles. The Company adopted a
Shareholders Communication Policy on 1 March 2012 which aims
to present a clear, balanced and comprehensive assessment of our
financial position and operational status by providing shareholders
and other stakeholders with information in a timely and transparent
manner. The Company will communicate to shareholders through
written information and electronic communication as follows:

Annual and interim reports

o Disclosures made to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

o Notice and circular of general meetings

o Annual general meeting, where the external auditor is available
to answer questions about the audit

o Corporate website: WWRIO07.com

o Direct enquiry sent to the Company
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE GROUP

Wisdom Wealth Resources Investment Holding Group Limited (the
“Company”; or together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we") is
principally engaged in (i) trading business; (i) oil and gas business; (iii)
financial business; and (iv) property investment.

ABOUT THE REPORT

We are pleased to present our Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report (the “Report”). The Report focuses on providing an
overview of our ESG policies, measures and performance and allows
stakeholders to understand the sustainable development progress of
the Group.

Scope and Reporting Period

The Report specifies the performance of the Group from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”). Due to the
Company's materiality consideration, the performance evaluation and
statistics of environmental key performance indicators (“KPIs”) only
covers the trading segment in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). The performance evaluation and statistics disclosure of social
KPIs summarize the performance of the whole Group.

Reporting Standard

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIB LB RERHRS

Reporting Principles

The following four reporting principles underpin the preparation of the
Report:

o Materiality: Material ESG issues have been identified by
considering business nature and development.

o Quantitative: KPIs and comparative figures have been
disclosed quantitatively where appropriate.

o Balance: The Group's performance has been presented in an
unbiased manner.

o Consistency: Consistent statistical methodologies have been
applied for meaningful comparisons of ESG data overtime. In
case of any changes in the reporting scope or methodologies,
they shall be explained for the reference of stakeholders.

Access to the Report

The Report is published in both Chinese and English. It is available
for download at the website of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) and the official website of the Group
(www.wwri007.com). If there is any conflict or discrepancy, the English
version shall prevail.
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Environmental, Social and Govermance Report

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

The Board of Director (the “Board”), as the highest level of the
Group’s corporate governance structure, is principally responsible
for decision-making on ESG-related issues, including but not limited
to identifying, analyzing, evaluating, prioritizing, and managing the
key risks in relation to daily operations and ESG, as well as exploring
potential opportunities. The Board holds full accountability of ESG-
related policies and targets which will be reviewed and discussed
in Board meetings. The Board is also responsible to the authenticity,
accuracy and comprehensiveness of the Report. We have engaged
an independent consultant, Riskory Consultancy Limited, to assist the
Group in preparing the ESG Report and providing ESG-related advisory
services.

For other issues in relation to corporate governance, please refer to
the “Corporate Governance Report” in the Group’s Annual Report
2021.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group has established environmental policies and has
communicated measurable environmental objectives to employees.
We actively encourages staffs to protect the environment through
training, education and communication. The Group is committed
to continuously improving its environmental and sustainability
performance.

We act in compliance with the laws and regulation in relation to
environmental protection and pollution control, including but not
limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC and Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Wastes.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulation in relation to
air and greenhouse gas emission, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste that have a
significant impact on the Group.
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RIE-HERELSHRS

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") Emissions BERIEEBEKR

The main source of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions is derived HEBBEREHEMNEERRAINEEH 2
from indirect emission from purchased electricity emissions (Scope  RIFEHER (B1[E —) - NIREHIR » REB N ZE
2). During the Reporting Period, the operation of the Group doesnot TEESFRAEATRSEAY A EEZRERRE
involve in any production of material air pollutants and direct GHG ~ HER o SR &S AR BE BB T ©

emissions. The emissions data of the Reporting Period as follows:

Unit 2021 2020
B B TETEE
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) Tonnes COze! 5.42 5.93
REREBEEYN EED) M —EEREE
Intensity kg CO2e'/million HKS revenue 10.37 5.85
BE FRIEERESE BEBTNE

Note 1: CO2e is defined as carbon dioxide equivalent, whichisaterm i1 : &R EEAHMICAERENERE
for describing greenhouse gases in a common unit. fif

Waste Management EEEYER

During the Reporting Period, the operation of the Group does RREHE  FEENEETEEETENABE
not involve in any production of hazardous waste and packaging EEY ke EMK KEBFELENEEZES
materials. Non-hazardous wastes including domestic wastes, food ¥ BIFEEENR - BYHIRLBRE IR FEE
wastes and plastics were produced. The above wastes would be  RFEHEEH LR EEYETEE - RS HM
disposed of by the Group to disposal services provider. The relevant  BIARRASUIEW T :

data of the Reporting Period as follows:

Unit 2021 2020
i==Riri T —F —ETEF
Total non-hazardous waste kg 75 75
mEBEEYRE T
Intensity kg/million HKS revenue 0.14 0.08
BE TR/ BEBTUE
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Environmental, Social and Govermance Report

The Group is committed to properly handling and reducing emissions
and waste by implementing several measures. We encourage staff
to make good use of electronic documents and require staff to use
recycle paper when printing internal documents. We also advocate
the use of double-sided printing and photocopying and encourage
reusing single-sided paper to reduce paper consumption.

Energy Consumption

The Group considered that the efficient use of resources is not only
the key to efficient productions but also the key to the Group’s
attribution to the environmental-friendly strategy. The total energy
consumption of the Group is mainly indirect and insubstantial since all
energy resources are consumed for the offices’ operation. The energy
consumption data of the Reporting Period as follows:

IRIF - ERERRS

FERRNBERNSEERUAZERIE I
BOFBRERY RAZBMETEMRAEFX
o TREETATNRNBXHRERIBE
Mo HPITREEREEITEN RGN W E
& A EE AR LUR D AR SR B #E ©

RERH FE

FEERR BRI BERTERESNEER
B TRAEEBMIR MRS - BILPR
BERERERHOANMAEEE  ZEBENER
HERETEABBERIFER -REHABAEE
ROEFEBENT

Unit 2021 2020
==X} —EZ—F ZEIEF
Total indirect energy consumption kwh
(Purchased electricity) 8,880 9,720
BiERERHFERE (INEE ) TR
Intensity kwh/million HK$ revenue 17.00 9.60
BE FEE BEBxlE

We aim to enhance the energy efficiency and manage the electricity
reduction at sources by implementing the following initiatives during
the Reporting Period:

o Switch off lights and air-conditioning in the meeting room and
computers at workstations where not in use;

o Select the best configuration for air-conditioning control
programme, based on in-door requirement and out-door
condition; and

o Encourage teleconference and internet meeting practices to
avoid unnecessary travel.

AR EEPEEEU T 5ERRER
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IRIB LB RERHRS

Water Consumption

The Group is committed to reducing unnecessary water consumption
since water is the precious resources in the world. We will actively
consider implementing relevant measures in relation to reducing

Ak

water consumption in the future. The water consumption data of the

Reporting Period as follows:

KERZHALESHNER ZEBR AL
TR EHAK RARKERIBEEEZEER
B FRIKBIFE T - SRS HARE R A K BURID T -

Unit 2021 2020
B (i -5 “BIEHF
Total water consumption m?3 72 96
FKiEE A K
Intensity m3/million HK$ revenue 0.14 0.09
BE VAR BEBT G

During the Reporting Period, the Group does not encounter any issue

in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. BE IR RE -
Environmental and Natural Resources IRIEKRBAER

The Group would continue to adopt green office practices to
reduce natural resource consumption and the adverse impacts on
the environment, and the Group drives to achieve higher energy

efficiency and reduce emission by reducing consumption and  S8ERME KB/ HER o

adopting low resources alternatives.

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAT
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Climate Change

Climate change is one of the most significant and urgent challenges
in recent decades. As a responsible enterprise, we recognize the
severity of climate change. In the coming future, we will continuously
monitor the potential risks and opportunities towards climate change
and work on implementing relevant measures to enhance our
environmental performance. We will strive to optimizing our business
operations, achieving greater energy efficiency, and securing value
chain alternatives to cope with climate change and global warming.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group believes that one of the key aspects of its success is to
maintain good relationship with employees. The Group provides
competitive employee benefits and comprehensive training
programmes in order to encourage employees to achieve their
potential and put their abilities into good use. We strictly comply
with the relevant labour laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the Labour Law of the PRC, Labour Contract Law of the
PRC, Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Law of Hong Kong) and
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608 of the Law of Hong Kong).

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare that have a significant impact on the
Group.

IRIF - ERERRS
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IRIF - EREBHRS

Total Workforce and Turnover Rate
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 108 employees

which includes 82 full-time employees and 26 part-time employees.
The demographics of the Group’s workforce was as follows:

1EEIWL‘.\§&5 %

N B —F+_A=+—H K~EEHF108
HEE HPR2URERES 268D FHIE
B-AERERAREIEOT -

Employee Turnover

Number of Employees Rate
BEAH BERKE

By gender 2% RE 5
Male B 73 19.2%
Female g 35 17.1%
By age group WHERERNZ D
30 or below 30RR I LLT 30 13.3%
31-50 31E505% 51 7.8%
51 or above 51 s £ 27 44.4%
By geographical location it & 815
The PRC FRE 86 18.6%
Hong Kong 58 22 18.2%
Employment =&

Our staffs at all levels are the valuable assets, and we owe our
success to their effort. Their local experiences and knowledge have
assisted the Group to maintain the long-term relationship with major
stakeholders in the various jurisdiction.

We have implemented the practices and policies in relation to
compensation and dismissal, fair recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, benefits and welfares, equal opportunities,
diversity, and anti-discrimination to ensure the employees’ rights
and benefits. Every staff of the Group has signed the employment
contract with the Group, which has been fully complied with the local
employment law and regulations. The management would frequently
review the Group’s remuneration policy in relation to relevant market
standards.

EIRHMNEETE RAAIRNET
MEH - BINMAEERRMNB B AERA
TR ZERENETEN mBMEERTRERM
o
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The Group also aims to promote the diversity of the workforce,
including age, gender and nationality, as well as the culture of equal
opportunity. We welcome people from any age range to join the Group
as long as they are keen to learn and participate.

The Group’s employees work under a 40-hour standard per week. We
maintain a holiday policy and travel policy, such as annual vacation
leave, compensation leave, maternity leave, personal leave, and sick
leave.

Health and Safety

With respect to occupational safety and health management, the
Group complied with all the applicable laws and regulations including
but not limited to the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Occupational Diseases. To mitigate workplace incidents and
strengthen the health care for employees who have suffered from a
workplace incident, the Group has established a staff handbook which
included sufficient policies on the safety and every member would
require to follow the safety instruction. The workplace is equipped
with fire and safety equipment to prevent the outbreak of fire accident
and the fire facilities have been regularly checked.

With the health and safety measures, there were no work-related
injuries or fatalities recorded for the years ended 31 December
2021, 2020, and 2019. No lost days due to work-related injuries was
reported in the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group in relation to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

IRIF - ERERRS

FEERTRNEEBLZ UL (BEFE %R
KRB U EEFERE L HAEMLHE
SERZENEANFEBALINALRER-

FEBBTRERESBEILFIOVNFNRERE -
HARARBRERAEERR BREFKER A
HIRA S ER - FBREBRC

BREAZE

TREZE2RBRREESE SEBEESETH
BEBRERIOER BREEFTRI(FEAR
HMBBERPEZE) o BB TR ESR KR
MAEHREXTIFEMERZENREZEBRR
B AEBERUSIFM EFEaREZE
REABR 8B TRETREIES - TIFHFR
REHDRZ2RE > U IEEENKEL I
TE Rt B H B &R i

HRERREERZERER BE-_T - —F
TECERERIFE-AFTZA=+—HLF
B AERTEFFTRTITHRTHBER K&
ERHESHETER THEATFEH-

RBREME 2EBTANTENREERE
BEHZ2TFREAMFERERSBERS
FEBERRER BHAEBEERTEDN

1B e

Annual Report 2021 « —Z ——fF 4R

77



78

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIB LB RERHRS

Development and Training

The Group has always believed that employees’ development
plays the fundamental role in placing a solid ground for business
growth. We aims to regularly upgrade staffs’ professional skills
and knowledge, standards, and integrated abilities. The Group also
motivates employees’ job enthusiasm to face challenges, thereby
creating greater corporate value and future development.

The Group has various internal and external training programmes.
New employees are also provided with on-board training to help
faster adapt to the operations of the Group. During the Reporting
Period, the Group provided first-aid training to the frontline staff in the
hotel of Madagascar.

The training and development data in the Reporting Period as follows:

25 R A

FEEBKBEGE BEIEREAEBFERETE
RENER - RMARNERRABIZEER
FERAHE N RERGEEED - AEBRTHERE
ZTREVE RS EMAIEESHNEEE
BERERBHHRKE R

A5 [ I E 2 | A BF K 0 BB 15 Al 5t 8 o TR AFITR
AW EESREARBEI EPREETREEE
EEZEE - RNRESHME 2EBRFEMAM
BEB— R B TR sl -

REBSHABNEIIRERBEOT

Average training hours

Percentage of completed per
employee trained employee
ZilES BRESR
B ZE BTG EF R
By gender MR 52
Male B 57.5% 3
Female % 57.1% 1
By employee category KESENZ 52
Senior management SHREIRE 33.3%
Middle management iR EIEE 421% 3
General staff ZmBT 64.9%
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Labour Standards

It is always the Group’s policy to prohibit to employ any staffs who is
under the legal work age for protecting minors. The labour standards
may vary in different jurisdictions that the Group has operated. The
Group complies with relevant laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the Labour Contract Law of the PRC.

Strict recruitment procedures have been implemented by Human
Resource Department. Upon discovery of any child labour and use
of forced labour, the person will be dismissed immediately, and
the Board will discuss and review the problem to prevent it from
recurring.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to prevention of
child and forced labour that would have a significant impact on the
Group.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

The Group aims to provide comprehensive solutions that meet
customers’ needs and establish a comprehensive vertical supply
chain management system through resource integration as well
as supplier screening and management. We have established the
relevant policy to maintain long term relationship with our major
suppliers and ensure stable supply. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group had 20 suppliers and all of them were from the PRC.

IRIF - ERERRS
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IRIB LB RERHRS

The Group has carefully selected its suppliers to ensure the quality
of the products, and endeavour to ensure the business partners
throughout the supply chain follows the same stance on sustainable
development. During the Reporting Period, we have assessed 10 hew
and existing suppliers. Our objectives are to deepen the collaborative
relationship with the suppliers and create competitive advantages in
the value chain so as to enhance our influences on the society and
environment. The Group will consider to promote environmentally
preferable products and services during the supplier selection where
applicable in the future. Furthermore, the Group tried to source the
raw materials locally to enhance the sustainability of the supply
chains and minimize carbon footprints.

Product Responsibility

The Group strictly complies with all applicable laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap. 486 of the Law of Hong Kong), Advertising Law of the PRC and
Product Quality Law of the PRC.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and method of redress that have a significant
impact on the Group.

FEBBEHFERERHAURREREE T
NEREEHRBEPNEBEHNIFERRE
HEFERILE RREHE HAEFE10%
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Customer Satisfaction

The Group provides financial services to meet the customer’s
financial needs, and implements specific procedures to ensure the
quality of the services and products. The financial services or products
provided to customers are tailored to their financial background
and risk tolerant level. The Group is committed to providing clear
information for customers to make an informed decision.

We have established the handling procedure of customer complaints.
When complaint is received, we will immediately investigate and take
necessary remedial measures in accordance with the policy of the
Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive any complaint
relating to service and products provided.

Quality Assurance

To ensure the health and safety of patrons and employees of the
vicinity of the Groups' property, whether in the construction and/or
operation, the building of the Group would be tested, maintained and
repaired to ensure the property’s safety quality. The products of the
Group are subjected to the Product Quality Law of the PRC, which
stipulates that the company shall be liable for personal or property
damage caused by product defects. During the Reporting Period,
no products sold or shipped was recalled due to safety and health
reasons.

The Group also requires related parties to strictly complies with the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China which clearly stated
in the advertising contract.

IRIF - ERERRS
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IRIB LB RERHRS

Privacy Protection

The Group’s employees are obligated to retain in confidence all
information obtained in connection with their employment, including
but not limited to trade secrets, client information and other
proprietary information.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance in relation to the leakage of customers’ data.

Anti-Corruption

The Group takes zero tolerance approach to any unethical business
conduct including bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering. We
are committed to abiding by relevant laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of
the Law of Hong Kong), Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC and
Criminal Law of the PRC.

We prevent our employees from any unethical business conduct.
Various documentation and directives from our Human Resource
function clearly state that employees should not offer, solicit, or
accept anything of material value to or from fellow employee,
customer, supplier or other business associates in relation to the
Group's affairs without the knowledge and consent of the Company.
The contravention of these policies will be subject to disciplinary
action or termination of employment.

The Group upholds a high standard of business integrity throughout
its operations. Management considers a system with good moral
integrity and anti-corruption mechanism as the cornerstone for the
sustainable development of the Group. The Group has established
policies and guidelines on anti-money laundering and counter-
terrorist financing of the jurisdictions where the Group has operations
in. Any suspicious transactions would be notified and reported to the
relevant governing body by the responsible officer.
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The Group provides online anti-corruption training materials to
directors to increase their awareness. The training covers the potential
corruption risks that would be faced by company directors, senior
management and professionals during the preparation for listing of
the company, daily business operation, and merge and acquisition.
During the Reporting Period, three directors have participated in anti-
corruption training.

During the Reporting Period, there is no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees, and the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud, and money laundering that have a significant impact on the
Group.

COMMUNITY

Contributing to society is a part of the Group’s sustainable
development strategy. The Group is committed to providing career
opportunities to the locals and promoting the development of the
community’s economy. In the coming future, the Group would seek for
more opportunity to contribute the social community.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R S

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Wom g F M OF OB A N A

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES
INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN
AS HONG KONG FINANCE INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP
LIMITED)

(incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wisdom
Wealth Resources Investment Holding Group Limited (formerly
known as Hong Kong Finance Investment Holding Group Limited)
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 94 to 246, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor's Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020, were audited by another auditor
who indicated that a material uncertainty existed that might cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. This matter did not give rise to any effects on the closing
figures of our audit of the 2021 consolidated financial statements.

It was noted that the capital commitment made by the Group as at
31 December 2020 was not disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year then ended. The corresponding
disclosure was made in Note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
FREZEE

Gk S P R

HMRBZFEDRERFANEEFE  RAHER
BPBREPEZGEVBERREAEENS
R BEFREERMELEBRGEMBRERK
FULEMKFNERBFETRE MEFATEH
ELEFHREHEBNER

How the matter was address in our audit
RMETEZENAEIEZEE

Valuation of investment properties
BREMEMLE

As disclosed in Note 20 and Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group's investment properties
measured at fair value amounted to approximately
HK$2,536,919,000 and HK$354,211,000 respectively as
at 31 December 2021. The fair value was determined by
management with reference to the valuation performed by an
independent professional valuer (the “valuer”) engaged by the
Group.

UG E T BRI T 20 M sF32PETE N S —
+ZA=1+—H> BEXEERATEFENREVED NS
#92,536,919,00078 75 5% 354,211,00078 75 © 52 A AT HE 2
EBizEx BSEEZTENBUSEMGENM (MHEMM) ET
L (ETEE ©

The valuation of investment properties involved significant
judgements and estimates, which mainly included the
determination of valuation technigues and the selection of
different inputs in the models.
REMEGLBEIRERAG RS T ECAEEEHER
EREER BN R E A B -

Our major procedures to address the valuation of
investment properties included the following:
EPEBREYELENTIERFERFUTEE

Reviewed the valuation report from independent
qualified valuer and discussed with management
and independent qualified valuer to understand
the valuation basis, methodology used and
underlying assumptions applied and assessed
the appropriateness and reasonableness of the
valuation technigue and assumptions used
BREBETEEROEMNMGERS wEEEE
KRB GBERGEEMETmUTREEER
Fft BB 75 7% 2 B & FB Y MBI RE MRR 5% It ST P R (B 12
i R R EVEE M R SR

Evaluated the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of independent qualified valuer
SHEE L S ESGEMNA 8 BE N EFER M

Obtained the underlying data including comparable
of market transactions, estimated construction costs
and development profit margin being used by the
independent qualified valuer and assessed whether
they are reasonable and appropriate
ERBELEERGEMERNMIBRS G52
B AR BEEF BENEREE (810 LRE
B UiEERE S EREE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
RREZEIE

Independent Auditor's Report
RV S GRS

REE%EE (@

How the matter was address in our audit
RPIETERFRNAEEZER

Valuation of investment properties

KREMELE

Considering the above mentioned significance of judgement,
estimates and the financial impacts of the valuation, we
considered the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter.

I _EA A E R StV E E M BRI 5
KREVMELERIF—BMREZEE.

B2 488

SR E > ZfIR

o Performed market research and analysis to assess
whether the changes in fair value of investment
properties resulted from the valuation were
reasonable and consistent with market trends to our
knowledge
ETTMBMEMD T MEHERENERGHEM
HIRNAFEERSAEATERMAMN™
B8

o Reviewed all the relevant agreements and
documents relevant to the projects
& BIE B AR RN PR A AR RE 1 5 R S

o Checked land certificate, arranged land search and
performed site visit for the existence and ownership
of the investment properties
MEENERTFEREMBESES LiH1E
BT M EMARETEMER

o Engaged another independent valuation expert to
evaluate the valuation basis, methodology used
and underlying assumptions applied by the valuer
engaged by the management
ZES—2EIAEESIHEEEZENGEE
EM BV {E B 2 ~ PR 75 74 S P e FR BN AR R R 3%

o Performed sensitivity analysis to assess the

reasonableness of the valuation inputs
ETEREDMMGHEGERABBES G2
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
RREZEIE

REE%EE (@

How the matter was address in our audit
RPIETERFRNAEEZER

Assessment of the net realisable values of properties
for sale
MEREMEZETRE

As disclosed in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had properties for sale (“PFS”) of
approximately of HK$1,981,337,000 as at 31 December 2021.
The Group's assessment of the carrying amounts of PFS, being
the lower of cost and net realisable value (“NRV"), takes into
account the fair value of the PFS and costs necessary to make
the sale.
UG EHBRRMET28PIEE SEBENRZT—F
+ZE=1+—B8FE"E ((FEWE)) 47%51,981,337,000
Brre EEEFGFEYENREE QI AR EIRFE
(MIEIFE) MEFPNRES) B §EREFEDENR
FEMRETHEMENAA

The management of the Group determines the fair value of the
PFS with reference to valuation performed by an independent
qualified professional valuer (“valuer”) engaged by the Group.
EEREEEEEGEENRTER 2% B£EZ
BB & BERE = AE (MHES) ETHNGHEMERE

Our major procedures to address the assessment of the
NRV of the PFS included the following:

BMRETE

YERN TSR FENENEEZRFBEMN

THIE:

Evaluated the objectivity, independence and
competency of the valuer
AL BN EER M~ Bt R BE

Discussed with the management and the
independent qualified valuer the methodology and
assumptions used in determining the market value
of the properties and assessed the appropriateness
and reasonableness of the valuation techniques and
assumptions used
HEEERBUAERGEMmEEMEDE
B % FA B9 75 0% B AR 5% X 5 ik P R it 1B 4 9 R 1R 3%
HNEEMREGEY

Sample checked for the estimated market value
of properties used by the valuer to the actual
selling prices of comparable properties nearby the
properties under development to determine whether
there was any significant variance
HLEMMERAN Y =N EFRHRES
TR R EN TN LR ENEREBE
T NEEREEERNEAREER

Discussed with the management and the valuer
how they arrived at the estimated percentage of
completion, the estimated selling prices when they
are completed, estimated profit margin and the
estimated costs to complete, and checked to the
source data on a sample basis to assess whether
they are reasonable and appropriate
HEEERMEEMN R HNAEH4AsTIE
DHESTTENMGESTEE Gt AEEMTEIAME
FTAAS > M LA AR 2R AR B IR B B R DA T M A8 B
BIEEEoEREE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
RREZEIE

Independent Auditor's Report
RV S GRS

RBEREE (2

How the matter was address in our audit
RPIETERFRNAEEZER

Based on the management estimation of the NRV of the
PFS and after taking into consideration the fair value of the
properties for sale and costs necessary to make the sale, no
write-down of properties for sale was considered necessary
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
REEEESGEYETERFEFEHNGE wE&ER
FEMENRTEETHEMBNMARE  BRMEBAR
HE_Z -GS+ "A=+—"HIEFEBFMWMATEY
X8

Considering the above mentioned significance, estimates
and the financial impacts of the valuation, we considered the
assessment of the NRV of PFS as a key audit matter.
ERLMEEMhE REENMBETE BT LEE
Mz o IR ERIEF— B REZEE

o Compared the market value less costs to sell
determined by the valuer with the carrying amount
of the properties for any impairment
A 0D 0 18 765 1 B B 8 R B0 T (B L 5 AR A B2 4]
ENRMEBETLER

o Checked the land certificate and performed land
search for the ownership of the properties
Y EFTBEEDE T MR R T T AR

J Performed site visit for the properties
HyEETEMER

o Reviewed all the relevant agreements and
documents relevant to the projects
BEHEIEE AN AR RE R X

o Engaged another independent valuation expert to
evaluate the valuation basis, methodology used
and underlying assumptions applied by the valuer
engaged by the management
ZES—AEIIHEEFHEEESZENMEE
EM AV (B B 25 ~ PR 75 75 K PR FE FR N AR R BR 3%

o Performed sensitivity analysis to assess the

reasonableness of the valuation inputs
ETHRESMLGHhhERABEBERESIE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor's Report

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R S

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor's Report

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Cheng & Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Cheng Hong Cheung

Practising Certificate number P01802

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
raEmREMEENER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZZ - —F+_"HA=+—HILFE

2021 2020
T —fF —E2TERF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ET FHEx
Revenue W 7,10 522,404 1,013,168
Cost of goods sold and direct costs EViEE AR BEERA (464,527) (980,513)
Gross profit Eil 57,877 32,655
Other income HAh A 8 4,905 8,604
Other gains or losses, net H e SRS 1R 2R 9 = (36,063)
Fair value changes on investment LEMEANTEEE
properties 20 442,760 (158,920)
Impairment losses of financial assets REENAECEMEEZ
at amortised cost, net BERIEFEE 11 (4,738) (872)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (1,303) (3,109)
Administrative expenses THRAX (57,634) (61,319)
Finance costs M ER 12 (49,265) (32,322)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRI A EA, (E518) 392,602 (251,346)
Taxation 18 13 (116,399) 38,429
Profit/(loss) for the year FWafl, (E8) 14 276,203 (212,917)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
relEmkEMEEWRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—ET—fF —EIEHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MisE F#ET FET
Other comprehensive income Hh2mmlA
ltem that may be reclassified HEEEMPEERGE 2
subsequently to profit or loss: ER:
Exchange differences arising on REBINEFE
translation of financial statements MHBBRERMELZ
of foreign operations PE = %E 128,217 237,275
128,217 237,275
ltem that will not be reclassified to TEEMDEERR B
profit or loss:
Fair value losses on investment in BAFEF AREMEEWW
equity instruments at fair value AZRKETEREZ
through other comprehensive NFEEE
income (181) (53)
Other comprehensive income for the year SR EM2EWA 128,036 237,222
Total comprehensive income for the year E£R2EWA4LEE 404,239 24,305
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
raEmREMEENER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - —F+_H=+—HIEEE

2021 2020
T —fF —E2TERF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ET FAET
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:  FEMEEPEF] (B548) :
Owners of the Company KNBEB A 267,895 (211,940)
Non-controlling interests JERERE T 42 8,308 977)
276,203 (212,917)
Total comprehensive income fE(h 2 E U ALLEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBlHmB A 395,848 25,078
Non-controlling interests JEIER IR 8,391 (773)
404,239 24,305
Earnings/(I0ss) per share SKREF, (B8
- Basic —ER 17 HK$0.0670#75T  (HK$0.0530% )
- Diluted —HE HK$0.0670#75c  (HK$0.0530% )
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REMBIRRR

At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+_HA=+—H

2021 2020
—E—% BT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FAT FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y EN =Y ai-] 19 50,211 55,060
Investment properties KwEYE 20 2,536,919 2,368,672
Right-of-use assets FREEE 21 1,351 3,990
Intangible assets mLEE 22 —* —*
Investment in equity instruments BAFEESFAHMEERA
at fair value through other ZREATAKE
comprehensive income 24 990 1,171
Deposit paid for construction BRENZz® 82,042 79,589
Statutory deposits B E 25 2,050 1,930
Loans receivable FEWE R 26 16,940 15,890
Deferred tax assets FIERIBE B 23 - 17,818
2,690,503 2,544,120
Current assets RENEE
Inventories =78 27 52,630 -
Properties for sale HFEME 28 1,981,337 1,921,997
Accounts receivable FEWAR =X 29 101,115 115,938
Loans receivable EWER 26 131 -
Other receivables, HhEURERZ - T RIB R
prepayments and deposits & 30 182,769 109,734
Pledged fixed deposits BIRRERER (—KRERR)
(general accounts) 31 - 171,058
Bank balances IRITHT (Bt RAEILRS)
(trust and segregated accounts) 31 87,378 92,355
Bank balances IR1T#ETFE (—RERP) KIRE
(general accounts) and cash 31 31,859 20,610
2,437,219 2,431,692
Assets classified as held for sale PDEAFELEEE 32 385,660 -
2,822,879 2,431,692
current liabilities mENBE
Accounts and bills payables FE (T BR 7 R BB 4% 33 164,807 313,895
Other payables and accrued expenses Hi e AR ESTE R 34 97,244 42,518
Lease liabilities HEas 35 1,388 2,707
Contract liabilities HHEE 36 6,862 1,739
Amounts due to Directors FE{IEENIE 37 225,997 143,578
Borrowings B8 38 390,616 318,200
Tax payables FE{IRIB 141 1,386
Corporate bonds NEES 39 13,884 11,775
900,939 835,798

* Less than HK$1,000

* /Dj1,000%8 7T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBIRRR

At 31 December 2021 R_ZE-_—F+"F=+—H

2021 2020
—E- &% “ETEHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE FHET FET
Liabilities associated with assets EERBEEDES
classified as held for sale HEHE 32 5,806 -
906,745 835,798
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,916,134 1,595,894
Total assets less current liabilities EELEERTBER 4,606,637 4,140,014
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Lease liabilities HESE 35 - 1,377
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIBE(E 23 481,328 346,724
Corporate bonds NEES 39 3,598 18,401
Convertible bonds AR ES 40 17,846 -
Borrowings = 38 - 76,882
502,772 443,384
Net assets BERE 4,103,865 3,696,630
Capital and reserves AR #E
Share capital %N 41 400,000 400,000
Reserves B 3,691,298 3,292,454
Equity attributable to owners of AT HEB NS
the Company 4,091,298 3,692,454
Non-controlling interests FEER R 42 12,567 4,176
Total equity HEmAEER 4,103,865 3,696,630

FUBFINNENGEEMBERENR S _F=
BI+IREESFEHERBETE > T HU

The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 101 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25

March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: TREREE
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, 6Bs, I Mr. Cao Yu
FFE B Lens, ip EFELE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BE BE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_T——

Attributable to owners of the Company

BEmEEFR

F+-A=+—HLFE

nV-F

KRARAAERE
Non- Capital Convertible Currency Non-
Share Share  distributable  Contributed ~ redemption FVTOCI  honds equity translation Retained controlling
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Sub-total interests Total
BAFEHA
AE2EMA  THRRES
& BHEE  FURREE EARE ErEERG (1] RaGE  SMRERE REEA gt JEEREE LS
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HRS000 HS000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Fhn Tin Tin TiEn TiEn TR TR TR TR TR TEn TEn
(noteg) (notey (note¢) (oted) (note ) (otee)
(Wizta) (Hizte) (Wit (Wizte) (W) (Wizte)

At31 December 2019 WoS-nE+ZB=+-B 10000 1578317 1260308 315 5587 @) - (284353 6010 3667376 199 3672305

Loss for the year EERR - - - - - - - - (211,940) (211,940) 97 212917)

Exchange differences ERZE - - - - - - - BIM5 - BIMS 0 B0

Fair value loss on investmentin - AT ARE2 ATEGH

equity Instruments - - - - - @ - - - @ (26) )
Total comprehensive (expenses)/ ER2ME (i) /WABE
income for the year - - - - - @ - 237,045 (211940 2078 (13 2305

{31 December 2020 RoEZSFHCAZ-H 10000 1578317 1260308 315 5587 &) - 7308) 184070 3690454 417 369,430

Profitfor the year EEEF - - - - - - - - 2%78% 2789 8308 276,203

Exchange differences ERZE - - - - - - - 128046 - 128046 7 128217

Fair value loss on investmentin - AT AREZ ATEGH

equity instruments - - - - - ®) - - - 93 88) (181)

Total comprehensive (expenses)/ ER2E (i) /WABE

income for the year - - - - - 0 - 1806 26785 588 8391 1033
Recogniton of equity component B2 B4 ERHS
of convertible bonds - - - - - - 29% - - 29% - 29%

At31 December 2021 RIBZ-E+ZAZ+-H 10000 1578317 1260308 3150 5587 (157) 29% 80738 151965 4091298 12567 1103865

notes: =3

(a) The non-distributable reserve represents the aggregate of deemed contributions  (a) AR kEBEEEE SN \F+B=1+—HIL*F
by the controlling shareholder in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries during ERRARENREBABRIEERRRTEELE
the year ended 31 December 2018.

(b) The contributed surplus represented the aggregate of: (i) the difference of (b BEEGFIE THEIEARN ()P ENE QT RMEE
HK$29,140,000 between the nominal value of shares of the acquired subsidiaries BARANBFRAEESAFREMETZROEER
and the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued for the acquisition # 2 Z%829,140,00078 7T ; (MR A2 Tﬂyﬁﬁf:ﬁ—f
at the time of the reorganisation of the Group; (i) the credit arising from the FHAZTHETZREFIAG LREBZFHIIA
reduction of shares premium of HK$359,162,000 transferred to the contributed 2 Bl 19 Iﬁﬁf?‘;éﬂizﬁﬁﬁgﬁ%‘?ﬂ62,000?%7t (}éé)\
surplus account of the Company pursuant to the special resolutions passed KABBHERRE ; MW _2—Z—F£+—BtH%»
by the shareholders of the Company at a special general meeting held on 20 KB A BB 7 76,758,00078 7T ©
October 2012; and (iii) a distribution of shares of a subsidiary of an amount of
HK$76,758,000 on 7 November 2012.

(© The capital redemption reserve arose from the repurchase of shares. The amount ~ (C) EARELCRHERERMDBEE -2 RBIEFBERS 2@
represents the nominal amount of the shares repurchased. B

(d) FVTOCI reserve represents gains/losses arising on recognising financial assets  (d) BAFEFAEMEZEWAREERERDEAZA
classified as investment in equity instrument at fair value through other FEFAEMEEAVAZRATEREZSMEEM
comprehensive income. EEZWEEiEe

(e) Currency translation reserve represents exchange differences relating to the  (€) 7#%?@%%1&&%%&2&%E?I\%?iﬁé?‘%{ﬁmﬁ
translation of the net assets of the Group's foreign operations from their functional NEEBREARER 25|51 B8 REEZE
currencies to the Group's presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) are RER BENEMZ2EBAPREDRRRINEBE#E
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ARGt -NIEMBERERST 2 AREREENHES
currency translation reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the IEBFERDEERT R
currency translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
foreign operations.

(f) Convertible bonds equity reserve represents the equity component of the () MR ESERHEEN ST —FtBAHETM

convertible bonds with a total principal amount of HK$20,000,000 issued on 9 July
2021.

7R 4B ER #520,000,00078 7o R PTG B 5 1w B0 0 ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &E_ZT—

—F+=A=+—BLEE

2021 2020
—B-—F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHEIT
Operating activities K EE
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRI AR (B518) 392,602 (251,346)
Adjustments for: TS IBEHAZE :
Impairment losses of financial assets at RENASECEMEEZ
amortised cost, net B IE R EE 4,738 872
Impairment loss of property, ME- -BEKRKEZ HERBIE
plant and equipment - 36,063
Fair value changes on investment properties &2 N T (EEE) (442,760) 158,920
Interest income FEUA (4) (1,490)
Finance costs M &R 49,265 32,322
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #12%  BE RREirE 4,892 4,242
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 2,656 2,589
Operating cash flows before EEESEHAZKERENRE
movements in working capital 11,389 (17,828)
Increase in properties for sale FEMZEEN (121) -
(Increase)/decrease in statutory deposits EERE (gm R (120) 2,100
Increase in inventories FEIE (51,843) -
Increase in loan receivable FEW & =RIE N (1,181) (13,909)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable FEUBRFRRIZL (18 0) 10,846 (8,225)
Increase in other receivables, HMEWER BT IE R
prepayments and deposits & IE N (74,477) (27,903)
Decrease/(increase) in bank balances IRITEEE R (800
(trust and segregated accounts) (BEsERBILERF) 4,977 (8,589)
(Decrease)/increase) in accounts FE(TBR AR 24 CRt/)) /180
and bills payables (150,538) 156,537
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities eHasEm el 4,994 (5,034)
Increase in other payables and HAE IR EST & B Ig
accrued expenses 53,472 2,706
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &% (Fr/) FRii8IRE (192,602) 79,855
Tax paid B2NRIE - (322
Interest paid [SENES) (45,024) (20,319)
Net cash (used in)/generated from &EEE) (FrA) FRrSIREFEE
operating activities (237,626) 59,214
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
nV-F Iﬁﬁ;ﬁgﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZE_ZE_—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—B-—F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Investing activities KREEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment HBEYE -BEMASE - (1,017)
Additions of investment properties REREYE - (926)
Release of/(placement in) pledged Rk, (F8) BIRBTEHER
fixed deposits 171,058 (165,794)
Interest received on bank deposits IRITERBEWFIE 4 1,490
Net cash generated from/(used in) KREEEFRE (FrA) REFE
investing activities 171,062 (166,247)
Financing activities B EE
Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds 2517 BJ # fR B35S IE 20,000 -
Drawdown of borrowings %EHRF?? 57,000 146,869
Repayment of borrowings == (66,500) (69,500)
Repayment of corporate bonds Tffiam%ﬁ% (11,000) -
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEEaE (2,712) (2,569)
Increase in amounts due to Directors FETEEE A N 80,055 31,672
Net cash generated from B ESFRSIRE R
financing activities 76,843 106,472
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HERZERREEEHZ
cash equivalents wan, GRisL) B8 10,279 (561)
Cash and cash equivalents FVMZRERERIREIEF
at beginning of the year 20,610 20,680
Effect of exchange rate changes SIS B ER i 2 R 1,059 491
Cash and cash equivalents FRZAERERREIEE
at end of the year 31,948 20,610
Analysis of balances of cash and RERERREEBERIHN
cash equivalents
Bank balances (general accounts) R1T4ET (—RIRP) KRS
and cash 31,859 20,610
Bank balances (general accounts) and cash IRITHEE (—RERP) kD18
classified under assets held for sale (Note 32)  ARH{EHEEENIRE (Wa32) 89 -
31,948 20,610
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

1174 AS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &E_ZT—

GENERAL

Wisdom Wealth Resources Investment Holding Group Limited
(formerly known as Hong Kong Finance Investment Holding
Group Limited) (the “Company”) is an exempted company
incorporated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Its ultimate controlling party is Dr. Hui Chi Ming, G.B.S.,J.P. who
is also the Chairman of the Company. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the corporate information section to the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”). The Company is an
investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Group are (1) the trading of electronic products and equipment,
(2) mineral mining, oil and gas exploration and production, (3)
the provision of financial services and (4) property investment.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") or thousands of units of HK$ (“HK$'000"),
which is also the functional currency of the Company:.

—F+ZA=+—HLEFE

—RRFIR

HEERREEREEERAT (3B
EECRAEEREMBERAD) (£
AT BEBERE-AN—FATE
(EHA) EMATASHEAD  HRg
BREBYAZBHRARAD (THF)
TRET HBREH T AN EHEL
GBS, 1P (FAKAT LR < AATER
O R T M M B B0 B B R A 3R
ATER—HPRE -

AEBEEZE-_—F+"A=+—HL
FEZERAVERROEBELAQABDREWES
RNE) RBIRER)) - AARAKREER
RE AEBZFEXEBANETERK
REEZ QWRE A HEXATHER
HEQIEHEMBHERANELE -

mEMBRERLET (FBx) AT BT
(TF#ET) RBAZ7) HTFEAERRTZ
EEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_T——

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS")

(A) Amendments to HKFRSs that are

(B)

mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSS in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments®
Amendmentsto  Reference to the Conceptual
HKFRS 3 Framework?

Amendmentsto  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKFRS 10 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
and HKAS 28 Venture?

2. FER

= .AH
AR

RA TR R MY 5E

F+-A=+—HLFE

RAE T BRI REER

(FEEMBHREER)

(A) AFERFEMZEIETER

(B)

MEBHRSER

RAFE AEBEERERTHH
ERAGHIAg ((EBEHMAAE))
B EBMBREERN BT %
HFEIN _E-_—F—HF—H% 2
BRIB 2 FEEAR RS £ UIRR
IR e MR .

BEEMBREENET  FREEY
BB G ERF395% E-FMER
EEYMBREEREH
EEMBREENEIRR
EREMBREER 1657
CH)

REFERBEBYBREERNZ
EBIHAERREAFERBEFE
MEBRIRERK Az Ra
MHBBRPMERBLEEAZE

SRR 1 R 2 BT RAS
1T & B T R 25 2 )

FEETEREFEAUTEEME
BAREMRZ M REIETEBMH
HEER

EEMBRE  RREGREEER
HERIB175%

ERVBERE  EBRERZRM
AR 535
(&57)

ERVBERE REBHABEQF
EREI0HE DEEARNMHEE
ERAGHER HESGFE

5285% (fE5])
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZZ - —F+_"HA=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

ERKIE]ERMBREER
(MEEMBHREERN) (&)

(“HKFRSSs") (Continued)

(B) New and amendments to HKFRSS in issue

but not yet effective (Continued)

ELARAE R 4 2 2 37 4T Re AR
BT E MR EER (2

Amendment to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and

related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°
Amendmentsto  Disclosure of Accounting Policies®
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRSSs

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction®

Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts
— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

EHEBBRE B —FXB=+
R 165% H#hICovid-1948
(L) MRASER

ERAYHER  REEIEARDY
EAEAGCH) FREBREERE

Rl CH]
(CB_ZF)*

EEGHEL EHBREE
BB B
BREENET
w525
(L)

ARG ER BHAENNER
E8%% (185])

EEGHEL HE-XFELENE
212%% (183]) ERBEBRNE

JERRIE®

EEGHELN YEBEK

£163% (183]) RE—HTERRA
BT 1S TR 1B

EEGHER  EBEUAHN-EBTA
5375% (1B3]) #9109 B A2

EEMBRE SEVBRSENC
2R (185]) E-N\FZE

TETEEW
FENE?
w WoE-—FmB—ARNZRERZE
EsES S
2 TR E-—P-BRZEBEZE
B HARS A 3 o
3 RoE-CE—A-ANRERZE
ELESES S

‘ RFSE BBz B 2 EEHRR £ -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs") (Continued)

(B) New and amendments to HKFRSS in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

The Company'’s directors have performed an assessment
on these new and amendments to HKFRSs, and have
concluded on a preliminary basis that the adoption of
these new and amendments to HKFRSS is not expected
to have a significant impact on the Group's financial
performance and position.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis except for certain
properties and financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period. Disposal
group classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair values less costs to sell.

FEF
(MEEMBHREERN) (&)

RAE T BRI RS ER

(B) DARMGEMF &2 54T RAR

1E]ERMBREER (2

ERBEZFEHRENT REES]
BRMBREERETHE LD
DR ZE NG RGBT EBY
BREZENRAPEIASHAEERBMFH
RERAREEEREE -

3. BUEAMEERZELRTE
W

3.1 RRGREMBHRZEBE

REMBERERDREESESSALQ
CHEMZEBMBREERR -
MRREEHHREMS  HERE
HeERRerETE2EREFL
BURE  RIERMBERBGEREKR UL
I IREMBRREEEAMORS
PRERABES EHRA (TEHR
A1) ’ BB R EMEBG BY I B8 Z KPR
MEZBRRBEFR

REMBRERERELENAEZRR
METFREREMRELAFEHNE
ZMEREBT ARSI - DERFEF
HENHEMRNRREEERA T
B HERABREES R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZZ - —F+_"HA=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUEAMBEHRRZEERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R @)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements (Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The Group has net current assets of approximately
HK$1,916,134,000. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, it is expected that the current assets of
properties for sale of approximately HK$1,981,337,000
will not be completed in the next twelve months from
31 December 2021. In considering the impact of the
properties for sale, the Group's current liabilities exceeded
its current assets excluding the properties for sale of
approximately HK$1,981,337,000 by approximately
HK$65,203,000. The Group had overdue balances in
respect of borrowings of approximately HK$332,575,000
as at 31 December 2021. Approximately HK$240,000,000
loan principal and its related accrued interest out of
the HK$332,575,000 overdue balances will be repaid
after receipt of net proceeds from disposal of Millhaven
Holdings Limited (Note 49).

Nevertheless, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on the going concern basis because
the directors of the Company are of the view that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations in the next twelve months from 31 December
2021, after taking into consideration of the following:

1) The substantial shareholder, Dr. Hui Chi Ming, has
confirmed his intention to provide continuing
financial support to satisfy the Group’s working
capital and other financing requirement through
continual renewal of borrowings or continual
provision of additional financing to the Group;

3.1 RBVFEMBHRRZEBEE (B

FE S Rl A — AR 12 73 AN P mm R AR 75
mitHzABZAFEFE

FTEBEBNRBEEZTENS
1,916,134,00078 75 o & A B & £ 50
Z > FRERENE EX1,981,337,000%8
THNHEMERITER T Z—
+ZB=+—HEEstRKkR+ZEA
NBT Kt REFEMENTER
FEENRBEBEBHERBEE
(FEEFEWEL1,981,337,000
B IT) £965,203,000B T
T+ ZRB=1+—H AEENE
BRI 45332,575,00058 7T ©
332,575,000 7t 1 49240,000,000
BrArAEREXRGTHMEAHE
Millhaven Holdings Limited[E &k & &
= (fI5E49)

R REBUTEHR REMH
BRERDBREFECEEERFE R
ARANBEERALEERAR
HWeEBEEeAB _T_—5+_81
=t+—HEsRKR+ZERZKE
RHESR

1) FERRAERFIESHED
RERBBTHEREENS
BrAERIEHEINRENE
HEBEM B EMmE &
EENEEETREMRER
X
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

2)

On 5 November 2021, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to dispose of the entire issued share
capital of Millhaven Holdings Limited (Note 49), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company;, for a cash
consideration of HK$338,000,000 (the “Disposal”).
The transaction is expected to be completed in May
2022;

On 21 October 2019, Karl Thomson Financial Group
Limited ("KTFG"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a loan facility agreement
(“Loan Facility Agreement”) with PAL Finance
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Asia Tele-
Net And Technology Corporation Limited (“Asia
Tele-Net"). Mr. Lam Kwok Hing and Mr. Nam Kwok
Lun, executive directors of the Company, are an
executive director and the ultimate controlling
shareholder of Asia Tele-Net, and an executive
director of Asia Tele-Net who has an indirect
interest in Asia Tele-Net respectively. Pursuant to
Loan Facility Agreement, the Group provides an
unsecured revolving loan facility of HK$130,000,000
bearing interest at prime rate as announced from
time to time by The Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited for lending Hong Kong
Dollars (“Prime Rate”) for a term of three years
commencing from the loan effective date and
ending on 20 October 2022,

3. WmE

3.1 RH

iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

E_E_—F+_A=+—HILEE

mEMBHRRZBERTE
BEHER (@)

mEMBRRZEBEE (&

WZE_—%+—HF&AB>
AEBH -ZBILE=H
FSTUBEmE  UEHELRR
a2 &K B ABMillhaven
Holdings Limitedfy & &6 B2 2%
T4 (MfsE49) » LUREIR &
1£18338,000,0008 7t (THE
FIH) X ZEHENRZZ
T TERAER;

WZE2E—-—hAhE+AZ+—
B AABINE2ENE QA
Karl Thomson Financial Group
Limited (TKTFGJ) £2 58 i Bt 48
BEBRRE (T M)
N2 B B2 BPAL Finance
Limiteds] I B E W= (T8
MEHEHZEL) - BARBEWITE
EERERERERBLREED
ABENBHANRITEE AR
BRIERRER MR N4
BEEENENBERNTSE
FoREBEEMMEmZE & &E
BREEERBREERME
130,000,000t BEERE M
BgEE_E__4#+8_"_+
HEABR=F %FFLBE
SIRITARABTEMEBETE
MR REZEN=X (TRERE
M=) R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZZ - —F+_"HA=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

4)

The Company proposes to implement a rights
issue, on the basis of one rights share for every
two shares held on a record date at a subscription
price of HK$0.1 per rights share, to raise up to (i)
approximately HK$200,000,000 by issuing up to
2,000,000,000 rights shares; or (ii) approximately
HK$201,000,000 by issuing up to 2,010,204,081
rights shares to qualifying shareholders; and

In December 2021, the Company negotiated
with a bank in Hong Kong for a banking facility of
HK$200,000,000 bearing interest at 2.5% over Hong
Kong Interbank Bank Offered Rate for a term of 18
months from the drawdown date, secured by the
Group's investment properties and properties held
for sale located in Zhanjiang, the People’s Republic
of China ("PRC"). Up to the date of this report, an
indicative offer letter which sets out the principal
terms and conditions of the banking facility was
signed by the Company and the bank. The directors
of the Company considered that the banking facility
would be granted to the Company in view of the
securities pledged for the banking facility.

3. MEGEMBRERZBERTE
SR (B

3.1 RH

5)

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAT

REMBRRZEBE (B

AABEZENRCHREBESE
B ESE —RHERRKRD
ZEE S DUREESRERRK
PO TETHR (VBB
178 %2,000,000,000 4% 1 B% A%
PMEERZ4200,000,000%
T W(NVEBEAEBERKRRE
78%%2,010,204,081 3% 1 B% 1%
MEERZ4201,000,000%
4

N2 —F+ZH FKAHE
BEBN—BIRTHBIRRA
HARERT AHA18E A MIRTTRI &
200,000,00078 7t (B & B RIT
BEFEM2.5%NF X E -
HAEELEYERMUPPE
AERHME (THHRE) BTN
EREWMEIEIRIR) ETER-
EEAREHE B RITRA
BN FERARGEENIETRME
FARRKEBEAAB RZIRITE
B XARNBEERE BENAIR
TREMIEFNES AAQF
R ERIRITRIE ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
TR IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3. RRFEMBHRRZBEREER
BEHER (@)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technigue is calibrated so that the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices

included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate

the financial statements of the Company and entities

controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Details of the Group's performance obligations for revenue for
contracts with customers resulting from application of HKFRS 15
are setoutin note 7.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a customer.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
fixed assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of fixed assets is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

3.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes).

Investment properties also include leased properties which are
being recognised as right-of-use asset.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
trading rights is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effective of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost). Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the assets are
derecognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible asset are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or, its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or 10ss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the
sale include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale
and non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to make
the sale.

Properties for sale

Properties under development which are intended to be sold
upon completion of development and properties for sale are
classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold land
element which is measured at cost model in accordance with
the accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties for sale
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on a specific identification basis including allocation
of the related development expenditure incurred and where
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for the properties less
estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZT_——

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continueq)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continueq)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale, except for freehold land, which is always
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments for
the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible
temporary differences.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZT_——

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continueq)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interest as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combination, the
Group assesses Whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes both leasehold
land and non-lease building components, unless such allocation
cannot be made reliably.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZZ - —F+_"HA=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of leasehold properties that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not

contain a purchase option.

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received,

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments to
lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent concessions
in which the Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term is depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - —F+_H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a
lease modification as a separate lease if:

- the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

- the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the
change is a lease modification if all of the following conditions
are met:

- the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - —F+_H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Covid-19-related rent concessions (Continued)

- any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

- there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised
in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect
to its investment properties to other parties.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except for investment properties
measured under fair value model.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRSs requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &E_ZT—

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for accounts receivable arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

3.

RO BRRZBEREE
BEHER (B

EMIA @)

BERAXEAFGEEREENTRER/Z
HH R A U R AE B ER R A 0 B A BRA
RABRAXZHZ%E BRMREREME
EXNTREBERAIAEHN WER) 8
REHAIR 2 A R RB WA KRR (B1F
BRERMNEZRMAEESNIEWRE R KT
KREB P MA R E M@ BT £
MIRENSEDBZIREFENFEK

AEERAEXEFBRETREEZFEK
ATs 2573 o

EHMEE
THREETERER;E

Fa TRtz EMEERLRREBIHN A

HE

e ENABWEENHETREMNER
BAAREEREE , &

s GHERNEEHHREEZRER

EERINEERREEZ AT
B

Annual Report 2021 « —Z ——fF 4R

131



132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZZ - —F+_"HA=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term;

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZZ - —F+_"HA=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in OCl and
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will be transfered to retained
earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (Continued)

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the other income
line item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including statutory
deposits, loan receivable, accounts receivable, other receivables
and deposits, pledged fixed deposits and bank balances). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - —F+_H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The ECL are assessed by the Group on annual basis. The Group
applies simplified approach to measure ECL on accounts
receivable (except for dealing in securities-cash clients and
loans to securities margin clients); and general approach to
measure ECL on accounts receivable arising from dealing in
securities-cash clients and loans to securities margin clients and
other financial assets accounted for at amortised cost.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continueq)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

J existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &E_ZT—

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continuea)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Margin clients use the number of days past due and loan-
to-collateral value (“LTV") to determine significant increase
in credit risk.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, i) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continuea)

The estimation of credit loss under all stages is taking
into consideration of forward looking information. The
Group identifies the key economic driver impacting credit
risk and ECL to be the growth rate of Gross domestic
product (“GDP"). The Group applied the probability
weighted scenarios for incorporating the forward looking
information. The growth rate of GDP has been used in
determining the probability-weighting of each of the
optimistic scenario, base case scenario and pessimistic
scenario. These probability-weighted ECLs are determined
by running each scenario through the relevant ECL model
and multiplying it by the appropriate scenario weighting.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZZ - —F+_"HA=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continueq)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due
event,

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of accounts receivable, when
the amounts are over one year past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on accounts receivable from trading
business property investment and financial advisory
service using a provision matrix taking into consideration
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZZ - —F+_"HA=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. RUGFEEHBHRRZEERTEE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS StER 2@

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) L ==

Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) DHEERE (&

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued) v) FEHREEBRBEZIE2RER &
For margin clients, the Group determines the probability HRRBEEL AEERBERIBE
of default by the internal credit ratings while loss given B RETERAME  MELNBXL
default is determined based on factors including the RIEGQEEFESNERERE KRG
realization value of collateral and the estimated volatility. HENEERREE
For other financial assets at amortised cost, the external HREMBBER AT ENESHE
and internal credit ratings and related probability of E TR RASBEETRUR
default are taken into consideration. Loss given default HERBAME BHUBRNREEE
is determined based on assessed publicly available AR ETEN A M EERERE

information from credit-rating agencies.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all —RMmE EHREEEEARESYN
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in ENAEEZFBEANREREHN
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that AEFEBEHRRRzZRERECB 2
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective EB (BRYERREMEE ZBER
interest rate determined at initial recognition. M ZEERIF) o

Lifetime ECL for certain accounts receivable are Bt BB N REREEER (W
considered on a collective basis taking into consideration BIEMRESHER) BT EKER
past due information and relevant credit information such Az EEERIRERE
as forward looking macroeconomic information. EFUERE-

For collective assessment, the Group takes into MERTEME  AEBEFNHIEAE
consideration the following characteristics when BB E R LU AR

formulating the grouping:

- Past-due status; — AR
- Nature, size and industry of debtors; and - EBAZHE - RERTE &
- External credit ratings where available. —  AAZINBIEEFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continueq)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or l0ss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of accounts
receivable where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZZ - —F+_"HA=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual cash
flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in a
substantial modification from original terms taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative
factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the Group
considers the terms are substantially different if the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including
any fees paid net of any fees received, and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different
from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows
of the original financial asset, after reducing gross carrying
amount that has been written off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial assets will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
assets’ original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial assets and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial asset is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, bills payable,
other payables and accrued expenses, borrowings, corporate
bonds, debt component of convertible bonds and amounts due
to Directors are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert the
bonds into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
consist of a liability and an equity component. At the date of
issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using
the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible
debt. The fair value of any derivative features embedded in the
compound instruments is included in the liability component.
The difference between the proceeds of issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair values assigned to the liability component,
representing the embedded option for the holder to convert
the bonds into equity of the Group, is included in equity as
convertible bonds equity reserve.

The liability component is carried as a liability at amortised
cost using the effective interest method until extinguished
on conversion or redemption. The derivative components are
measured at fair value with gains and losses recognised in profit
or loss.

If the identifiable consideration received by the Group appears
to be less than the fair value of the convertible bonds issued,
the Group measures the unidentifiable services received
(to be received) as the difference between the fair value
of the convertible bonds issued and that of the identifiable
consideration received, and the difference is recognised in profit
or loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible bonds based on their
relative carrying amounts at the date of issue. The portion
relating to the equity component is charged directly to equity.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or 0ss.

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are
modified, the Group assess whether the revised terms result
in a substantial modification from original terms taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers that the terms are substantially different
if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at
least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange
or modification is considered as non-substantial modification
when such difference is less than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
financial liabilities” original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of
the modified financial liabilities and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control of the Group;

(i has significant influence over the Group;

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member),

(i) the entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;,
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

V)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself such
a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity; and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the reporting entity or to the parent of
the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of person are those family
members who may be expected to influence by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary after
the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal
of an investment, or a portion of an investment, the investment
or the portion of the investment that will be disposed of is
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are
met, and the Group discontinues the use of the equity method
in relation to the portion that is classified as held for sale from
the time when the investment (or a portion of the investment) is
classified as held for sale.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continuead)

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent re-measurement while held for sale, are recognised
in profit or 10ss. As long as a non-current asset is classified as
held for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's significant accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Group have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
Statements.

Measurement of ECL

A number of significant judgements are also required in
applying the accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such
as:

- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

- Selecting appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL,; and

- Establishing the relative probability weightings of forward-
looking scenarios.

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL of different financial assets is measured by the Group on
either a 12-month or lifetime basis depending on whether they
are significantly increased in credit risk or credit-impaired.
In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
significantly increased, the Group takes into account qualitative
and guantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information with significant judgements involved.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZT_——

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)
Models and assumptions used

The Group uses various models and assumptions in estimating
ECL. Judgement is applied in identifying the appropriate model
for each type of financial assets, as well as the assumptions
used in these models. Please refer to Note 6 for more details on
ECL.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the deferred taxation on investment
properties, the directors of the Company have determined
that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group is
subject to income taxes on the rental income of its investment
properties in the PRC and deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of the investment properties are recognised on the same
basis.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
each reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial period.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continueq)

Measurement of ECL

Impairment assessment under ECL for trade and other
receivables (except for cash clients and margin clients)

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
accounts receivable (except for cash clients and margin clients)
that result from transactions within the scope of HKFRS 15. The
provision rates are based on debtor’s aging as groupings of
various debtors that have similar 10ss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group's historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable and available without undue costs and effort.
At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
is considered. In addition, accounts receivable with significant
balances and credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL is disclosed in Note 6.

Impairment assessment under ECL for financial assets at
amortised cost other than accounts receivable (including loan
receivables, cash clients, margin clients, statutory adeposits,
other receivables and deposits, pledged fixed deposits and bank
balances)

The impairment assessment under ECL for financial assets at
amortised cost (including loan receivables, cash clients, margin
clients, statutory deposits, other receivables and deposits,
pledged fixed deposits and bank balances) is an area that
requires the use of models and assumptions about future
economic conditions and the credit risk of the respective
financial instruments.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continueq)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Impairment assessment under ECL for financial assets at
amortised cost other than accounts receivable (including loan
receivables, cash clients, margin clients, statutory deposits,
other receivables and deposits, pledged fixed deposits and bank
balances) (Continued)

(i) Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques

ECL is the discounted product of expected future cash
flows by using the Probability of Default (“PD"), Loss
Given Default (“LGD") and Exposure at Default (“EAD"),
of which PD and LGD are estimates based on significant
management judgement. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the management perform individual assessment
for each client by considering various factors, including
the realisable value of securities or collaterals from
clients and their guarantors which are held by the Group
and subsequent settlement and additional collaterals
received.

(i) Forward-looking information

In measuring ECL in accordance with HKFRS 9, it should
consider forward-looking information. The calculation of
ECL incorporates forward-looking information through
the use of publicly available economic data and forecasts
based on assumptions and management judgement
to reflect the qualitative factors and through the use of
multiple probability weighted scenarios.

Details of the impairment assessment of financial assets
at amortised cost is disclosed in Note 6.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continueq)

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by the independent professional valuer.
The valuer has determined the fair value based on a method
of valuation which involves certain estimates. In relying on
the valuation report prepared by the valuers, management
has reviewed the valuation including the assumptions and
estimates adopted.

Changes to these assumptions, including the potential risk of
any market violation, policy, geographical and social changes
or other unexpected incidents would result in change in
the fair value of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Details of the fair value measurements of investment properties
is disclosed in Note 20.

Estimates for net realisable value of properties under
development

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of properties for
sale for the Group are approximately HK$1,981,337,000 (2020:
approximately HK$1,921,997,000). During the year ended 31
December 2021, no impairment 10ss (2020: Nil) was made for
properties for sale. The Group assesses the carrying amounts of
properties for sale according to their net realisable value based
on the realisability of these properties. Net realisable value for
properties for sale is determined by reference to management’s
estimates of the selling price based on prevailing market
conditions, less applicable variable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to completion.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists
of equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, retained earnings and other reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a continuous basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with capital. The Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
issuance of new shares as well as the issuance of new debts or
the redemption of existing debts. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission and are required to comply with
the financial resources requirements according to the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules
(the "SF(FR)R"). The Group's regulated entities are subject to
minimum paid-up share capital requirements and liquid capital
requirements under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors,
on a daily basis, the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirements under
the SF(FR)R. The Group's regulated entities have complied with
the capital requirements imposed by the SF(FR)R throughout
both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS £MTHR
Categories of financial instruments SRt T AER
2021 2020
—E-—F BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Financial assets THEE
Investment in equity instruments BRFEFT A EHM
at FVTOCI PEHBAZEATARE 990 1,171
Financial assets at amortised cost BEIE AT E SREE 329,583 505,941
330,573 507,112
Financial liabilities — amortised cost B E—#ERK 913,992 925,249

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's financial instruments include investment in equity
instruments at FVTOCI, statutory deposits, loan receivable,
accounts receivable, other receivables and deposits, pledged
fixed deposits, bank balances and cash, accounts and bills
payables, other payables and accrued expenses, amounts
due to Directors, corporate bonds, convertible bonds and
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
The Group's overall strategy substantially remains unchanged
from prior year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1174 AS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &E_ZT—

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial
assets and financial liabilities that:

. are offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position; or

° are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement that covers similar financial
instruments, irrespective of whether they are offset in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC"), and brokers, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligation
receivable and payable with HKSCC and brokers on the same
settlement date and the Group intends to set off on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the same
date which are being offset, amounts due from/to HKSCC,
brokers and cash clients that are not to be settled on the same
date, financial collateral including securities received by the
Group, deposits placed with HKSCC and brokers do not meet the
criteria for offsetting in the consolidated statement of financial
position since the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is
only enforceable following an event of default.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EMTH #E)
Financial risk management objectives and BERSEEEEREER &)
policies (Continued)
Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities HiFTHEERTHEE (B)
(Continued)
The amount offset and the net balance are shown as follows: RSB RGERFEEIRUWT -
2021 2020
& —ETEg
Accounts Accounts Accounts Accounts
receivable payable receivable payable
FEWBR TR FE{TERTR & W BR 5K ANE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET
Gross amounts of cash client  IRE&EFEKREBHREE
and Hong Kong Securities BIRAE4E%E
Clearing Company Limited 56,485 (130,677) 121,546 (190,809)
Amounts offsetting RIHEE (32,206) 32,206 (92,630) 92,630
Net amount of cash client REXPREBTREHE
and Hong Kong Securities BIRRAEEEE
Clearing Company Limited 24,279 (98,471) 28,916 (98,179)
Loss allowance for ECL BREEREBEZBERE (24) - (40) -
Net amount of cash clients ~ IREFEREBTRESR
and Hong Kong Securities BIRATEEE
Clearing Company Limited, (NFREEEE)
net of loss allowance 24,255 (98,471) 28,876 (98,179)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - —F+_H=+—HIEEE

6.

BT ERRMIEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

As the Group’s monetary assets and monetary liabilities are
mainly in functional currency of respective group entities, the
currency risk resulting from daily operations is considered
not significant. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate pledged fixed deposits, loans receivable, corporate
bonds, convertible bonds and borrowings. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
of bank balances, loans to securities margin clients, amounts
due to Directors and a borrowing. The Group currently does
not have interest rate hedging policy. However, management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise. The
Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime Rate arising from
the Group's variable-rate loans to securities margin clients,
amounts due to Directors and a borrowing.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate loans to
securities margin clients, amounts due to Directors and a
borrowing mentioned above at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of assets and
liabilities recorded at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point (2020: 50
basis point) increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point (2020: 50 basis point)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$209,000 (2020: the
Group's loss would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$234,000).

The effect on bank balances has not been taken into account in
preparing the sensitivity analysis because the effect involved is
not significant.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTOCI. For equity
securities measured at FVTOCI quoted in the Stock Exchange,
the management manages this exposure by closely monitoring
the risk. The Group will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &E_ZT—

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date. For sensitivity
analysis of equity securities the sensitivity rate is remained as
20% in current year.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 20%
(2020: 20%) higher/lower, the other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2021 would increase/decrease
by HK$198,000 (2020: increase/decrease by HK$234,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of investments at FVTOCI.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to
accounts receivable, loan receivable, other receivables and
deposits, pledged fixed deposits, bank balances. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets, except
that the credit risks associated with loans to securities margin
clients included in accounts receivable and loan receivable
of HK$50,808,000 (2020: HK$57,428,000) (net of allowance for
credit losses) and HK$16,940,000 (2020: HK$15,890,000) (net
of allowance for credit losses) is mitigated because they are
secured over properties or listed securities.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets under ECL model. Information about the Group's credit
risk management, maximum credit risk exposures and the
related impairment assessment, if applicable, are summarised
as below:

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
over the customers to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts for customers of trading electronic
products and equipment, securities cash clients, securities
margin clients and advisory for finance management. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual significant debt at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate allowances are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on accounts balances individually
or based on provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the credit risk is significantly reduced.
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6.

BT ERRMIEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Accounts receivable from cash clients arising from the business
of dealing in securities

As described in more details in Note 29, the credit risk on
cash clients arising from the business of dealing in securities
are managed through daily monitoring of the outstanding
exposures from individual clients and realisable values of
individual client’s securities. The Group has concentration
of credit risk to the largest cash clients’ exposure and five
largest cash clients’ exposure representing 42% (2020: 22%)
and 66% (2020: 54%) respectively of the total cash clients as
at 31 December 2021. The balances due from the largest cash
clients and the five largest cash clients were approximately
HK$8,339,000 (2020: HK$4,337,000) (net of allowance for
credit losses) and HK$13,223,000 (2020: HK$10,810,000)
(net of allowance for credit losses) respectively. Apart
from the exposures to five largest cash clients’ exposure
mentioned above, the directors of the Group consider that the
concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base
being large and unrelated.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Accounts receivable arising from loan to securities margin
clients

As described in more detail in Note 29, the credit risk on loan to
securities margin clients is managed through daily monitoring
of the outstanding exposures from individual clients, margin
values and realisable values of individual client's securities.
The Group has concentration of credit risk to the largest
securities margin clients’ exposure and ten largest securities
margin clients’ exposure representing 15% (2020: 13%) and
72% (2020: 75%) of the total loans to margin clients as at 31
December 2021. The balances due from the largest securities
margin clients and the ten largest securities margin clients
were approximately HK$7,432,000 (2020: HK$7,200,000)
(net of allowance for credit losses) and HK$36,765,000
(2020: HK$42,986,000) (net of allowance for credit losses)
respectively as at 31 December 2021, of which the amount is
secured by clients’ securities with an aggregate fair value of
HK$12,261,000 (2020: HK$24,301,000) and HK$99,552,000 (2020:
HK$137,572,000) respectively as at 31 December 2021. Apart
from the exposures to ten largest margin clients’ exposure
mentioned above, the directors of the Company consider that
the concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer
base being large and unrelated.

Accounts receivable from the business of advisory for financial
management and properties investment

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the directors of the
Company consider that the concentration of credit risk on
business of advisory for financial management and properties
investment are limited due to the customer base being large
and unrelated.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Accounts receivable from trading business

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 50% (2020: 80%)
and 99% (2020: 99%) of the total accounts receivable due
from the Group's largest debtor and the five largest debtors
respectively within the trading business. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals.

Loan receivable

As described in more details in Note 26, the credit risk on loan
receivable is managed through regular analysis of the ability of
borrowers to meet interest and principal repayment obligations
and by changing the lending limits where appropriate. Exposure
to credit risk is also managed by obtaining collateral. As at 31
December 2021, apart from the exposures to the concentration
of credit risk from one independent counterparty amounting
to HK$16,940,000 (2020: one independent counterparties
amounting to HK$15,890,000), the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk on loan receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Accounts receivable arising from HKFECC & HKSCC

The credit risk of accounts receivable from HKFECC & HKSCC is
considered as not material taking into account the good market
reputations and high credit ratings of the counterparties.

Pledged fixed deposit/bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by authorised credit-
rating agencies.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The directors of the
Company believe that there are no significant increase in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12-month ECL.

EMTH @
HHERABREEBRREBE (&

EERERR B ETE (&)

ELXBEBHEAEREEGE BRI

o
A

EZRIARGHFREFZTEEERSES
SR REEBHEEEREBEEZE
WERMZ EERBRESTEBEKX

BIFERFARITAR

AR ZHFHIRER I EETRIEET
mEEEFRZBIT BRBEEZEE
BB R

B thERRARIZE

MEMEBURRRRREME 2 RTES
EHRBEELEECH BECRKGE
ZEEBREMENMUKREEE XK ZAHE
ME R H MW AR R & 2 AT IR [El 14
ETENFG - ARRNEZTIRBEHHE
SBUARZFRIBRYE & B R L = R E R0
BXx&EEREI12ELAMEEHIEIR
B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR E MBERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - —F+_H=+—HIEEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

6. ERITH #E)

HHERREZEEEREE (&

EERERR B ETE (&)

AEEAIBEERBRKRR L EETYE

the following categories:

Internal

credit rating Description

A ER = E 5T 4R g

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk
of default and does not have any
past-due amounts

EREE RZEFHENRERER
i dE T3 AR RN IE

Doubtful There have been significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition
information developed internally or
external resources

F5¢ B ARSI SSN R E TR E AL 2 BRI EE R
EE R B YRR LR EE LN

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

518 ERBRTNEMEELNIREERE

Written-off There is evidence indicating that debtor
is severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery

e ERBERTEBABARERFREHE

BEAEE I EE R TER

ll

Accounts Other
receivable financial assets
FE U BR =X HthEmMEE
Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL

not credit-impaired

2HATEHAE ERIE— 12{E B a5
FHBEERE EEKIE
Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —

not credit-impaired

not credit-impaired

THEREERE— TR EERE—
REREERE RAEREERIE

Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired

2 HRTEAE ERE— T HATEARE B R —
HIREERE HIREERE

Amount is written off

158 A RARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
TR IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. TFTH #)
Financial risk management objectives and MERAREEEEREK &

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERERBEFFE (E)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s TRFMAEF BETEBESEBRTE
financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment: ZEMEBEEZEERRRO :
2021 2020
12-month Gross Gross
External Internal  or lifetime carrying carrying
Notes  credit rating credit rating ECL amounts amounts
12885
biN:i [ 2HEY "S5 _"Z_TF
Bzt 8T H-BE 858 AR A eEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Financial assets at REHNAHEZ
amortised cost TREE
Statutory deposits EERE 25 N/A Low 12-month ECL 2,050 1,930
B & 12BBBEH
(note 1) EEBE
(=)
Accounts receivable BRRERPARS 29 N/A Low 12-month ECL 20,047 20,139
arising from dealing FrEE 2 FEURER TR FEA & 12ERTEH
in securities-cash clients (note 2) =EEBE
(MizE2)
Loans to securities BYESREERRR 29 N/A Low 12-month ECL 50,836 57,459
margin clients pd=£ TER & 12857
(note 2) EEBE
(fizE2)
Accounts receivable ETEMKRRHBES 29 N/A (note 3)  Lifetime ECL 26,032 24,126
arising from business EBFEEZ RER (f#583) - not credit
of trading electronic products ~ FEUERZR impaired
and equipment 2EA
ZEEE
—KHE
FERE
Accounts receivable MELEEHM 29 N/A (note 3)  Lifetime ECL - 4,748
arising from business EEZ IR RER (f#5£3) - not credit
of properties investment impaired
2 HEATEHR
ZEEE
—KHE
EERE
Accounts receivable ERBEHEER 29 N/A Low Lifetime ECL 4,614 9,477
arising from HKFECC & HKSCC BB ERES RER & -notcredit
2 MR (note 2) impaired
(it z£2) ZHEATEHR
FEEE
—KHE
FERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\7|'\

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZT——

BT ERRMIEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Accounts receivable
arising from business
of advisory for financial
management

Other receivables
and deposits

Loans receivable

Pledged fixed deposits

Bank balances
(trust and segregated
accounts)

Bank balances
(general accounts)
and cash

PHEESAEY
FiTEE 4 2 FEWBR R

LS

BHRREHER

RITHER Btk
BIURF)

RIT8EE (—RIRR)
ERE

Notes

fiysE

29

30

26

31

31

31

F+"A=t—HLEE

6. ERITH #E)

KBl ETE (&)

B 75 L B
=1
12-month
External Internal  or lifetime
credit rating credit rating ECL
1288 5
biN:i [ 2HTEH
8T H-GE 858
N/A (note 3)  Lifetime ECL
RER (f#553) - not credit
impaired
2R
EERE
—%Eﬁ
EERE
N/A Low 12-month ECL
TiE (39 1283 B
(note 1) =EEE
(UEa
N/A Low 12-month ECL
B & 12BBBEH
(note 2) EEBE
(fizE2)

Baa2 or above (note 4) 12-month ECL
Baa2g Ll L BTy 12{8 8 B
FEBE
Aa3 or above (note 4) 12-month ECL
Aa3Ei M b BTy 12{8 8 B
FEBE
Baa2 or above (note 4) 12-month ECL
Baa2s Ml £ (GEZY 12}@5@%
EEF1E

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAT

2021
Gross
carrying
amounts

B8
HEAREE
HK$'000

F#ET

90,110

17,090

87,378

31,859

EEERKREE (&

2020

Gross
carrying
amounts
“ECTF
MEERE(E
HK$'000
THET

561

88,160

15,909

171,058

92,355

20,610
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_T——

iR EMBHRRMEE

F+-A=+—HLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERITH &)

Financial risk management objectives and MERAREEEEREK &
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERERBEFFE (E)

notes: Kzt .

(1) Included in other receivables and deposits are amounts representing (1) HMEWEFARESOERLCEESBEEL

other receivables and refundable deposits for operating securities dealing
business and for using trading system which the Group is entitled but
held by SEHK, SFC, HKSCC, HKFE and supplier. The Group assessed the
loss allowance for these other receivables and deposits on 12m ECL basis.
In determining the ECL, the Group has taken into account the historical
default experience and forward-looking information as appropriate. There
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no additional
impairment allowance (2020: HK$264,000) for other receivables on the
individual assessment.

Other receivables are recoverable on demand as at years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

Movement in the loss allowance for other receivable is as follows:

RERRZ R M (REBBEEERERE B
Fi BEE BN REE B RHESR
B) FREEZ HMEWERR R ATRERE - A&
B 12ER AR EEBREETLAZFHEME
WIER RS2 BiEEE - NEERMREES
B AEERBS RELBOCRRABEER
(NER) - BV EERRT RES
Bme-p8E—S-_—F+_A=+—HILEE
AR R8BI 5T ik 7 EL fth AR WL BR R E R RSN
BERHE (CETTF [ 264,00087T) ©

HthEWRREBERBEE S —Fr _ S _TF
+ZB=+—HIEEEBRERYE -

B ERERARTIRRE L EB T -

2021 2020

—g=-F% i S 33
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12mECL  (credit-impaired) 12m ECL (credit-impaired)
12BREH 2HBHEERR NEAEH 2HBEHEESE
FEBRE (BREERE) FEBE  (HREERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TR TiEx T
Balance at beginning of the year FMiER 264 - - -
Addition for the year AEEEM - - 264 -
Balance at end of the year FRER 264 - 264 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT ERRMIEE

l|\7r\
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_ZE-_—F+_"H=+—
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

AIEEE

EMIA @

Financial risk management objectives and MBEREMEEEEREK (&

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contintued) EERERBEFFE (E)

notes: (Continued) Wizt (@)

2) For accounts receivable arising from dealing in securities-cash clients, 2) MBS RERRARGESE ZRINER BT HE
loans to securities margin clients and loan receivable, the Group has FRESFAZERKERERMS  ~5£EE
applied the general approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance. EREBMBRELENEIRZ — R EHERS
The Group determines the expected credit losses on these items by BEE AEEEAENTHEEZEEEZE
individual assessment. HEEEE-

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed Gt IEEDRBEBARBRAZE A
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and borrowers are FHZELPERENET UG B BGH
adjusted for forward-looking information that is available without undue BEMARE A ES AT REEREHSB
cost or effort. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group B RHEEZT—HF+-A=+—HILFE"
provided HK$24,000 (2020: HK$40,000), HK$28,000 (2020: HK$31,000) AEBERBENTGEDNMBSREELR
and HK$19,000 (2020: HK$19,000) impairment allowance for accounts SHEEZEEIRT A TESRERETAZE
receivable arising from dealing in securities cash clients, loans to e FEU B SR ET R R B 24,0008 7T (ZE
securities margin clients and loan receivable respectively on the individual T4 1 40,0007 7T) 28, 0007575 (ZEZEHE:
assessment. 31,0007 7T) % 19,0007% 7T (ZZ =4 1 19,0007
JT) ©
The following table shows the movement that has been recognised for TRITRE—R G EZHREBIRESZ PR
accounts receivable from cash clients under the general approach. Rz EH o
Movement in the loss allowance of cash clients R EFEEREZ EE)
2021 2020
—B--% ZECEF
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12mECL  (credit-impaired) 12m ECL (credit-impaired)
12EREH 28BHEEFR PEAES 2HEHEEER
FEFE  (HRGEERE) FEEE  (LREERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THER TiEx TR
Balance at beginning of the year FAESER 40 - 11 -
(Reversal)/addition for the year AEE (ER) /LM (13) = 29 -
Transfer to credit-impaired BREEEERE (3) 3 -* -*
Amounts written off as uncollectible MR e el IE = (3) - -*
Balance at end of the year FRER 24 - 40 -
* Jess than HK$1,000 * 0 1.000BTTHUT

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZE_ZE_—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

notes: (Continued)

@

(Continued)
The following table shows the movement that has been recognised for
accounts receivable from securities margin clients under the general

approach.

Movement in the loss allowance of securities margin clients

EMIA #@

MEAREEDERKE (2
EERERBEFFE (E)
=)

) #)

TRITRE— RS ERERBEREEES
AR 28

L IRAE PR IRRE 2 )

2021 2020
B —T-%F

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

12mECL  (credit-impaired) 12mECL (credit-impaired)

12EREY 2HBHEEFE PNEAEH 2HEHEEFE

FEER  (LREERE) FEBE  (LREERE)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FHT FHET FHT

Balance at beginning of the year FEERR 31 - 3 -
(Reversal)/addition for the year AEE (5 /1810 3) = 67 -
Transfer to credit-impaired BREZEERAE = = (70) 70
Amounts written-off as uncollectible MR R IE - = - (70)
Balance at end of the year FRER 28 - 31 -

In determining the recoverability of the loans to securities margin clients,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the accounts
receivable from the date credit was initially granted, subsequent
settlement and the fair value of pledged marketable securities up to the
reporting date. In the opinion of the Directors, there is no further credit
provision required in excess of existing loss allowance.

FERREERTESRETTRZERZA
WEHER  §EREMABRUEEAREESR
BEARLEZEURREEER HREFKR
REEMRBESFZATEZERE - EFR
7 BAGHRAEGEBHEMIINZE-TEER
fie
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &E_ZT—

BT ERRMIEE

—F+ZA=+—HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea) 6. HRITH #E)
Financial risk management objectives and MERAREEEEREK &
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuead) EERERBEFFE (E)
notes: (Continued) Kzt ()
2 (Continued) ) #)

The following table shows the movement that has been recognised for
loan receivable under the general approach.

TRIVTIRE— RS AR

BBz EE e

2021 2020

g% ZBIFE

12m ECL 12m ECL

128 AEH 1218 TEH

FEFE ==t

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FER

Balance at beginning of the year FEEEL 19 8
Addition for the year REEEM - 11
Balance at end of the year FRERR 19 19

(3) The following table shows the movement that has been recognised for
accounts receivable from business of properties investment under the

simplified approach.

@)  TRITRBEBLEHEZNERBYERERESE

2 FERARFR SR 2 B8 o

2021 2020

—E--fF ZBIFE

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit-impaired) (credit-impaired) (not credit-impaired)

2HBEHEEFSR 2HEHREEFR 2HEHBEERE

(REBEERE) (HREERE) REBREEREB)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FER TER THET

Balance at beginning of the year FREER 143 - -
Addition for the year AEEEM 4,750 - 143
Transfer to credit-impaired BEZHREERE (4,893) 4,893 143
Transfer to assets held for sale BREEHEHEEE = (4,893) -
Balance at end of the year FREGR - - 143

HYEREEBRMEL ZBUIRRM S > ~&H
BRERBFEERTZANRKRYEEEZS
HEZRREEBE-

For accounts receivable arising from business of properties investment,
the Group determines the expected credit losses on these items by using
a provision matrix, grouped by past due status.

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAT
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iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

notes: (Continued)

@)

(Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

The following table shows the movement that has been recognised for
accounts receivable from business of trading electronic products and
equipment under the simplified approach.

EMTH @
HHEEAREEEEREE (&

EERRR K BEFE (&)

Wit : ()

® &
EHBREDRBEEBAZ B TAENZE
LEBEORT UM ERBATHBSHA
AL NS 2 AT E R R

TRITREBELENEFERRREES
ETFTEL 2 RWERTFESR 2 EH o

2021 2020

—E--& “ETRE

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit-impaired) (not credit-impaired)

2HREBEERR ZHBHEEFE

(REREEHE) REBREEREB)

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FET

Balance at beginning of the year FLERR 358 -
Addition for the year REEEM 4 358
Balance at end of the year FRER 362 358

The following table shows information about the group’s exposure to credit
risk and ECLs for accounts receivable from business of trading electronic

TRITERMEAERANBETFERRRBEZE
BRERREENEEEERAREEERE

products and equipment. Ko
2021
—BZ-F
Expected loss rate  Gross carrying amount Loss Allowance
BHEBEER RHAE BREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% TR TERT
Current 0 0.0% 25,327 -
Past due over 270 days 2708 L £ 51.3% 705 (362)
2020
“ZT°%H
Expected lossrate  Gross carrying amount Loss Allowance
ki) 3k REAE EEE
% HK$'000 HKS'000
% TER TR
Current BPEA 1.48% 24,126 (358)

No significant credit risk was expected by the Group for receivables from
advisory for financial management as the balance was considered as
immaterial.

HREFRALAER AEEFERRENHE
BN ERRIAT BEREERE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &E_ZT—

BT ERRMIEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

notes: (Continued)

(4) The credit risk on bank balances (including segregated and general
accounts) are limited because the counterparties are with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. Majority of bank
balances are deposited in reputable large commercial banks with credit
rating of Baa2 or above issued by Moody's and Aa3 issued by China
Chengxin respectively.

Impairment assessment policies

The Group's policy requires the review of individual outstanding
amounts at least monthly or more regularly depending on
individual circumstances or market condition.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9, the risk management department
is responsible in developing and maintaining the processes for
measuring ECL, the impairment requirements under HKFRS
9. The ECL are assessed by the Group on annual basis. The
Group applies simplified approach to measure ECL on accounts
receivable (except for dealing in securities-cash clients and
loans to securities margin clients); and general approach to
measure ECL on accounts receivable arising from dealing in
securities-cash clients and loans to securities margin clients and
other financial assets accounted for at amortised cost. Under
the simplified approach, the Group measures the loss allowance
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

—F+ZA=+—HLEFE

EMIA @

HHERREZEEEREE (&

EERERR B ETE (&)

Mz ()

@ HRRZHFEEREEIREBATSES

SR BERITHETE (BIEB R —RIRE) 2158
ERRA R KRS D IRITAEEE RN D BIER A
FBaa2B U L EEFTRUKR PG/ TFABEE
TR EERITZ REEERTT

BEEFIZE R

FEBZHREXEVERARAEREEBNR
‘Zlﬁﬁﬂ?%%*ﬁ@%f@iﬂl%ﬂ% HEBAW
TR o

RRMEBMBRESERNFIORE BRE
ERXMEStERERRETEMBRS
ZERBIORBE T ZREERGFBRRAGEE
BREZEF AEEESFHEBEESS
BIEHT - AEBRRBBIE A EIE
R (BHFREER XS MG TESR
BEERZEMMGIN ZEBEEEE
RERB—RT A EESFREE R RS
EEZBUBER - BTESREEERZ
ERRZBHENATRZEMEREEL
RHEEBEE RE[EDE FEBRLL
ERENAREEBREZERAEHERR
o
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iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings, corporate
bonds and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group's liquidity position is monitored on a daily basis
by management and is reviewed monthly by the Directors.
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. The
interest payments are computed using contractual rates or, if
variable, based on the prevailing interest rate at the end of each
reporting period.

EMTH @
HHERABREEBRREBE (&

BB ER

EERHETRRR  AEEERRER
EEBRAENAZNAEREERREIR
ERERITEMBZRERSTAREE
BKF - EREEREBEERARDRHZH
BB RRERE T EMZE -

rEFEZABESRNIHEEESHE
ROTHEFSAER - TRFLEEE
BREZCENPREZEHEBEZHR TS
MEERN -ZRENTER R/
BEZEFEONREFEEZAMRERS
MERH -

ZROENARASELTE AR
BEREHTIRR (57 8) SREHK
RTRIEHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - —F+_H=+—HIEEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERTH &)
Financial risk management objectives and BERSEEEEREER &)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) BB A (E
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  and 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate orless  3-months  6-12 months 1:2 year 25years  Over5 years cash flows amount
RERR
g R=ERR FHR
THRE M ZEAER  ~ETIER -ERE RELE BENE  REMENE REE

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Fin Fin Fin TiEn TiEn TR TR FiEn

Financial liabiities ERAR
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-%+2A=1+-A
Accounts payable - 164,807 - - - - - 164,807 164,807
Other payables and acorued expenses - 97,44 - - - - - 97,244 97,244
Amount cue to Directors 0%-5.00% 225997 - - - - = 205,997 205997
Borrowings
-Variable rate 5.00% 684 692 36,852 = o o 38,228 36,000
- Fived rate 13.57% 360,744 = 23143 = = = 383,887 354,616
Corporate bonds AFfE % 7.03%11.57% = 4,100 10,635 280 4275 = 19,290 17,482
Convertiole bonds maRES 10.60% - - - 20,800 - - 20,800 17,846
Lease liabities i 5.13%11.33% 675 688 53 - - - 1416 1,388
850,151 5,480 70,682 21,080 4,215 - 951,668 915,380
Weighted ~ Ondemand Total
average  and3months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate or less 3émonths 612 months 1-2 year 25years  Over5years cash flows amount
REXR
meg  R=ERZ FHR
TRE MR ZEAER AEHCER —EME RERE BENE &8 REE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
Financial liabilities ERafR
At31 December 2020 RIZ-EE+ZA=+-H
Accounts payable R - 138,393 - - - - - 138393 138393
Other payables and accrual expenses BT R ER - 42518 - - - - - 12518 12518
Bills payable - 175,502 - - - - - 175,502 175,502
Amount due to Directors 0%-5.13% 143578 - - - - - 143578 143578
Borrowings
- Variable rate 5.00% 684 692 13%9 51728 - - 60,503 55,500
-Fixedrate g 8.08% 306,537 - - 21382 - - 347919 339,582
Corporate bonds ATES 7.03%1157% 2030 8,257 4377 14735 4,555 - 33954 30,176
Lease ligbilities HEAE 5.13%-11.33% 673 852 1347 1,405 - - 4217 4,084
829915 9,801 7123 95,250 4,555 - 946,644 929,333
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair values

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis. The Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair
values.

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

R_F_—£+"_A=+—H
BATESIARMER
WAZBRATERE

As at 31 December 2021
Investment in equity
instruments at FVTOCI

Level 1
F—k
HK$'000
FET

990

SMIA @
AFAE

BB TFEAEZEMEERTMER
ZAFE

EMEERTRMEBBEZATERADE
EEAERMEBEREREDNEE-EF
BoEE M HRERANIZBIHEA AR RS
MEERETRMEAENREEEZEATER
o

=103

i

BERATEABZEAENETHEERE
MEEZATE

S M BREMS » A FEFERE
AFEFEBABBEZIEREERAT
Bt ERABBHAREZEZMNER
BF—MBRABS =R FHEUT

s F—MBARENSERNFELN
ARG ZEREERERR GRS
B2 HRE CREREB)

s BRBABBNEENEGR/ZE
R EEDBEREABE (5 R
BERERRIN 5 K

e BZRBABBNEENERZA
ABRREARE-

Level 2 Level 3 Total
B BZR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
- - 990

ACEBET A=A
BATEHARMRE
BAZBATALE

As at 31 December 2020
Investment in equity
instruments at FVTOCI

1,171

1,171
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &E_ZT—

7.

—F+ZA=+—HLEFE

REVENUE 7. W
2021 2020
—E--F CEIEZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue from contracts with TEE BB REERNEI5THE N
customers within the scope of BT EELRBRIEER S
HKFRS 15, disaggregated by major 2 EAAUES
products or services lines:
Trading Business: Bz .
Sales of electronic products and HEBTESREE
equipment 493,958 984,666
Financial Business: B E N
Commission and brokerage income EEASECEHION 17,766 12,930
Advisory and consultancy fee sBERREE & 2,265 2,156
513,989 999,752
Revenue from other sources outside TEEMEREARE155 S E I
the scope of HKFRS 15: R EEMARE S WS
Financial Business: B E N
Interest income arising from SEVEERES TR BUTA
financial business 7,399 7,541
Property Investment: L
Rental income that are fixed BEEHEUWA 1,016 5,875
8,415 13,416
522,404 1,013,168
For revenue from contracts with HNEEAMBHREERH15REBERN
customers within the scope of HKFRS 15 BIE R &4 ¢
Time of revenue recognition WAt 2 1 50 R
At a point in time BE R 513,989 999,752
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iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

REVENUE (Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

(1

2)

3

Dealing in securities and futures

The Group provides broking and dealing services for
securities and futures dealing. Commission income is
recognised at a point in time on the execution date of the
trades at a certain percentage of the transaction value
of the trades executed. The Group also provide handling
service for securities, futures, customer accounts. Fee
income is recognised when the transaction is executed.

Corporate finance advisory

The Group also provides corporate advisory services
to corporate clients for their corporate actions. The
corporate finance advisory income do not provide an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date to the Company as it is unlikely that a customer
can obtain benefit before the Company completes
all its services according to the contract terms of the
agreements signed with customers, the corporate finance
advisory service are recognised at a point in time when
the relevant services are completed.

Sales of electronic products and equipment

Revenue from trading of electronic products and
equipment are recognised at a point in time when the
goods have been delivered to the customer’s specific
location.

Transaction price allocated to remaining
performance obligation for contacts with
customers

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group's existing contracts is HK$6,862,000
(2020: HK$1,739,000). The Group will recognise the expected
revenue in future when the goods are delivered to customer,
which is expected to occur within the next 12 months (2020: 12
months).

7. WE @)

BERIIUANZENERE

(1) EBEBEZHFRHE

FEBRBHSRMEXZRMEL
KRR F R - ABEWATIIN R Z AT
Bz R -—KBMEFRTISZ
REBEZ-EADLEEDB -AEER
Tz HE -FRRPEMHEE
R BRUWAT IR AITR 5 K

200

2) ©EEHBEER

AEBTRAEERTFEHEEES
R UM MERMERETES bE
MEBBRALERZS THRIE
MBI R B AR B R H R R FI T
BA REAREAABREREAET AR
5] BY 1 5% BY & A9 1% 7R 5T B EL PR B Bk
Bz ZERAKRAIESESH m
i 1k 2 Fh E R R AR 5 S AR B AR 75 52
PR EETTHEST o

@) HEBFEmMMKRE

REETEMRRBRHZWmTY
RERIZMTER 24 E i 3 6 i

30

ERENETORERFEROEE
ZRBER

N _E_—F+_-_FA=+—H &x&EH
HEGHETIREER TENSTEZR
SIEHEE 46,862,000 (ZE 24 :
1,739,00087T) - AEBRNERNGE
BEERRIHENEBEREG BRIk
2EB (ZEZZF 12@8) "X
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - —F+_H=+—HIEEE

184

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HfthkA
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Interest income from bank IRITH B WA 4 1,490
Sundry income FEIEWA 3,530 2,557
Handling charge income FEEWRA 1,371 1,172
Government subsidies (note) BT #EBh (BaE) = 3,385
4,905 8,604

note:  Government grants mainly represent subsidies received in connection
with the support from the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Government of Hong

Mz BISH#EEEEEMEBRATHREBFHNNZ

NEETEBREINE - ZF

FE BN I R AR AR

Kong Special Administrative Region. There are no unfulfilled conditions or BRI AT 4 o
contingencies relating to these subsidies.
9. OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES, NET Hthk sk Esia ;358
2021 2020
—E--F CE_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Impairment loss on property, ME -BENREZRERBE

plant and equipment - (36,063)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on the nature of the products provided and services
rendered.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group is
currently organised into four operating and reportable segments
— (1) trading business, (2) mineral mining, oil and gas business (3)
financial business and (4) property investment. These revenue
streams are the basis of the internal reports about components
of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Board of
Directors in order to allocate resources to segments and to
access their performance.

sales of electronic products
and equipment

Trading business -

exploration and production of
mineral, oil and gas

Mineral mining, oil -
and gas business

provision of financial service,
including stockbroking, futures
and options broking, mutual funds,
insurance-linked investment
plans and provision of corporate
financial services and securities
margin financing

Financial business -

Property investment - rental income

10.

DEEN

MARARNEFE METBEERRE W
SREDEERAFEDERREZER
DBDEBREFREHERMIGTREBEZ1E
BiEDER-

BE_T_—F+"RA=t+—HLEE>
AEEBEMAHNESERT 2R D EE
B—MEZEF > QRE HRES > Q)&
MEFZROMERBE - LFRHNERSE
FEEHERARAERESEFRENZA
WHREZEE > AUHRDENEERK
Stz D BT RER -

BREH HESFERRRHE

R HRES - B BARRARE

RREE
SHMES - RESERS 2R
REL HERBEL
£ ERER RS
WREF A RiRHE
ERBERS URES
HRHRE

MERE 5L ON

Annual Report 2021 « —Z ——fF 4R

185



186

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &E_ZT—

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results
by reportable segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2021

—F+ZA=+—HLEFE

10. DEEH &
DEWERFEE

MR EERTERDBREREEZD
#r

BE_E-_—S+-_A=+—HLEE

Mineral
Trading mining, oil and Financial Property
business  gas business business investment  Consolidated
BREH HRER EES mERE 3]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT TAET TAET TAT TAET
REVENUE Wi
Segment revenue DEWE 493,958 - 27,430 1,016 522,404
RESULTS £
Segment profit/(loss) DR/ (518) 27,809 (64) 6,390 430,414 464,549
Corporate administration costs ‘A B{THEHR (71,947)
Profit before taxation BRI AR 392,602
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continueq) 10. DHEEF (&
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DEWEREE (&
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z_ZF+_HA=+—HLEFE
Mineral
Trading  mining, oil and Financial Property
business gas business business investment Consolidated
B5E% HRER ERIEH MERE oye)
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TAT TAET TAT TART FET
REVENUE s
Segment revenue DEWE 984,666 - 22,627 53875 1,013,168
RESULTS E4
Segment loss DEEEE (1,138) (62) (536) (197,913) (199,649)
Corporate administration costs ~ ‘AB{THEHR (51,433)
Impairment loss on HitnEwarnEsE
other receivables (264)
Loss before taxation BRI A5 1R (251,346)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the EENE SR ARER G BERME
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment profit/ BleDfEEFEIEIE T E DR AT ITH
loss represents the financial results by each segment without ERBRTESDBMExBE ERMOE
allocation of corporate administration costs. This is the measure EZEEERER AN UMD EE R KA
reported to the Board of Directors for the purposes of resource *IFo

allocation and performance assessment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZT——

n\7|'\

F+"A=t—HLEE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continueq)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable segments:

At 31 December 2021

10. DERER (&
PHEEERERE

MIBAEERTZERD
#r

BREERGRZD

R-E-_—F+”"A=+—H

Mineral
Trading mining, oil and Financial Property
business  gas business business investment  Consolidated
BREH HRER EES mERE 3]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT TAET TAET TAT TAET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 137,208 3 209,619 4,743,571 5,090,401
Assets classified as held for sale  H#EAFEHEEE 385,660
Unallocated assets REBEE 37,321
Consolidated total assets REEERE 5,513,382
LIABILITIES aff
Segment liabilities NEEE 109,888 465 157,090 582,862 850,305
Liabilities associated with assets B AEABEHE
classified as held for sale EERENEE 5,806
Unallocated liabilities REEEE 553,406
Consolidated total liabilities REaBEEE 1,409,517
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continuea)

At 31 December 2020

10. SERER (&
DEBEERER A

N_E_EF+_F=+—H

Mineral
Trading  mining, oil and Financial Property
business gas business business investment Consolidated
B5E% HRER ERIEH MERE oye)
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FiET TER
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 212,513 4 223,144 4,539,125 4,974,786
Unallocated assets REBEE 1,026
Consolidated total assets GRBEEMRE 4,975,812
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities NESE 206,457 474 176,817 449,164 832,912
Unallocated liabilities REEEE 446,270
Consolidated total liabilities RHEEREE 1,279,182

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
assets of the investment holding companies and assets
classified as held for sale.

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments, other
than amount due to Directors, corporate bonds and
liabilities of the investment holding companies and
liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale.

MERDPERBERDEFEBRTEDEM

ail

- BREZERADNEERDESF
FHENEEN REEEEDKT

EESE-

- BREZRAFINEMEERE-Q
BEFAEEUREDBERFELY
EEEEMNEREIN FIEREED
ETEENE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - —F+_H=+—HIEEE

10. DEEH &
Hith 2 EE#

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

Mineral
mining, oil
Trading and gas Financial Property
business business business  investment Total ~ Unallocated  Consolidated
BA%H BRER SRER nERE EE 7k aa
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FER TER TER TER FEn TER TET
For the year ended 31 December 2021 “BC-5+A=+-ALEE
Amounts included in the measure of ﬁ;ﬁ*ﬁ (BB /ERRNEEESA
segment (ossprofitor segment assets: 288!
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 1% BRERREITE 106 - 85 4,636 4,827 65 4,892
Depreciation of right of use assets FREEERE 187 - 2,301 168 2,656 - 2,656
Finance costs YHKER 263 - 3,240 25 3,528 45,731 49,265
Interest income FIEMA = = (7,399) @) (7,403) = (7,403)
(Reversal of impairment lossesy/impairment losses  Z&SA At B2 2BEEL
on financial assets at amortised cost, net (RAESEDR /AEEE 38 4 - (16) 4,750 4738 = 4738
Mineral
mining, oil
Trading and gas Financial Property
business husiness business investment Total Unallocated ~ Consolidated
B5%% BRER SRER MELE aft FAE &8
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEn FERT TEn FERT TEr FERT TEr
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZZESAST-HUEEE
Amounts included in the measure of SFENE (R /RNANEEETA
segment (loss)/profit or segment assets: 8.
Additions to property, plant and equipment RENE BERZE 94 - - 73 1017 - 1017
Additions to investment properties RERENE - - - 926 9 - 9
Additions to right-of-use assets REREEEE 33 - - 483 846 - 846
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 1% BRERR & E 13 - 2% 3905 4174 8 420
Depreciation of right of use assets FREEERE 175 - 2301 113 2589 - 2589
Finance costs YHER 7 - 3646 2 3675 2647 230
Interest income FIEMA (1.487) - (7,541) Q) 9,031) - 9,031)
Impairment losses on financial assets at REHRAGEZERERZAERE
amortised cost, net 28 511 - 107 254 872 - 872
Impairment loss on property, VESC I EC L
plant and equipment - - - 36,063 36,063 - 36,063
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4= A
e 1
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE_Z_—
10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. DHEEF (&

Geographical information

All of the activities of trading business are based in China. The
activities of oil and gas business are based in Madagascar. All of
the activities of the financial business are based in Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue and its non-current assets, other than
financial assets at FVTOCI, statutory deposits, deposit paid
for construction, loans receivable and deferred tax assets, by
geographical location of the assets regarding its operations are

B H

BREBZ—UEASHIEPEET AR
EBAHERENHMET sMEHZ

—UEEIEEBET

BEAFESARMEZARAZEME
ENEERET BERT BRERKNE
EMBEEN AEEREEZHIEUE
FoHEEZ Rm REFFRBEESFN

detailed below: T
Revenue Non-current assets
Wz FERBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—EZ-f% —ET-TH B C—T-TH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FHET FTAT FAET
Hong Kong &E 27,430 22,627 1,107 3,565
PRC = 494,974 990,117 2,538,614 2,371,019
Madagascar FIEMAT - 424 48,760 53,138
522,404 1,013,168 2,588,481 2,427,722
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - —F+_H=+—HIEEE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. D EEN (&
Information about major customers EREXrEERZEH
Revenue from customers for the years ended 31 December HE_Z-_—FRZZEZZFE+TZA
2021 and 2020 contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the —t+t—BLEFELEAERRLKZEI10%U L
Group are generated from trading business as follow: NEFWNEEEES %?‘WD T
2021 2020
:g: - ﬂi — 7 —_ E'E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A EEA N/A REH* 273,868
Customer B =FB N/A RER* 273,087
Customer C zHC N/A REFR* 110,067
Customer D ZAD N/A REH* 138,029
Customer E EEE 158,198 N/A FiE R *
Customer F EZRF 148,899 N/A 3B *
Customer G =ZAG 67,209 N/A 58 3 *
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total * A L 2 I A AN B AR U ER B9 10% ML o
revenue of the Group.
There is no other single customer contributing over 10% of total HE_Z - FRZZEZZF+ZA
revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2021 E—i—— HIEFETRAME —XFEARE
and 2020. R ERAI10%LA £ o
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11. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES OF FINANCIAL 1. RBHERSAEZEMEEZR
ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST, NET (BI85 %E
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
(Impairment losses)/reversal of BT E BT ELE 2 FEUERRR
impairment losses on accounts 2 CRERIR) RERIR[CIE .
receivable arising from:
— cash clients —REER 13 (29)
- margin clients —RBEEL 3 (67)
— trading business —B5%E% (4) (358)
- property investment —ELE (4,750) (143)
Loans receivable EWRER - (11
Other receivables HhFEWERR - (264)
(4,738) (872)
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. BAT%EH
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Corporate bonds NEES 1,972 2,336
Borrowings BE 43,921 27,106
Amount due to a director B — R EEHE 2,364 2,614
Convertible bonds AR ES 842 -
Lease liabilities HEaRd 166 266
49,265 32,322
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &E_ZT—

—F+ZA=+—HLEFE

13. TAXATION 13. #R1\E

2021 2020
—B-—F —ZEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET

Current tax: BPEAFRIA -
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax R 1 ZEFTIE R 6,956 1,270

(Over)/under-provision in prior years: BEEERE (B8R AR

Hong Kong Profits Tax SENER = 31
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax FRE B ZPTIEHR (1,247) -
5,709 1,301

Deferred taxation: FIEFRIE
Charge/(credit) for the year REENR GA) 110,690 (39,730)
116,399 (38,429)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the

years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the relevant group
entities have no assessable profits or the assessable profits are
wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both
years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. No provision for profits
tax is made in other jurisdictions as the subsidiaries operating in
other jurisdictions have no assessable profits for both years.

HRBE T —Fr“ZT-ZTF+_AH
_+ HIEFERRERERRERRR

A B RIREN B 2 BMBRRIRIE
E‘ﬂa}fﬁé MU ERZMEFESIRER
FISH o

REBEFEAREMBEBREEMESR A
72 (ThEMRSRZE) REEBREZE
FEAR B> REM B AR R ZMEEEZR
ER25%°

REMBEEEEEE ZRIBREREEEE
BRTMIFBT AR EHMBEEZEERL
EZWEBAR N ZmEFEIEEMNER
MamA o WA EHREAM B ERE ZFF
e o
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13. TAXATION (Continued) 13. 118 (@)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) FERBAGEERMEMZEKERZ
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss BRI AIEF (B518) HERWMT -

and other comprehensive income as follows:

2021 2020
—EB-—-F —ZTETH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BrIATRF) (8518) 392,602 (251,346)
Taxation charge/(credit) at the Hong Kong I E B H1EIRE16.5%:1 &
Profits Tax rate of 16.5% ZMIEZ Y, (K%R) 64,779 (41,472)
Tax effect of income not taxable E=ZEE LGN
for tax purpose 2B (1,757) @371
Tax effect of estimated tax losses KRR EHFRFEEE
not recognised 2B 1,867 91
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ENGIE Rp
for tax purpose ZHRBE 13,859 16,404
Tax effect of temporary differences not ~ REERE R EZREZ B E
recognised 7 23
Utilization of tax losses previously not EHRREEECRETE
recognized (1,108) (17)
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BIFEERE (B85 B (1,247) 31
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FREMBEEZEELE 2 B AR
operating in other jurisdictions TEMEZz & 39,999 (13,118)
Taxation for the year FEMRIE 116,399 (38,429)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - —F+_H=+—HIEEE

14. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 14. FE&H 7 (8518)
2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FEx
Profit/(loss) for the year has been FE&MN, (B8 BB TIIRIE
arrived at after charging:
Auditor's remuneration ZEENEN & 1,900
Depreciation of property, ME- -BERREITE
plant and equipment 4,892
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEEITE 2,656
Staff costs including Directors’ BINE (BIEESHS)
remuneration 26,768
Contributions to retirement benefits BROREF) FT B HR
scheme 567
Cost of inventories recognised as expense HEzR AR 2 FE/M 463,207
Expenses related to short-term BREHEEZER - HAEYE
leases — office premises 2,633
Rental income from investment property &R EYEHEERARBEESH
less direct outgoings 1,016

2020

—E-FF

HK$'000
TR

1,600

4,242
2,589

31,420

654
978,482

2,760

5,875
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

15. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS

4 A
e 1

15. EERFETHAEME

2021
“E--F
Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
other benefits
benefits scheme Total
Fees HER BREF  remuneration
s H{thigF HE A RN E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TER FTERT FTERT
Executive Directors WITEE
Hui Chi Ming 1R - 1,200 18 1,218
Neil Bush Ef e it = 640 - 640
XuJun Jia Bz = 200 3 203
CaoYu EF = 1,200 18 1,218
Lam Kwok Hing EEE = 2,808 18 2,826
Nam Kwok Lun ERfR = 984 18 1,002
Hui Ngok Lun (rote b) STl (With) - 1,200 18 1,218
Ren Qian (note ) 281 (Hizte) - - - -
Independent Non-Executive — BiJERITES
Directors
Ngan Kam Biu, Standford il 120 - - 120
Tam Chak Chi BEZ 120 - - 120
MaKin Ling BERE 120 - - 120
360 8,232 93 8,685
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15. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

—F+ZA=+—HLEFE

OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

15. EERFETHAEME @

2020
“ECERF
Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
other benefits
benefits scheme Total
Fees Hek RIRTEF remuneration
e HiigF AR BN &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TER TET FET
Executive Directors WITEE
Hui Chi Ming TR - 1,200 18 1,218
Neil Bush Ef e it - 643 - 643
Chui Say Hoe (note d) iR Ws2a) - 358 - 358
XuJun Jia Bz - 1,200 18 1,218
CaoYu EF - 1,200 18 1,218
Lam Kwok Hing ERE - 2,808 18 2,826
Nam Kwok Lun B - 984 18 1,002
Hui Ngok Lun (rote b) SrEEmE (W3th) - 552 9 561
Ren Qian (note ¢) 281 (Hizte) - 326 - 326
Chen Mailin (note ) BRARAR (7321 - 281 6 287
Independent Non-Executive — BiJERITES
Directors
Ngan Kam Biu, Standford kil 120 - - 120
Chan Tsang Mo (note a) BRISE (Hrata) 48 - - 48
Tam Chak Chi EEZ 120 - - 120
MaKin Ling BERZE 120 - - 120
Chow Kin Wing (note ¢) B (Hiztc) 46 - - 46
454 9,552 105 10,111
Note a:  Mr. Chan Tsang Mo was appointed and resigned as independent non- Mizta: BRIBRAEEDHIN _Z—NF_A-+HABRK

TECERFERRA_TAHERERRERLIE
HITEE-

executive director on 25 February 2019 and 25 May 2020 respectively.

Note b: Mr. Hui Ngok Lun was appointed as executive director on 16 July 2020. izt

BITES-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Note ¢ Mr. Chow Kin Wing was appointed and resigned as independent non-
executive director on 25 May 2020 and 12 October 2020 respectively.

Note d: Mr. Chui Say Hoe resigned as executive director of the Company on 16
July 2020.

Note e: Mr. Ren Qian resigned as executive director of the Company on 16 July
2020.

Note f. Mr. Chen Mailin was appointed and resigned as executive director on 16
July 2020 and 9 October 2020.

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors has
waived any emoluments during the year (2020: Nil).

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments paid or receivable
in respect of those persons’ services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Emoluments of the independent non-executive directors
shown above were mainly for their services as directors of the
company.

15. EERFETHAEME @

Kiatc: BRSEESIN_EBE_EEF/A_+HEEK
TR+ A+ I HEZERFEBILIER
T&ES-

Miztd: HUMEER S -TELA+ABHIEA

HMiste: EREER_ZZFELATRARERRE

izt BRERMAEEDRNR T -FFL/+AKRZ
ZEF+RANBEZERBENTES

AABWETUEAEBREHAR MA
AR EFERUBERETHEBERE
m BRAFERNETFERNTAEFED
REBZERR G ZHREH -

PREFEN AEERERTAESS
TEAME URSIEMAREBRES
BEEE RNAFEFERN MEEEWEL
e (CZ_ZF | E) o

AHEMATEETINZHE RBKREY
B —RANZFALTEELARTRE
B ARz EHRMEZ R IHE
ZMEe EMBIIFRTEFHNNEEE
BBREERETADEFRERBHIME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - —F+_H=+—HIEEE

16. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 16. EEME
The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group RAEFER K%@ Z2hHAESHMAL
included four (2020: four) Directors of the Company for the BEOL (ZEEF  OE) AREE
year, details of whose emoluments are included in Note 15. The = HiMsr B HN W15 Heg—% (2
emoluments of the remaining one (2020: one) individual are as TTEF ) ALZMENT
follows:
2021 2020
—E- - —ZT-TH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Salaries and other benefits e REAMER] 2,358 2,340
Contributions to retirement IRIREA]ET B
benefits scheme 18 18
2,376 2,358
The emoluments of one (2020: one) individual with the highest — % (Z2IEF %) Zam AT ZM
emolument is within the following band: ENFETIEERA !
2021 2020
Emoluments band B <& E6 & —E-—F —ETF
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
AE NE
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t £ 2,500,000 75 1 1
1 1
During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group to the PREEER AEEfRR LA+
above-mentioned individuals as an inducement to join or upon ERME ARSI EMNAARERIMA
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. B el (F A BERLRE (& o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
TR IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

17. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 17. SREF (518
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share NABEEAEBEEREARF), (BB58)
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the Th A B E

following data:

2021 2020
—E--F C"ZT_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Earnings/(l0ss): BA (Ei8)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to BMUEERELRRT (BB 2
owners of the Company for the KABHEE AELFERN
purpose of calculating basic earnings/ wmFl (E518)
(loss) per share 267,895 (211,940)
Number of shares
& E
‘000 ‘000
TFhe F A&
Number of shares: Bin&E :
Weighted average number of ordinary BMUEERERRT (B 2
shares for the purpose of calculating TiERIMETEE
basic earnings/(loss) per share 4,000,000 4,000,000
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the diluted and basic HE_Z - —F+"A=1+—HILFE"
earnings per share are the same as the convertible bonds are SRESKRERABMNER  REERNER
anti-dilutive to the earnings per share. BAMES MR EFERE S
18. DIVIDEND 18. IBRE
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final EETREMEZMEFEIRNEBRE
dividend for both years.
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iR E MBERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - —F+_H=+—HIEEE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ME - -BEKRRE
Leasehold Computer Furniture Motor
improvements  equipment  and fixtures vehicles Property Total
HEMELE Bi®%E HOREE RE mE af
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FET FET FET FET
cosT 9%
At 1January 2019 RZE-AE—A—H 1,535 6,520 1,938 2,668 130,000 142,661
Additions RE - 983 17 17 - 1,017
Exchange adjustment ERAE - 53 (6) 55 - 102
At 31 December 2020 and RIZEZ2F+-A=+—-Hk
at 1 January 2021 i ﬁ:—ﬁ B—H 1,535 7,556 1,949 2,740 130,000 143780
Additions HE - - - - - -
Exchange adjustment ERRE - 34 4 29 - 67
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ-£+-A=+—H 1,535 7,590 1,953 2,769 130,000 143847
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION R :HFERHE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2019 RZZ2—hF—F—H 1,391 6,118 1,741 1976 37,180 48,406
Provided for the year FEEE 104 152 77 269 3,640 4,242
Impairment AE - - - - 36,063 36,063
Exchange adjustment ERRE - @ (12) 25 - 9
At 31 December 2020 and RIZE-EFE+-A=+—-Hk
at 1 January 2021 RZE-—-£-A—-A 1,495 6,266 1,806 2,270 76,833 88,720
Provided for the year FEEE 40 222 38 235 4,357 4,892
Exchange adjustment ERRE - 4 2 18 - 2
At 31 December 2021 R-Z-—-£+-A=+-A 1,535 6,492 1,846 2,523 81,240 93,636
CARRYING AMOUNTS BRE(E
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H - 1,098 107 246 48,760 50,211
At 31 December 2020 RIZZZF+Z/=1+—H 40 1,290 143 470 53,117 55,060
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method at the MEUBGERUTFEEFIE
following rates per annum:
Leasehold improvements 20% — 33'/3% THEYZEEE 20% — 33'/3%
Computer equipment 20% — 50% BN 20% — 50%
Furniture and fixtures 20% — 40% R EE 20% — 40%
Motor vehicles 20% — 30% RE 20% - 30%
Property 3% LY ES 3%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
Impairment assessment

As the Group incurred net loss in the cash-generating unit
(the "CGU") of property investment in Madagascar for two
consecutive years, the management of the Group concluded
there was indication for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on recoverable amounts of certain property, plant
and equipment with carrying amounts of HK$48,760,000 (2020:
HK$53,117,000), after taking into account the accumulated
impairment loss of HK$36,063,000 as at 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020. The recoverable amount of property is
estimated individually.

The recoverable amount of the property has been determined
based on its fair value less costs of disposal and the
methodology is replacement cost method. That calculation
uses recent construction prices for similar properties adjusted
for nature, location and conditions of the property, with United
States dollar 1,169 (2020: 1,249) per square metre (“Sqgm”) as
at 31 December 2021 and its fair value measurement was
categorised as Level 3.

Based on the result of the assessment, no impairment 10ss
(2020: HK$36,063,000) has been recognised against the carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment.

19. ME - -BEKRSRE (&

R E T

HR AL RN S EMETNEEMmESEM
MERENREELSBSU (REELE
fii)) EEFBE AEEEEERAEYH
BREFREES RN 2 —F+ 2
B=+—HRZIEZZF+A=+—
Bz RstHEE1836,063,000%8 T %
BRE(E 448,760,000 T (ZZE _ZF .
53,117,000 7m) WETYE BB R&E
BT Y [O] <5 BB 4 17 6 (B 5T 4 o ¥ £ B9 BT Uk (o]
EERA BB Ao

MENTRESEEREATFEREER
REERAEAHBERMAE  ZTERE
SO ERYE N E B R AR B
BOTHBIER R_BE_—F+_8
=t+—BASFAKTEHARKI 1,169%T
(ZZTZFF 1 1,249%7T) REAFEST
ENEAE =R

REBEFLER BEZYE -BEARE
MWEEERIBERR (T -2 F
36,063,000 #&7T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR E MBERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &E_ZT—

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—F+ZA=+—HLEFE

20. REYE

HK$'000

FET

At 1 January 2020 N2 TEF—F—H 2,387,597
Addition AR 926
Fair value change N EES (158,920)
Exchange adjustment bE 2SR 139,069
At 31 December 2020 RIEZZ2F+"H=+—H 2,368,672
Fair value change N EED) 442,760
Exchange adjustment R 79,698
Reclassified to assets held for sale (Note 32)EF D FEEFIELEEE (11:7232) (354,211)
At 31 December 2021 N2 —F+°"HA=+—H 2,536,919

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

Investment properties comprise of (a) a commercial units
and car parking spaces located in Beijing, the PRC which was
reclassified to asset held for sale (Note 32) during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and (b) commercial units and car
parking spaces located in Zhanjiang, the PRC.

NEERERBEEHEEFFURRET
BEXREENYEEaIRBAFERNAG
8> URDBER/RARIEREDE -

KREMESFEQ@QMUMNRPEILRZEEE
kBN EERBEE S -—F+°A4
T+ HIEEESHOBEERFIFHELZE
(F5E32) Be(b) i it AP B E T 2 7 $£ B8 (L
R B A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_T——

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Property-located in Beijing, the PRC
(Reclassified to asset held for sale during
2021)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2021 have been determined based on a valuation
carried out on that day by Masterpiece Valuation Advisory
Limited (2020: InsideOut Due Diligence Inc.), an independent
qualified professional valuer that is not connected with the
Group.

The fair value was determined based on the “Direct Comparison
Method”, where the value is assessed by assuming sale in their
existing states with the benefit of vacant possession and by
making reference to comparable sales evidence as available in
the relevant market.

Property-located in Zhanjiang, the PRC

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2021 have been determined based on a valuation
carried out on that day by Jones Lang Lasalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited (2020: Cushman & Wakefield
Limited), an independent qualified professional valuer that is not
connected with the Group.

The fair value was determined based on the “Residual Method”,
where the value is assessed by reference to the comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant market and have also
taken into account the expended construction costs as well as
the costs that will expended to complete the developments.

20.

= .AH
AR

RA TR R MY 5E

F+-A=+—HLFE

REWE (@)

ME - URPEIER (KT —
FEMPEERFHEER)

AEBR_ZZ—F+Z/A=+—Hz%
BYEATETHEAE R REE S
UEEREXEGENE NTGHHEAERR
5 (ZZ&E Z =4 !InsideOut Due Diligence
Inc.) BEBZHEETE-

NEEDZTEEBLER A BT MEEE
BERZUERIEELE RS2 REMT S
ARz ELLRIEEFIEMTLE ©

ME-INPEET

AERR-ZFT-_—F+A=+—H2K
BEMELATENDRAAER T ERE

YHERBXRMGEMHPEBITEETGR
BHARAR (CEZTF HBRTER
A REBZHEEE

AFEDRETRELAEE MAEBEDLS
REMTHEA RSB LLRIFER/EMT
RE IR B st R B H 2 RS K 5T R
A H Z Pl AR o

Annual Report 2021 « —Z ——fF 4R

205



206

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR E MBERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZZ - —F+_"HA=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Property-located in Zhanjiang, the PRC
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above

comprise:
Properties in the PRC: REE
Medium-term lease FRERTEE

20. IREYE (B

ME - URPEET ()

IR EYEREEEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
2,536,919 2,368,672

The fair value measurements for all of the Group's investment
properties are categorised as level 3. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of the investment
properties as at 31 December 2021 are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements
are categorised level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements is observable.

rEBFMBEREMEZAFEFEENE
WEZMMe TREHWMAEEREDEN
B2 HF+"B=+—HzZRVFEZE
B (FR R EERMRAEZBARE) -
URBHEATEFERARBZ AIHER
ENEATEFAEMBATESERAT=
AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nV-F

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_T——

20. REYE (&

B MR R M

F+-A=+—HLFE

Fair value Fair value
asat asat Valuation Relationship of
Fair value 31 December 31 December  technique & Significant unobservahle
Properties hierarchy 2021 2020 key input unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
R-E--& RIZ2ZZ
+ZB=+-A2 +IA=+-Hz fHERHR EATAER FOBRHABE
F/ES ATERR ATE ATE TEBASE BAHE BATEZMHE
Property - located in Beijing, Level 3 HK$354,211,000 HK$388,443,000  Direct comparison method Price per sqm using market direct An increase in the price per sgm will
the PRC comparable and taking into account increase significantly the fair value, and
The key input is price per sqm location and other individual factors vice versa.
such as age and location of the property,
approximately RMB55,033 (2020:
RMBA43,300) per sqm and approximately
RMBS563,700 (2020: RMB703,000) per car
park space as at 31 December 2021.
ME-RPELR B 354,211,00087  383443000%7 EMELEA FIATRERTBLENEL MY STARERELARAE BNATE
REMENRE BImznigiR k2R
TZHNEES ) BH2 ST A KER R
STAKRER S-F+AZ+-BETAAY
AEH550337 (CFZ55 . ARKE
43,30070) REEBL ARK563,700
T (CBRIEE ARHT03,0007)
Property - located in Zhanjiang, ~ Level3 HK$2,536,919,000  HK$1,980,229,000 Residual method Market unit rate, taking into account Asignificant increase in the market unit
the PRC the recent transaction prices for similar ~ rate used would result in a significant
The key input is price per sqm properties adjusted for nature, location ~ increase in fair value, and vice versa.
and conditions of the property, which
RMB11,363 (2020: RMB10,771) per sqm
as at 31 December 2021.
Estimation of construction cost of Asignificant increase in the construction
RMB3,749 (2020: RMB3,840) per sgmas  cost used would result in a significant
at 31 December 2021. decrease in fair value, and vice versa
Expected developer profit margin Asignificant increase in the expected profit
at 15% (2020: 15%) as at 31 December ~ would result in a significant decrease in
2021. fair valug, and vice versa
ME~ R PEET E=4 2,536,919,00087% 198022900087 E{EA THEE @ RBLNEFHNENE . MRAZTRERABLARENAT

TEBARBASTORER

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in

prior year.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there
were no transfers between level 1 and level 2, or transfers into

or out of level 3.

HERRRFLBEE AR AE

B RZF-F+ZA=1+-HE
FHRAREN 33T (CEZFE:

ARE1077170) ©

RIBZ-F+ZB=+-0 BEM
KMEFAETHRARES 9T (
TTZF ARM3BA0TT)

A =Lk il
EHENZ1% (CRI5F 1 15%)

BABEI R2Ae

BERENEKREMRZE
KERD R2TR

AATER

RABNABENRERATEXER
D RZIARe

EFERANGEL ZLEES

HE_Z

_ﬂz&—_

—EE+A

=t+—HLEFE> ﬁ%%ﬁ’f“—i&i—i”_i&
Z B8R AN HE =4
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iR E MBERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &E_ZT—

21. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

—F+ZA=+—HLEFE

21. FRESE

Office
MA=E
HK$
AIT

COST s :
At 1 January 2020 R ZEZEF—H—H 7,211
Additions AR 846
Disposal HE (310)
Exchange adjustment bE 2SR 49
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RIZZZEF+A=+—HBEZZEZ—5—F—H 7,796
Exchange adjustment fE R 25
At 31 December 2021 A2 _—H+"HA=+—H 7,821
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2020 N2 EF—F—H 1,518
Charge for the year FRZH 2,589
Disposal HE (310)
Exchange adjustment PE oA EE 9
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RIZZZEF+_A=+—HBHEZZEZ—5—F—H 3,806
Charge for the year FRLTH 2,656
Exchange adjustment b 2 5 22 8
At 31 December 2021 A ZE—F+ZHB=1+—H 6,470
CARRYING AMOUNTS: IRMEME :
At 31 December 2021 RWZEZ—F+ZH=+—H 1,351
At 31 December 2020 N ZEIEF+"H=1+—H 3,990
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iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

21. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS (Continued)

21. ERERE (B

2021 2020

—B-—-F _ZT-ETHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Expense relating to short-term leases BRAEHEENRY 2,633 2,760
Total cash outflow for leases (including HERERHEEE (BEEEHEE

short-term leases) 5,511 5,595

For both years, the Group leases offices for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 to 2 years (2020:
2 to 3 years). It carries interests ranging from 5.13%-11.33%
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 5.13%-11.33%).
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

KWEEERN AEBEERAZEARN
EEFTUBETEHREAME2F (T2 -F
FI2E3F) 2HEEN -RBEE"T " —
F+ZRB=+—HLEEE HEFXNF
5.13%%F11.33% (ZZE-ZHF :5.13%%
11.33%) - HERRDIZE R B ERER > I
B2 KB RFERREMSE - 1 EE R
R AT EHBENRER  AEEE
BENNERLET AR RGHNTHER
f e
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iR E MBERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

ETET—HF+"RB=1+—HLFE

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2. BMICEE
Mineral Trading
mining right rights Total
IRUENE R aH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
COST s
At 1 January 2020 i _3_ EF—H—H-
31 December 2020, —EF+Z“HA=+—8"~
1 January 2021 and _gi—fﬁ A—HKk_=
31 December 2021 —_—F+-B=+—H - 50 50
AMORTISATION g
At 1 January 2020, RZEZEF—F—H-
31 December 2020, _7_%\5-1- B=1+— EI .
1 January 2021 and 2T H—-F—HKZ
31 December 2021 ——F#+ZHA=+—H - 50 50
CARRYING AMOUNTS EREE

At 31 December 2021

W2 _—%+"F=+—H

At 31 December 2020

RIE2EZEF+-A=+—H

Trading rights represent two trading rights in the Stock Exchange
and one trading right in Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited.

The Group had one mining right under the License 253 in
respect of Kenya Mine 253, an area of approximately 1,056
square kilometers situated in Kitui District Eastern Province,

Kenya.

The License 253 of the mineral mining right has been fully

written off.

R BEMIFAZMERZEREBHE

RBMBERABDZ—EARXZ#E-

AREBEREEMBMEETDH23RKEIZZH
253SRET A B MR —IEIRER > ZEIB U
5 E TR B & 2 5 M & (Kitui District
) EFEAY1,056 F AR o

Eastern Province) »

PR OB R 525358 5T 7J 55 B B BUMEs -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
TR IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZE_ZE_—F+"_HB=+—HIFE
23. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES 23. RIERE (BE) &afE
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for UTAMMBREMs BERIBELRR 2D
financial reporting purposes: #r:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E - (17,818)
Deferred tax liabilities FIEIRIBEB(E 481,328 346,724
481,328 328,906

The following is deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised and

L,{"F%E\QI:E:—EEEZ_V —EF

movements thereon during the years ended 31 December 2021 +ZA=+—BLEFERIDZIRLERIE
and 2020: (BE) aBEREE:
Fair value
changes
on investment
properties
KREME
NEEEH
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2020 N TETEF—HF—H 349,227
Credited to profit or loss AR (39,730)
Exchange realignment PE % 19,409
At 31 December 2020 and \Q:‘E:;ﬁﬁﬁ—_ﬁ:—k—ﬁ&
at 1 January 2021 —E2—4%—F—H 328,906
Charged to profit or loss ﬁf%@ 530 B 110,690
Exchange realignment DA 11,814
Reclassified to assets held for sale (Note 32) %% MEEFHEHEEE (WW3£32) 29,918
At 31 December 2021 R_E-_—F+"B=+—H 481,328
Annual Report 2021 « —Z ——fF 4R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZZ - —F+_"HA=+—HILFE

23.

24.

DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$55,695,000 (2020:
HK$56,186,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
unused tax losses as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.
Approximately HK$5,699,000 unused tax losses will expire in 5
years and approximately HK$49,996,000 unused tax losses do
not expire under the current tax legislation.

INVESTMENT IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Investment in equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income comprise:

Listed investments: ks
— Equity securities listed on Hong Kong

Stock Exchange

23. RIEMRIE (BE) &\ @)

RBERR ZREEBNABHGHTRE
53849 755,695,0008 T (ZZE _Z4F .
56,186,0007%8 7T) R] K8 R A EF) o HAL
RRAERERREF A ARIKHE RS F
MBEE R ES DR REARBEER
HRIELERIBEE - RIFVITRB A
495,699,000 TR BN A MR B IR5F
M 2B K £949,996,00058 7T R BB IR 75 65
BRZEE-

24. BRFESFARMEEBAZER

AITAKE

BAFESAHMEZEEBRAZRATER
BEEIE

—REBEFT L ZRAEHF

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE-F4HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
990 1,171

The above listed equity investments represent ordinary shares
of an entity listed in Hong Kong. These investments are not
held for trading, instead, they are held for long-term strategic
purposes. The directors of the Company have elected to
designate these investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI
as they believe that recognising short-term fluctuations in these
investments’ fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent
with the Group's strategy of holding these investments for long-
term purposes and realising their performance potential in the
long run.

FARARESRELE LTEEZ &
o ZERELHRRZMEAR - M
AEMRBBENOMIEE - BRARAE
EHE BAZFRERBERBRZA
FEZEHEPEAEES/REAENTE
ZERBERBEREREEERE 2R
7 AHEEESZERATARERETE
RIEANTFEFAEMEEEA -

fln
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26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
TR IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

STATUTORY DEPOSITS

25. EZERE

2021 2020
—E--F CEZ_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T
Deposits with: EHR TIEE 2 7B
The Stock Exchange of EEMERZMBRATE
Hong Kong Limited 350 230
HKSCC BEBLEE 200 200
Reserve Fund Contribution to HKFECC SARAMEABZHESHNR 1,500 1,500
2,050 1,930
LOANS RECEIVABLE 26. EWEMR
2021 2020
—E-——F —ZE-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fixed-rate loans receivable DIInEE A TTIE
denominated in functional ZEERKER
currency of Hong Kong dollars 17,071 15,890
Carrying amount analysed ARG ZREE
for reporting purposes: DT
Current assets (receivable REEE (JEHREHE
within 12 months from e+ — 1@ B P YY)
the end of the reporting period) 131 -
Non-current assets (receivable ERBEE IEREHE
after 12 months from the end B+ 1@ B & W B
of the reporting period) 16,940 15,890
17,071 15,890
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iR E MBERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - —F+_H=+—HIEEE

26. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Loans receivable with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$16,940,000 (2020: HK$15,890,000) is secured by properties
located in Hong Kong. The Group is not permitted to sell or
repledge the property in the absence of default by the customer.

The effective interest rate (which is equal to contractual interest
rate) on the Group’s loans receivable was 6.50% per annum
(2020: 6.59%). Interest rate term is fixed at the time when
entering into loan agreement. The period of the loans was 1t0 5
years (2020: 5 years).

26. EWE &
BEME{E497516,940,0008 T (Z B - 4F .
15,890,000 77) = FEUR X R R B B >
MR E R EBN T IBERT
AEEFEHERBREPZYE

FEERRERZBERIX (ZRAEGHR
K) #BF650% (ZTZZZFF:16.59%) °F
KIERNE]LER B ZRETE - EMHR
—ERF(CEEZF RH)

27. INVENTORIES 27. 78
2021 2020
—B-—-F _ZTETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Finished goods arising from business HEBEFEMMRBEEBESL
of trading electronic products and BB AL G
equipment 52,630 -
28. PROPERTIES FOR SALE FEME
2021 2020
—B-—-F _ZTETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Properties under development for sale HFELEEPY = 1,981,337 1,921,997
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has five lands N CE T EFERCECEFE+_A=+—

located in Zhanjiang Economic and Technological Development
Zone in Guangdong Province, the PRC. The Group plans to
develop residential properties for sales and the relevant
development plan had been approved by authority in the PRC.

H ZEEESUNPREEREEIEE
RifF &z ARt i o A% E 585 %
EEMEUMBE  BRFAREECE
hEE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
TR IRRMIEE

29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

29. FEURERTR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—-F —ZT=-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Accounts receivable consist of: FEWERRBIETFIIER !
Accounts receivable arising from BTFERMARBEZETMEEZ
business of trading electronic [E U AR =X
products and equipment 26,032 24,126
Less: Loss allowances for ECL Hikk  TREAE E BRI BB EE (362) (358)
25,670 23,768
Accounts receivable arising from YRR E ETEFTE L 2 EURERRR
business of properties investment - 4,748
Less: Loss allowance for ECL ik FEEEERIB . BB E = (143)
- 4,605
Accounts receivable arising from the EERSEFMES IR .
business of dealing in securities:
— cash clients —BExEF
- other —HAth 17,001 15,802
—directors —F=E 3,046 4,337
Less: Loss allowances for ECL Hik:  TREAEE BRI BIEEE (24) (40)
20,023 20,099
- Hong Kong Securities Clearing —BBPREEEFRAE
Company Limited (“HKSCC") (F&EB4EE)) 4,232 8,777
Accounts receivable from Hong Kong BEENEANEBMELEZ
Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation ~ FEWEBHEEEERAE
Limited ("HKFECC") arising from the (TEBHEEE)) R
business of dealing in futures contracts 382 700
Loans to securities margin clients BTESFRBEEPZER 50,836 57,459
Less: Loss allowances for ECL ik FEEEERIB . BB E (28) (31)
50,808 57,428
Accounts receivable arising from MR ERABAETMEEZ
the business of advisory for [E U AR =R
financial management - 561
101,115 115,938
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - —F+_H=+—HIEEE

29.

BT ERRMIEE

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continueq)

Accounts receivable from the business of
trading electronic products and equipment

The credit period based on dates of delivery of goods for
accounts receivable from trading of electronic products and
equipment is 90 days. The aging analysis of accounts receivable
arising from trading of electronic products and equipment
based on the invoice date of the reporting period is as follow:

29. FRIRERTR (2

REEFERRRBEZEBZE
U AR TR

REBFERMREEZ ZBRBERZERR
NERHBEZEERA9H - KEE
TERKRZEBESRBREAHRREZAH
252 EWEEMRZERE 2T ¢

2021 2020
—B-—-F _ZTETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0-90 days 0Z90H 25,327 23,768
Over 365 days #B48365H 343 -
25,670 23,768
Loans to securities margin clients BT ESREESERZEM

Loans to securities margin clients are repayable on demand
and bear interest at Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by Bank
plus 3% equivalent to 8.25% per annum for both years. In
the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is disclosed as
the aged analysis does not give additional value. The loans
are secured by pledged marketable securities at fair value of
approximately HK$209,926,000 (2020: HK$195,242,000). The
average percentage of collateral over the outstanding balance
as at 31 December 2021 is ranged from 118% to 10,617% (2020:
81% t0 2,415%). The fair value of pledged marketable securities
of the individual margin clients is higher than the corresponding
outstanding loans. The Group is permitted to sell or repledge
the marketable securities if the customer default the payment
as requested by the Group. The Group had provided the loss
allowance for securities margin clients with reference to the
portfolio held and the subsequent settlement of each customer.

FTHREEREERPAZENEANRERE
Eﬁ&&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*%?@ﬁﬂTM%
(MEEEHBEENEFNZES.25%) 5t
E-BEIRA BARKRBINIERZER
AU E L E R EEFE - BRUA
T {E49209,926,0008 7T (Z T _F4F .
195,242,000/ 7T) 2 BIRIRRBE S (EE
oM _ZZ—F+ZA=+—H k@&
BEGZEBERRZFEHEIENF118%
£10,617% (ZZEZZF 1 81%%E2,415%) ©
BRRESERZBEFERBESZAF
BEERERREEER AEFELENE
F#6/0 As S2 B i B SR R IE B & o B I
MEES AEEBZEZTLAFTEZR
EHERHEBEER L MESREESE
FEstiREEsE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continueq)

Accounts receivable from the property
investment business

The average credit period for accounts receivable from property
investment business is 30 days. The aging analysis of accounts
receivable arising from property investment business based on
the invoice date of the reporting period is as follow:

29. FRURERTR (2

RERBEMEER Z IR

RERBEMEEB BUERRZ FHEER
HIZR30H - REREVMEREH Z BUIRW
RS ARREZHRES ZRE DTN
T

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

0-90 days 0&90H - 1,582
91-180 days 91E180H - 3,023
- 4,605

Accounts receivable from cash client, HKSCC,
HKFECC

The settlement terms of accounts receivable from cash clients,
HKSCC, HKFECC are usually one to two days after the trade
date. Except for the accounts receivable from cash clients as
mentioned below, the accounts receivable from HKSCC and
HKFECC aged within 30 days.

The Group offsets certain accounts receivable and accounts
payable when the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the balances and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the balances simultaneously.

The settlement terms of cash clients are usually one to two days
after the trade date. The aged analysis of accounts receivable
arising from cash clients is as follows:

REREER -BFRGEREEN
BEE Z BIRARM

REBP BBEEREBHEEERK
RRZEEHAREEAXZARE—EM
HeFBRTXAIREWIREE R RMIN &
WEBEEREBREGEERMZRES
7308 R

EAERERAKER NITRIITHG R
35 LA BR B 2 4 5 o [P B S 3R A BR Ry
A6 B SIS T AR FE AT AR AN

ReBPZ2EEHBEERXZARE—=
MB-HEEREEZBBERRZIRED
FanT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZZ - —F+_"HA=+—HILFE

29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 29. FEURBRTR (2
Accounts receivable from cash clients FEURIR & & B BRTX
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ZT=-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
0-90 days 0ZE90H 20,023 20,099
Accounts receivable from the business of KRB EIEEHERETR ZEW
advisory for financial management clients BR R
The Group does not provide any credit term to its advisory for FEETERMEEELZANET L IREAEM
financial management clients. The aging analysis of accounts EER MR EEAHERERELE R
receivable arising from the business of advisory for financial IR Z BRES D0 T -
management clients is as follow:
2021 2020
—B-—-F _ZTETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
0-90 days 0ZE90H = 56

30. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND  30. H{thFEUREEZR ~ FA(TERIERIRS

DEPOSITS
2021 2020
—E--F —ZT-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Other receivables and advance to HMEWRAREZEREEN
suppliers arising from trading business B RE B 92,400 21,208
Rental and other deposits e kEHMEZE 90,110 88,160
Prepayments SEINE R 259 366
182,769 109,734
All of the other receivables and advance to suppliers FrE EMEWEER B S EREEN R M
arising from trading business, rental and other deposits and FEmBF - ek EMZe U RTEMRIE
prepayments are expected to be recovered within one year. FERA L —E R UR[al o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

31. PLEDGED FIXED DEPOSITS, BANK

BALANCES AND CASH
Pledged fixed deposits (general accounts)

The pledged fixed deposits represented the amounts pledged
to banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group. The pledged fixed deposits carried interest rates at 1.80%
- 4.10% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2020
and released upon the expiry of the relevant banking facilities.
Included in pledged fixed deposits (general accounts) was
approximately HK$171,058,000 which was denominated in US$
as at 31 December 2020, a currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity. The pledged fixed deposits
were fully released during 2021.

Bank balances (trust and segregated
accounts)

From the Group’s ordinary business, it receives and holds
money deposited by clients in the course of the conduct of the
regulated activities. These clients” monies are maintained in one
or more segregated bank accounts and bear prevailing market
deposit rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.1% (2020: 0.01% to 0.1%)
per annum. The Group has recognised the corresponding
accounts payable to respective clients. However, the Group
does not have a currently enforceable right to offset those
payables with the deposits placed.

Bank balances (general accounts) and cash

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and short-term
bank deposits carrying prevailing market deposit rates at 0.01%
(2020: 0.01%) per annum with an original maturity of three
months or less. Included in bank balances (general accounts)
and cash are approximately HK$746,000 (2020: HK$539,000)
and HK$4,087,000 (2020: HK$173,806,000) and which are
denominated in US$ and RMB respectively.

1. BIRRERER - IRITEFR

RE
EEFERER (—iRERP)

BIRAEHERIEANESAER —KIR
TREMBRTIEHZIRBESE REE
CETRFE+_RA=+—-HLEEEBIKHE
EHERZHEAEE1.80%FE4.10% > P
BRABTRHEINRAERER R ZF
+ZA=+—H s ABEBEERER (—
ARBR B) 2 #9171,058,0003% 7t LU JE MR RA &
EER IS ETIE BIRFEH
GBRR S -—FERHER e

IR1T4HEF (G RIBILARP)

AEENHEEBETREELTIMK
RUEFEERZER - ZEEPZRIEAR
A—BHZEEILIRITRA WIZIRITHH
ERAMENFEBF001%E0.1% (ZFZ
TF 10.01%=E0.1%) 5t 8 c REEFETAE
NERER ZHEERMR - AM XERIR
Ry 36 5 A AT A i T RUR SRR F IR AR

=+
o

IR1THETF (—RERP) RIRE

LB EAEERFEZRHE RIFRT
MHEERMNEEF0.01% (ZE_TF .
0.01%) st EERIFPAEA=ZEEFIUT
ZHRBIRITER ST ARTET (—HRER
B) RIBEZ4746,0008T (CB _T4E
539,000 75) %4,087,0008 T (T - =
£ 1 173,806,000/ 7T) BAIMETEAR
MG E o
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32. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/

LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 5 November 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, an independent third party, and the Company have
entered into an agreement, pursuant to which the independent
third party has conditionally agreed to acquire, and the wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company has conditionally agreed to
sell the entire issued share capital of Millhaven Holdings Limited,
for a consideration of HK$338 million, which will be satisfied fully
in cash.

The disposed group is wholly relevant to property investment
segment.

The major classes of assets and liabilities classified as held for
sale are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZZ - —F+_"HA=+—HILFE

32. DERFHEHERE HOER

FIELEEEMRMNER

RIEBZ—F+—BAH > ARFA—E2
ENBAR —RBILFE=HARAREE]
U B BIUE=HFEEKHERR
WERAABEZENBLAEEBERERER
HEMillhaven Holdings Limited 2 2
1784 > {18 4338,000,00058 7t » I 45
BHLUREER -

HEER2MAYERED AR -
DEAFFHENTIEZHIEERERN

T

31 December

2021

—E-—F

+=A

=+—H

HK$'000

FET

Investment property (Note 20) "EME Wa20) 354,211
Deferred tax assets (Note 23) IEIERRIEE E (W3223) 29,918
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HihEWERIE  FET RIE K i2E 1,442
Bank and cash balances IR1TRIR AL R 89
Total assets classified as held for sale DEAFFHENSEEE 385,660
Other payables and accrued expenses H A RIBE R ET R 5,806
Total liabilities classified as held for sale DEAFEHENAGRETE 5,806

As at 31 December 2021, the accumulated currency translation
reserve relevant to the disposed group is HK$39,371,000.

A CE_—F+_H=+—H HEBEE
B AR EstINE B E 4 439,371,000
BT e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
TR IRRMIEE

33. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

E_E_—F+_A=+—HILEE

33. BIARARRZE

2021 2020
—B-—-F _ZT-ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Accounts payable: FE{TERER
Accounts payable from trading of BEFEMNRBEZER
electronic products and equipment Ffr 2 £ FE T BR X 54,481 27,448
Accounts payable from properties MERBEMESBARR
investment 7,116 6,903
Accounts payable arising from the BESSETMELEMIRR .
business of dealing in securities:
- Cash clients —RBERR 96,394 94,508
- HKSCC —&58E 2,077 3,671
Accounts payable to clients arising from BBEIESNERIEEZ
the business of dealing in futures FE1T % P ERAR
contracts 1,081 985
Amounts due to securities margin clients FEBHFREET A NIE 3,658 4,878
164,807 138,393
Bills payable R - 175,502
164,807 313,895
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33. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

(Continued)

The settlement term of accounts payable to cash clients and
HKSCC is two days after the trade date and aged within 30 days.

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of dealing
in futures contracts are margin deposits received from clients
for their tradings of futures contracts on HKFECC. The excess
of the outstanding amounts over the required margin deposits
stipulated by HKFECC are repayable to clients on demand. In
the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is disclosed as the
aged analysis does not give additional value.

Amounts due to securities margin clients are repayable on
demand. In the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is
disclosed as the aged analysis does not give additional value.

The accounts payable amounting to approximately
HK$87,378,000 (2020: HK$92,355,000) were payable to clients
or other institutions in respect of the trust and segregated bank
balances received and held for clients in the course of the
conduct of regulated activities. However, the Group does not
have a currently enforceable right to offset these payables with
the deposits placed.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZZ - —F+_"HA=+—HILFE

33. BIIRMRREE (2

BNREXRAREBEERNZEEHR
B/ AREWAE > HREA30HM

EEHNEGNEBEEZRANEREK
Mo RMRNEBHEEEEEREGK
AERWRZFEEE AMEEMRBLES
BHEEEFMREREEZ ZHEBAANENR
REETFTER EEFRNA BRKREDH
i F 0 AL R BLUL (F R 4R EE o

BNRBSRESETPNBEANREREE
BoBERN ANKREROFTLESE
I 7 458 S LG A'F HE AR ) 4R B8 o

RETSRETHNERPRE P BN
BEARBURTHEGTMENERHEM
18 2~ FE (T IR 749 487,378,000 75 (&
Z 24 192,355,000 7T) © FAT 0 ANEEEIR
B AR ] AT MU IR Z S eI ER

=+
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

33. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES 33. EHERFKRERE &
(Continued)

REBEFEMRREESEBHZIE
1 BR R

Accounts payable from trading of electronic
products and equipment

REBFEMRREBEE D EH ZBANIRMD
BRETZARIINZEREDHWOT

The aging analysis of accounts payable from trading of
electronic products and equipment presented based on the
invoice date is as follow:

2021 2020

—E—F —E-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

0-90 days 0ZE90H 37,308 17,451
91 -180 days 91E180H 6,735 -
181 — 365 days 181E2365H 10 2,402
Over 365 days 365 £ 10,428 7,595
54,481 27,448

Accounts payable from properties investment

The aged analysis of accounts payable from properties
investment is a follows:

91 - 180 days 912180H

REMEREZBARR

REMEREZBNRRZIRE DU
T

2021 2020
—E-—f —ZT-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHEIT
7,116 6,903

All of the trade payables are expected to be settled within
one year or are repayable on demand. The trade payables are
normally due immediately from the date of billing.

PREEZBARBERARNR —ENEEH
REXRFEE-BEZENNEREERE
B HAE RN BT 2 HA
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e EHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZZ - —F+_"HA=+—HILFE

34. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 34. HithFE(TERFA R FEET & B
EXPENSES
2021 2020
—B-—-F _ZT-ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other payables HhfEFIB 82,509 22,847
Accrued expenses FESTE 14,735 19,657
Receipts in advance from B2 EH 2 EWEIE
trading business = 14
97,244 42,518
35. LEASE LIABILITIES 35. tHEAE
The exposure of the Group's lease liabilities are as follows: AREEBHREEGEZ ARMOMNT :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Current mEn 1,388 2,707
Non-current JERED - 1,377
1,388 4,084

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

35. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

35. HERE &

Minimum lease Present value of
payments lease liabilities
RIERELR HEaRRAE
2021 2020 2021 2020

R TFIEF IZEI-F  TFCIEE
HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT TET FERT TET

Minimum lease payment due: RUTKEIBEzREEEMHR:
—Within one year ——&R 1,416 2,872 1,388 2,707
—more than one year but not ——FRERERN
more than two years - 1,405 - 1,377
1,416 4,277 1,388 4,084
Future finance charges RARRERS (28) (193)
Present value of lease liabilities HEaERE 1,388 4,084
Amounts due for settlement within one year —E R 2 FIE
(shown under current liabilities) (RREE/E 5T (1,388) (2,707)
Amounts due for settlement after one year —E%BEIEA (2 B - 1,377

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities range from 5.13% t0 11.33% (2020: from 5.13%
t0 11.33%).

BRERNEEEBZMEFESIESERFAEX
NFE513EE11.3BE (CE_ZF  NF
5.13EZE11.33E) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZT——

36.

BT ERRMIEE

F+"A=t—HLEE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 36. 5HAME
2021 2020
—B-—-F _ZT_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trading electronic products BEFERES 6,862 1,739
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised TR AFEERDAIU T 25 &
in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities ESNaB RN ATHEEMNEY EEr
and how much relates to performance obligations that were BREINEEE-
satisfied in prior periods.
Trading electronic
products
BFERES
2021 2020
R CEZIEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
At 1 January w—HB—H 1,739 6,643
Decrease in contract liabilities as aresultof RN TEREMEE ZE&NAERD
—revenue recognised that was included — ST AFVIENEREERN
in the contract liabilities balance BRI =
at the beginning of the year (665) (6,643)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of AU TEEMEEZEHNERIEMN
— receipts in advance of trading electronic —BTFEmESZZERFIE
products 5,788 1,739
At 31 December B+ZB=+—H 6,862 1,739

The Group will recognise the expected revenue in future when
the goods are delivered to customers, which is expected to
occur within the next 12 months (2020: 12 months).

FERRNERZXTERERHHEIARZ

FEHA I ot
FI12ER) mEE-

CFEETRRARKIZERS (CEZE

——

The Group receives a certain amount of the contract value as
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and purchase
agreement. The deposits result in contract liabilities being
recognised until the customers obtain control of the electronic
products.

AEEREFREEEHRR DK E W
—ELHENEREEFARE -BERE
BRRBEREGHNAE BEETFESE
E mm BRI o
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iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 37. BYEEME
Amount due to a Director of which approximately I E R HRIBEE F4964,772,0008 7T (ZF
HK$64,772,000 (2020: HK$57,851,000) is unsecured, interest T =4 157,581,000 7T) A EILIR o 2R
bearing at Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by Bank (2020: Hong TABRNEBEREENE(CETEF R
Kong Prime Rate quoted by Bank) and are repayable on demand. TR EARESAE) TERBERE
The remaining balances are unsecured, repayable on demand REB-BFRTEFRABIEF BRERE
and non-interest bearing. BRAEE
The directors confirmed that they would not demand EEMR - FEFEERBARS HEIRE
repayment of the amounts due to Directors of approximately FF—FRERENESRIBA225,997,000
HK$225,997,000 within one year from the date of this report. BT
BORROWINGS 38. [BEH
2021 2020
—B-—-F _ZT_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Borrowings = 390,616 395,082
Secured E=Eii 255,435 264,744
Unsecured but guaranteed EIRIRERER 22,037 -
Unsecured EE 113,144 130,338
390,616 395,082
Current portion BNHEAER > 390,616 318,200
Non-current portion FERDEREL = 76,882
390,616 395,082
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38. BORROWINGS (Continued)

38. fBH (&

The Group's borrowings are repayable as follows: NEBMZEEBEEENT .
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZE-F4HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Within 1 year —FR 390,616 318,200
After 1 year but within 2 years —EmF - 21,382
After 2 years but within 5 years MERF - 55,500
390,616 395,082

The movement of borrowings is as follows: EEEHUT .

2021 2020
—B-—-F _—ZTETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At 1 January R—HB—H 395,082 304,910
Proceeds from new borrowings MEEREMIE 57,000 146,869
Accrued interests FEETHI S 43,921 27,106
Interests paid BEF & (41,192) (18,272)
Repayment B (66,500) (69,500)
Exchange realignment bE A 2,305 3,969
At 31 December R+ZBA=+—H 390,616 395,082
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38. BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has a borrowing of
approximately HK$255,435,000 (2020: HK$264,744,000) which
is secured by the entire registered capital of Beijing Yinghe
Property Development Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, and guaranteed by Guangdong Hoifu
Wai Yip Investment Management Limited and the personal
guarantee from Dr. Hui Chi Ming. The borrowing is interest
bearing at a fixed rate of 7% for the first year and 8% for the
period after 1 year. The effective interest rate and the default
effective interest rate of the borrowing are 8.8% per annum and
15.87% per annum respectively. The borrowing of approximately
HK$255,435,000 has matured during the year ended 31
December 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has an unsecured
borrowing of approximately HK$36,000,000 (2020:
HK$55,500,000) from PAL Finance Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Asia Tele-Net, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with its shares being listed on the Stock Exchange in which
two Directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun,
have controlling interests. The borrowing is interest bearing at
Hong Kong Prime rate of 5.00% (2020: 5.13%) per annum and
repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, the Group has unsecured
borrowings of approximately RMB63,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$77,143,500) from three independent third parties with fixed
interest rates range from 0%-12% per annum. The borrowings
of approximately HK$55,103,000 (2020: Nil) have matured at
the end of the reporting period. The remaining balance of
HK$22,041,000 (2020: HK$74,838,000) is repayable within one
year.

38. fBH (&

AR —F+ZHR=1+—H8 > Kx&EH

Z 8 #9255,435,0008 75 (CE _ZTF :
264,744,000 7T) T A EBE BRSBTS
REERBNEHESREREERARZ
EEHMAMEAEIRT > EUERY ZEE
KREBEARABKRFEHRIEL 2@ ALE
RIEER - BEREFREENET%TE
M—FBES%T B - EEZERFNER
BHUBHEEFEDR58.8%515.87% &l
ECEEF+_A=-+—HLEFEEE
HAE B4 %255,435,000 7T ©

RZE-_—&F+"A=+—H>K&&EH
2 B E4936,000,0008 7T (T T4 .
55,500,00078 7T) 7 F3E 1 > AR e B AR —FE
2ENBABENCEMBERAR B E
REFMAIZAT  ERGIRERZA E
T MEEEEEEREREE M ERE
BHERER) RE-ZEERETERESE
FFFE500% (ZTB_ZHF :513%) 5tEX
BAR—FREER

N EIERERCEI—FF+ /B =4—
B AEERB=ZLBILE=HFNEIR
HEESH AR®63,000,000t (FBE R
77,143,500 70) LB E FFENFO%E
12%5t 8 o R ¥R & B 7R » £955,103,0007 7T
(CEZZHF  Z)NEECHH R T4
££22,041,00058 7t (ZZE = F 4 | 74,838,000
BT BR—FREEC
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38. BORROWINGS (Continued)

F+A=t—HILEFE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has an unsecured
borrowing of approximately HK$22,037,000 (2020: Nil) from an
independent third party with a fixed interest rate of 15% per
annum. The borrowing is guaranteed by the personal guarantee
from Dr. Hui Chi Ming and has matured during the year ended 31

December 2021.

Borrowings with an amount of HK$332,575,000 were default
as at 31 December 2021. The Group has negotiated with the
lenders to extend the repayment terms and as long as there
are cash inflows from the events mentioned in Note 49, the

borrowings will be repaid.

39. CORPORATE BONDS

38. fBH (&

A CE_—F+R=+—H F&EHE
RE—RBUS=ZTHERRMEED

22,037,000 (ZE-_EF : &) UETE
FEFE15%:t B o B EBFE B ELTIRM

NEAEREERLIENBE_ZE_—F
+ZR=+—HLEEEIR-

7 #1332,575,0008 THNEEEN -2 = —
FH+ZRB=1+—HEWN -KTEEBEHEEM
ANBEEIERIEREAR > REMGFA9EHES
BERABERCEE.

39. ARMESH

2021 2020

:g: - ﬂi —F= E'E

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Unsecured corporate bonds IR ABES 17,482 30,176
The Group's corporate bonds are repayable as follows: AEEZEBEATEBESUT !

2021 2020

—E-_—F —ZE-FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Within 1 year —FRN 13,884 11,775

After 1 year but within 2 years —EWMF - 14,628

After 2 years but within 5 years MERTF 3,598 3,773

17,482 30,176
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39. CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)

40.

39. RERZ (@)

The movement of corporate bonds is as follows: NEEFEEHUWT -

2021 2020

—E-—F —ZE-FHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

As at 1 January w—E—H 30,176 29,621
Accrued interests FESTF] 2 1,972 2,336
Principal repayments BERE (11,000) -
Interests paid BENFE (3,666) (1,781)
As at 31 December W+-B=+—H 17,482 30,176

The effective interest rates of the bonds range from 7.03% to
11.57% per annum (2020: 7.03% to 11.57% per annum).

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company issued
2% coupon convertible bonds with a total principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 for a cash inflow of HK$20,000,000 as general
working capital of the Group. The effective interest rate is
10.60%. The exercise price of the conversion option is HK$0.98
and exercisable anytime on or before the maturity date. The
coupon will be paid on the maturity date.

The convertible bonds will be matured on 9 July 2023.

40.

BEZBERENERNF7.03%E11.57% (Z
TFFE L FEFMERT03%E11.57%) ©

AR &S

BE_Z_—SF+"A=+—HLEE>
AT EITAEEER20,000,0008 7T
BI2% TR BRI R E S LRI R
20,000,000 TiFmAEEN—REEE
o BIRFZ2310.60% © ARG BRI AVTT (2
E#R0.98B T RN BB H S 2 AT B R 1T
EREISVEYNEIEE SRR NE

AMERESER S =FtANHEH-
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40. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The movement of the debt component of the convertible bonds
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

40. 0] ?ﬁﬂ? 1§ # CI\Q

B EBEIIWT

HE_Z-_—F+_-_B=+—HILEFEN

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FHET
As at 1 January t—HA—H =
Issuance of convertible bonds RZEZ—FtBhnH
at 9 July 2021 BT ARES 17,004
Effective interest expense for the year FREERFEMRZ 842
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 17,846
41. SHARE CAPITAL 41. fgas
Number of
shares
BHEAR
‘000 HK$'000
TR FAxT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREE0I10B T @R
Authorised: JERE
At 31 December 2020 and 2021 RIEZEFRIZEZ—F
+-_B=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, RIEZZF—H—H>
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 E2IEF+THA=+—H-
:?:—E—H—E&
B2 —%+"HA=+—H 4,000,000 400,000

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAT
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42. JEfERe

The details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that
have material non-controlling interests are shown as below:

F+-A=+—HLFE

BEEAFERERZAEEIFEEWE
ANBZFHBYIRUWT

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interests
principal and voting rights held Profit/(loss) allocated
place of by non-controlling to non-controlling Accumulated
Name of business interests interests non-controlling
Subsidiary MM IItE JEEIRERFEZ DEFIEIEAGHER interests
B AT LS FEEHMES FRE R R IR RELL A wH, (§518) Rt IR R
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEI—f —E-TF ZBEZI—4H —E-EF ZEI-H —ZE-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET THET FHET
Shenzhen Qianhai Jiameijing PRC/PRC
Industrial Co., Ltd.* FEHE
AR SR EREE
BIRAR 40% 40% 8,299 (698) 12,328 3,826
Individually immaterial
subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests
BERIFERERY
ERIFFEARMIBAE 9 (279) 239 350
8,308 (977) 12,567 4,176
English name of this company is for identification purpose only
Annual Report 2021 « —E - —FFiR
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42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 42. FEIERGWERS (&

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the ERHEEEAREERER Y AEESKH B
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests NEZMEFHFERHINMT U THE
are set out below. The summarised financial information below MHENAERNARBEBEA 2 BEE-

represented amounts before intragroup eliminations.
As at 31 December m+=B=+—H

Shenzhen Qianhai Jiameijing
Industrial Co., Ltd.
FUNHRIEEEREE

BRAR

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHETT
Non-current assets ERBEE 932 1,346
Current assets RENEE 139,655 211,223
Current liabilities GIEI=NE (112,810) (206,560)
27,777 6,009

Equity attributable to FN/NEIEZZS DN
owners of the Company FE{L R 15,449 2,183
Non-controlling interest JEIERE T 12,328 3,826
27,777 6,009
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42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 42. FE¥ERZ I (&

For the year ended 31 December B#E+-“HA=1+—HLEFE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TE-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue & 493,958 984,666
Other income =Rl N 1,105 1,657
Expenses S H (474,316) (988,062)
Profit/(loss) for the year EEEAN/ (B8 20,747 (1,745)
Other comprehensive income FEHMEERBA
for the year 507 393

Total comprehensive income/(expenses) EEZ2EW A GZH) 48458

for the year 21,254 (1,352)

Profit/(l0ss) attributable to: iR F] (B518)
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETEZF SN 12,448 (1,047)
Non-controlling interests JEVER R R 8,299 (698)
20,747 (1,745)

Total comprehensive income/(expenses) FELEEURA (R H) 48%8 :

attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZiN/NSTEZ F DN 12,752 811
Non-controlling interests FEER R 8,502 (547)
21,254 (1,352)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from: KEUTEEZ
R ORt) /S RAEEE ©
Operating activities KEES (168,857) 162,943
Investing activities S EEE) = (944)
Financing activities MEEE (210) (172)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow R Ofd) /TRASEE (169,067) 161,827
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43. OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease income under non-cancellable

43. ZEFRLY
TEBEAHBEA

REBESHR AEERBEEEMEZTH
EHEEMEY E TS RERREHE

operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as BIA -
follows:

2021 2020
—E--F CE_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT
Within one year —FR - 17,819
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEFERF OEEEMD = 13,363
= 31,182

Operating lease income represents rentals receivable by the
Group for its carparks from one lessee. Leases are mainly
negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals are
fixed over the relevant lease term. During the early 2021,
all the lease contracts have been cancelled after the Group
re-negotiated with the lessee and no further commitments were
noted as at 31 December 2021.

HEHEWAEAERREFRAUBKR—
LEABAZEZ HONZEEBBEES
FEWmE MEEEBEBNES K
T —F) KA EBEABAENES
B PRAERESHNELESHAR -2 ——
F+RA=+—RUEE-PEHE-

44. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44, BARIKEE
2021 2020
—F--F CZT-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TAET
(restated)
(=75
Capital commitments (contracted but B EE (BT 5 kB E)
not provided for):
Construction costs of properties for sale 543 &1L B Y % B A4
and investment properties 2,965,739 1,413,601
Capital commitments (no contracted BAEE (YRETH B SR
and not provided for):
Construction costs of properties for sale 54 2 L 15 B ¥ 2 B E Y A4
and investment properties 1,219,969 2,784,200
4,185,708 4,197,801
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Mandatory provident scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”)

The Group has operated a pension scheme under the rules
and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance after the implementation of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately in an independently managed fund. The Group
has followed the minimum statutory contribution requirement
of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income with a
cap of HK$1,500 (2020: HK$1,500) per employee per month. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as incurred. The are
no forfeited contribution for both years.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the
Group participates in a defined contribution basic pension
insurance in the social insurance system established and
managed by government organisations. The Group makes
contributions to basic pension insurance plans based on the
applicable benchmarks and rates stipulated by the government.
Basic pension insurance contributions are charged to profit or
loss as the related services are rendered by the employees.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with related parties

Save for disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties:

(@  During the year, the Group received commission income
and other securities dealing income from securities
and futures dealing of approximately HK$56,000 (2020:
HK$49,000) from a director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun (2020: a
director, Nam Kwok Lun).

45.

46.

BRIAEFFTE
eEEAREE (BafEEstE))

ReaslE ARt EBEAETE AEE
BREARGM AT ENEA ZRA R HE
BRI BRREE BB AB I EE
BORRBILIESEESAFTE AEEHE
BTRELEHIRE REEREES
RN ASKIEHET > LIRASRETSE
HB1,5008 7T (ZZT =24 : 1,500% 7T) © it
FRREERREBEZNK MEFEEHESR
W R 1B 0

RFETFEBRERER 2EE2EBEF
WERUIKEENTEREBEATHNER
HRELBEEZRE -cEBRBHAFRE
NEREERERNELAREREEIH
o BAEEMRB MR R 812 (HAE R R
B ERm R

BRERaMBRRAMBOMKESE
Sy REBZRABALIRRZUT

(@ REFEER AEEMESRHEEE
B REFEHMGBLE (CZTIZ
F—HEFEFMELE) WRAR
WA R E 55 55 B B IR A 4956,00078
T (TR A 49,0008 7T) ©
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(o)

During the year, the Group received commission
income and other income from securities dealing of
approximately HK$18,000 (2020: HK$17,000) from Asia
Tele-Net, in which two directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing
and Nam Kwok Lun, have controlling interests.

At 31 December 2021, a director, Mr. Nam Kwok
Lun, advanced approximately HK$64,772,000 (2020:
HK$57,851,000) to the Group. During the year, the
Group accrued finance costs of HK$2,364,000 (2020:
HK$2,614,000) to the director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun. The
amount is interest bearing at prime rate 5% (2020: 5.13%)
per annum and repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2021, a director, Dr. Hui Chi Ming,
advanced approximately HK$161,225,000 (2020:
HK$85,727,000) to the Group. It is unsecured, repayable on
demand and non-interest bearing.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
made minimum lease payments under short-term
leases in respect of office premises of approximately
HK$2,520,000 (2020: HK$2,520,000) to Gahood Holding
Company Limited, a company indirectly wholly-owned
by Dr. Hui Chi Ming, a director of the Company. The
transaction also constitutes a continuing connected
transaction under Appendix 14A of the Listing Rules.

—F+ZA=+—HLEFE

46. FIEANLR S (#)

FEALRS (@)

=
S

ﬁAKEEr“m AREERBESFEELD

NEGAE (MR EREEB L NER
fﬁ?aéE%ﬁH}“ﬁ% ) LI&ZHM%%M&Z
AR H Mk A4918,00058 T (CE—
T4 17,0005 7T) ©

A ZE—F+ZA=+—H E=F
BE [ i oo A 1A A B B ER RN 4964,772,000
BT (ZEZEHE 57,851,000 7T) ©
FRAEBEOEREHMGIAEIES
B 75 E 2,364,000 T (T B - Z4E ¢
2,614,000/ 7T) - BRIMIEES% (ZF
TEF I513%) REEFAEFER
BREREEE-

A Z_E_—F+ZA=+—8"
BEEHERBLIALAEIBRRY
161,225,000 T (ZEZZF .
85,727,000/ 7T) c ZEBR A EIEK
FBEREERAFTR

HE_Z”_—F+"A=+—HILF
B> AEERMAEYEEHROH
AANBEEHEHIETHELER
EZ?&%%EBE@?%?%MHE
IR #92,520,0008 % (ZEZZF .
2,520,000 7T) c ZIBR ZINEB ™
HAMIERAAIE N 2 ISERER F o
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. FEANLTRS #)
(Continued)
Transactions with related parties (Continued) FEALTRS (&)
() At 31 December 2021, a related company, PAL Finance 6) N B —F+_B=+—H EE
Limited ("PAL") a wholly-owned subsidiary of Asia Tele- NEIEMNEEMBERRE (MEMNE
Net, a company incorporated in Bermuda, in which two ) ENHBEZZEWBAE 1B
directors of the Company, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and BREFMNMII AR MBERE
Nam Kwok Lun, having controlling interest advanced Bl S 4 R BE Bl fm o A R EL A
HK$36,000,000 (2020: HK$55,500,000) to the Group. ) [ A58 B #T36,000,0008 7T (8
During the year, the Group paid finance costs in total of T &E4F 1 55,500,000787T) o R 0 A EE
HK$3,121,000 (2020: HK3,050,000) to PAL. The amount is B TultEsHBEREHSR
interest-bearing at Hong Kong Prime rate of 5.00% (2020: 3,121,000 7t (Z & == 4 : 3,050,000
5.13%) per annum and repayable within one year. BiT) cBRRBEREEREEENE
5.00% (ZEZZ4F 1 5.13%) st 2 A
R—FREE-
Ccompensation of key management personnel FEEBABZEHM
The remuneration of Directors during the year were as follows: FRAEEZME0T ¢
2021 2020
—EB-—-F —ZTETH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Short-term benefits e HRfE R 8,592 10,006
Post-employment benefits BIREH 93 105
8,685 10,111
The remuneration of Directors is determined by the EEMEcHFNZETRENALTZRIR
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of KRG HBEBET -

individuals and market trends.
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47. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 47. B ZEFEEX ZABRBZHIR
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TREVWNAEEREZMELEZEEZ
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash SE (BEREKRIFRTE) -MEEH
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for FTEEZBELBESRKHENAEELRF
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in BREMERDVEARBREETHNIRE
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows MEe

from financing activities.

Amounts
Lease due to Corporate Convertible
liabilities Directors bonds bonds Borrowings Total
HEaR - ENEERE VAGTlEE:S ARES & B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TER FET TER
At 1 January 2020 RZE-ZE—-F—H 5,769 109,292 29,621 - 304,910 449,592
Changes from financing HERERELY
cash flows
Additions A - 31,672 - - 146,869 178,541
Redemption/Repayments B/ (2,569) - - - (69,500) (72,069)
Other changes: Hits .
New leases entered EIEA 846 - - - - 846
Exchange adjustments ERAE 38 - - - 3969 4,007
Interest expenses FERY 266 2614 2336 - 27,106 32,322
Interest paid BAFE (266) - (1,781) - (18,272) (20,319)
At 31 December 2020 and RIZ2ZFE+ZH
1 January 2021 =t-HARIE_-F
—A—H 4,084 143,578 30,176 - 395,082 572,920
Changes from financing MERERELEH
cash flows
Additions BR - 80,055 - 20,000 57,000 157,055
Redemption/Repayments BB 2,712) - (11,000) - (66,500) (80,212)
Other changes: Hithgg .
Exchange adjustments EREE 16 - - - 2,305 2321
Interest expenses FERZ 166 2,364 1,972 842 4391 49265
Interest paid BAFE (166) - (3,666) - (41,192) (45,024)
Recognition of equity component HEsRE @7 - - - (2,996) - (2,99)
At 31 December 2021 =
+ZB=+-H 1,388 225997 17,482 17,846 390,616 653,329
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;

4 A
e 1

2TET

48. T EMEBAT]

The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Name
et

Karl Thomson
Financial Group Limited
SEEHEEERAT

Karl-Thomson Securities
Company Limited
BiEESERAE

Karl-Thomson Commodities
Company Limited
SERERHEERAT
Karl Thomson
Finance Limited

BiEMHEERAT

Karl Thomson Credit Limited
SEEHEBRAT

Karl Thomson Investment
Consultants Limited

BEREEMBRAT

Country/
place of
incorporation
Bt
HR/ 8%

British Virgin
Islands ("BVI")
HBRUEE
(EBEUHE)
Hong Kong
&%
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong

]

Hong Kong
BA

Hong Kong

Principal
place of
business

TREENY

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

A

Hong Kong

&A

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/

registered capital

BHITR
BRRE/
HMES

HK$10

1087

HK$11,000,000
11,000,000%7¢
HK$5,000,000
5,000,000/ 7
HK$20,000,000
20,000,000 7T

HK$10,000
10,0007

HK$5,000,000

5,000,000%7¢

—F+=A=+—HiEE

TR EER AN EAERARENEESR
BREZARNTMNBAB -EFRA
RHAMMBARZFBEECRBBNTT

Eo
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Group
rEERE
ERTRAAELH
2021 2020
ZE-F _F°%%
% %
Batt BAL
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities
TEER

Investment holding

REER

Securities dealing
and broking
EHFEERLK

Futures and
options broking
HERBELY

Securities margin
financing
FARELHE

Money lending

f&&

Broking of mutual funds
andinsurance-linked
investment plans
and products

LEES RFpHN
REFARERLL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AL

1174 AS

SRR R MY 5L

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &E_ZT—

—F+ZA=+—HLEFE

48. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name
4

Karl Thomson Financial
Advisory Limited
SEMERKERAT

Hong Kong Finance Energy
International Trading
Company Limited

Hong Kong Finance Resource
Group Limited
EACHEREEBRAT

Shiny Future Holdings Limited
BEERERAR

Hong Kong Finance Universal
Investment Group Limited
BASERHRESEBRAR

Madagascar Northern Petroleum
Company Limited
SEMSAMLSERERRR

Zhen Hua Company Limited

REBRAA

Country/
place of
incorporation
B4
HR/ 8%

Hong Kong
&H

BVI
EERUBE
BVI
EERUHE

Hong Kong
s

BVI
EERUBE
BVI
EEEVEE
Kenya

BEZ

Principal
place of
business
FTESENY

Hong Kong
aA
Hong Kong
&H
Hong Kong
&E

Hong Kong
B3

Hong Kong
&8
Madagascar
BEMEM
Kenya

BRED

438. T EMBAT (&

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BETR
BRRE/
FHEE

HK$600,000
600,000 7
US$100
100% 7T
US$100
100E7T

HK§100
1007z

US$100
100% 7T
US$100
100% 7T
KES100,000

100,008 B %%

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Group
TEENE
BRTRAEELS
2021 2020
ZZ--F “EI%%
% %
BAlt [E
51 51
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
60 60

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAT

Principal activities
TEEE

Corporate finance advisory
PEREER

Trading in natural resources
RAERES

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding
SEER

Investment holding
RERR

Ol and gas exploration
and production
BARAARERREE

Minerals exploration and
production
BRERARLEE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR EMBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

48. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 48.
Issued and
fully paid
Country/ share capital/
place of Principal registered capital
incorporation place of EEL)
Name AL business WRks/
&8 HX/ TERLHE FHEE
Societe Hoteliere Tananarivienne Madagascar Madagascar MGA600,000,000
600,000,000
BRI BRI BEMmEHM
MEZE
Beijing Yinghe Real Estate PRC PRC RMB22,000,000
Comprehensive Development s HE A #22,000,0007T
Co, Lt *
TRANFEE
maREARA R
Shenzhen Qianhai Jiameijing PRC PRC RMB5,000,000
Industrial Co,, Ltd. * f HE B 15,000,0007

RHREREBERAT

Guangdong Hong Kong PRC PRC RMB100,000,000
Guangdong Financial Holdings f HE AR %100,000,0007¢
Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd.*

EREBRERME
FREERARF

The Company directly holds the interest in Karl Thomson
Financial Group Limited and Hong Kong Finance Resource
Group Limited. All other subsidiaries shown above are indirectly
held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
end of the year or at any time during the year.

* Wholly foreign owned enterprises
*x Private Limited Liability companies

# English names of these PRC companies are for identification purpose only

TEMBARE &

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Group
KrEERE Principal activities
BRARAAELH  FEEH
2021 2020
ZBI-F CZ°TE
% %
BAlt [E

100 1

D

0 Property holding
ESEE

100 100 Property investment
MERE

60 60 Trading of electronic products
and equipment
BEFERMREES

100 100 Property investment
ESE

ARRERFESETMERARATRK
ERATHEEREEERAR ZEm ML
A HMNB AR Z R AEATE
BEA-

REFEERBINFRTARE HELQ
A EE AR RBFEZERHES

* SEBERE

> FAABRAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\7|'\

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZT——

BT ERRMIEE

49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

(b)

Rights issue

On 10 January 2022, the Company has proposed to
implement a rights issue, on the basis of one rights
share for every two shares held on a record date at a
subscription price of HK$0.1 per rights share, to raise
up to (i) approximately HK$200,000,000 by issuing up
to 2,000,000,000 rights shares; or (ii) approximately
HK$201,000,000 by issuing up to 2,010,204,081 rights
shares to qualifying shareholders.

Up to the date of authorised of this annual report, the
implementation of the rights issue has not yet completed.
The prospectus dated 17 March 2022, has mentioned the
details of the rights issue.

Disposal of Millhaven Holdings Limited

On 5 November 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of the entire issued share capital of Millhaven
Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, for a cash consideration of HK$338,000,000 (the
“Disposal”). The Disposal constitutes a major transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules but
the Disposal is not subject to shareholders’ approval as
Dr. Hui Chi Ming and his associates, who together hold
53.49% of the issued share capital of the Company, have
given a written approval for the Disposal. At the date of
the report, the Disposal has yet been completed but a
non-refundable deposit of HK$8,000,000 was received.

Up to the date of authorised of this annual report, the
Disposal has not yet completed. The circular dated 24
March 2022 has mentioned the details of the Disposal.

F+"A=t—HLEE

49. FREHA

(@)

(b)

®EIR
fHAg

RIEZZTHF—RB+HBH &xREE
EEREBOHSHEERRRHOE
BE-REKRROZEE UREB
EBRHEKRKRHB0.1BTETHERE ()
#3188 47 & %2,000,000,0008% 4 B&
f& 1D &% & £ 49200,000,000% 7T ;
H(NEBRAEERRREZETRS
2,010,204,081 [ R RMNEERS
#9201,000,0003# 7T, ©

BEREAFRZA HKRZEHRH
REM - BHA T "F=A+t
HzREESRAERZFE-

H £ Millhaven Holdings
Limited

RNIZ2_—F+—AAEH  AEHHE
—ZBUE=ZFTUEEHE N
HEXRABZEN B A RMillhaven
Holdings Limitedfy 2 28 2 & 17 &
R > DU ERIR & 18338,000,0007 7T
(THESIE)) - HEFEERER
AR ETREUEBEB TN —EE
ARG EHEEEBGAESRE]
B BEHRTE®RIELIRERBAS
HEFEAR QB BETRAMS3.49%
HEERHLESTEEHERME R
REBH HESFEHEARATHREBIW
E| R AT 3R #8 2 $:8,000,00078 7T ©

EEXEEEAFERz2H HESEEHX
SR cHEBA—E - —F#=F "+
HrBRERIMHEEEZF IR

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
TR IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &EZ"Z-"—F+"_HB=+—HIFE

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 50. AT ZBHTFFARAER
THE COMPANY

2021 2020
—E-—-F —ZT-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Non-current assets EREEE
Investment in subsidiaries RBRABZIRE 539,830 539,830
539,830 539,830
Current assets MBIEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note a)  FEWT B AT BRI (Hf5ta) 1,232,584 1,486,043
Other amounts receivable, HAEWRR AN RIB RIS
prepayments and deposits 24,275 56
Bank balances (general accounts) RITHEEF (—RERP) RIRE
and cash 29 29
1,256,888 1,486,128
Current liabilities mEAaE
Amount due to subsidiaries (note a) FE1T I B A B FRIE (Hf5ta) 570,584 554,071
Other payables and accrued expenses HnE AL EE B 16,175 12,538
Amount due to Directors (note b) FETEERIB (BiaED) 92,664 58,091
Corporate bonds NEMES 13,350 11,535
Borrowings =yt 277,472 264,744
970,245 900,979
Net current assets MEEERE 286,643 585,149
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTHERE 826,473 1,124,979
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Corporate bonds NEES 3,958 17,698
Convertible bonds AIHRES 17,846 -
21,804 17,698
Net assets BEEFE 804,669 1,107,281
Capital and reserves P& 7 Bz {1
Share capital 5% 400,000 400,000
Reserves (note ¢) &t (BaEc) 404,669 707,281
Total equity HEmARER 804,669 1,107,281
The Company's statement of financial position was approved ARBHBRRERR T _—_F=H1
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March “+EREEESMAERREREE, WH
2022 and are signed on its behalf by: MFREEE
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, cBs., JP. Mr. Cao Yu
HEEess, P EFLE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR E MBERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE - —F+_H=+—HIEEE

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

50. "ATZMFIRRK B

Notes: Bist -
(@  The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free, and (@) e () i@ ABRIBEA BRI R ERIEE
recoverable/(repayable) on demand. Kiglel,” (EiE) ©
(b) The amount due to a Director of which $48,564,000 is unsecured, interest (b) &1 ZE S FRIH48,564,00078 70 A B IKIF > #ZIRTT
bearing at Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by Bank (2020: Hong Kong Prime FIRMNEEREBBENE (CTEZE | BITFHR
Rate quoted by Bank) per annum and are repayable on demand. The NEBREBNE) SFHERZEREE -8R
remaining balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. THEBARIKR - REREAREREEER
(© Movement in reserves (c) EEEE
Convertible
Capital bonds
Share  Contributed redemption equity  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
AHRRES
AR 18 BHRE BXBELREG i ZEtE5E aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FiEx FEx FEx FEx TR
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-ZF—-F—H 1,578,317 372,031 5,587 - (1,217,047) 738,888
Loss and total comprehensive  EERBEREES HEE
expenses for the year - - - - (31,607) (31,607)
At 31 December 2020 R_E_TE
and at 1 January 2021 +TZA=+—HER
—Z--5—-fA-H 1,578,317 372,031 5,587 - (1,248,654) 707,281
Lossand total comprehensive  FEFBREZES HAE
expenses for the year - - - - (305,608) (305,608)
Recognition of equity component B2 Ak &% 2 R H S
of convertible bonds - - - 2,99 - 2,99
At 31 December 2021 R-B_—F+"B=1+—H 1,578,317 372,031 5,587 2,996 (1,554,262) 404,669

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAT



Five Years Financial Summary
L FHMBHNE

Year ended 31 December
HE+-_A=+—HULt=EE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
It F ZE-N\F ZZ-hF ZEIEZF ZEZ—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TFHET TFHET TFAET FAT
RESULTS e
Revenue W= 97,065 942,475 538,006 1,013,168 522,404
Profit/(loss) before taxation B2 H(
Al (E518) 94,478 253,301 930,436 (251,346) 392,602
Taxation I8 (31,896) (73,665) (252,953) 38,429 (116,399)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREER
from continuing FERA (B18)
operations 62,582 179,636 677,483 (212,917) 276,203
Loss for the year BRIEREERE
from discontinued FEEE
operation (100,079) (20,905) - - -
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8 af (37,497) 158,731 677,483 (212,917) 276,203
Earnings/(loss) per share  SRREF (§5518)
From continuing and FRERREER R
discontinued operations BRI E R
— Basic —EK HK$0.0046 HK$0.0455 HK$0.1694 HK$(0.0530)  HK$0.0670
0.004687 0045587t  0.169487c  (0.053087c  0.067087T
From continuing operations 35 4845 # 5%
— Basic —EK HK$0.0246 HK$0.0514 HK$0.1694 HK$(0.0530) HK$0.0670
002467 0051487t 0169487t  (0.053087c  0.067087T
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Five Years Financial Summary

hFMHHE

As at 31 December

W+=ZB=+—H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
I —tF ZE-N\F ZZ-hF ZEIEZF ZEBEZ—HF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET FHET FHET FTET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERE&E
Total assets BEME 1,655,970 4,033,416 4,672,065 4975812 5,513,382
Total liabilities BE4%E (797,611 (963,645) (999,740)  (1,279,182) (1,409,517)

858,359 3,069,771 3,672,325 3,696,630 4,103,865
Equity attributable to ENNETEZE SN

owners of the Company fEL R 836,492 3,066,684 3,667,376 3,692,454 4,091,298

Non-controlling interests ~ FEIEG#E % 21,867 3,087 4,949 4,176 12,567
Total equity HEmARER 858,359 3,069,771 3,672,325 3,696,630 4,103,865

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAT
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